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This is an interview with Colonel Ray Hoffman done in Abilene,
Kansas, on July 28, 1978, at the Dwight D. Eisenhower Library,
Present for the interview are Col. Hoffman and Dr, Maclyn Burg
of the Dwight D. Eisanhower Library staff.

DR. BURZ: Let me ask, where were you born?
COL. HOFFMRN: I was born in Lowell, Maissachusetis,
DR. BURG: ZLewell, Massachusetts. And what year?

COL, HOFFMAN: 1922, T was sbout twenty vears old, I think,

when I enlisted,
r -
DR. BURG: You were educated in Lewell? .

COL. HOFFMAN: Went to Lowell High Schoel and--educated in

Lowell. wWe had junior ROTC program in the high school.

DE. BURG: I zee,

COL. HOFFMAN: We called it "Brigade," We didn't ecall it rOTC
or anything. We called it "Brigade." Boys Brigade, and the
girls had a program called the "@irl Officer's Training", or
something. But it was under a great old British Army major, who

had zince become a citizen, by the name of Kittridge,
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BURG: K=i-t-t-r-i-d-g-eo.

HOFFMAN: Right. Good, English, Kittridge and a fantastic man.
and I think, probakly, boys my age were prepared for the military
by their fathers or their uncles. But certainly by this guy,

who took it very sericusly. He was a ramred straight man all

of his life. I think he died at seventy, and he was still just

as——he locked the picture of @n English major.

BURG: Did you ever, from him, hear what British unit he had

served with?

BEOFFMAN: To.

BEURGZ: He never spoke of that?

BEOFFMAN: Well, I'm not sure he did, and I would have to go look

through any very, very a2rly notes I made, But--

BEURG: Could we assume that he had served during the First World

War in France?

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, yes. Definitely he was & World War I--he was much

respected and much loved man. And Lowell i= & city, in those
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days, of a8 hundred thousand people, and coming out of the depre-
ssion years, you kKnow. But the training in the high school was
city-oriented. It was part--it was part of the Department of

Education and the School Board was behind ik,

BURG: Reguired of all male students?

HOFFMAN: You either took "Brigade" or vou took gym.

EU/RG: T sBee,

HOFFMAN: And yvou entered as a private recruit, and ¥you movad
up by both written and cral and demonstration examinations for

all the way through.

BURG: Now it would invelve drilling, I'm sure. Did it invelve

any study of, let's say, military courtesy, squad tactics—-

HOUFFMAN: Definitely, Right from the individual--school of the
individual soldier-—through the Sguad., 2and those were the days
of "sguads east" and "squads west", yvou know. Platoon, COmpeny ,
battalion, and regiment. And once a year the final competitions
came, with an enormous field day held on the common, the south

common, 2nd a hig parade down the main street. &And then the
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compatition for the colonel of the brigade came during--and
for the field grade positions, for major, and so forth—-came

in that final competition every year in the field day.

BURG: DIid you rise to @8 particular rank by the time you graduated

from——

HOFFMAN: Became 3 battalion commander, major. And, vou know,
great competition. The judging was dona by Reserve, and National
Guard, and Regular Army officers from the units in Massachusetts,
Fort Devens wazs at Ayver which is only fifteen, siXteen miles

AWaY.
] I't'\q- o
3 €
BURG: How is Aver spelled? . y

HOFFMAN: A-y-o-r. At Fort Devens, Massachu=setts., And they
would come down. The bigger drills, of course, the battalion
and brigade type, or regiment--yeah, battalion and regiment—-
were held on the commoni but the smaller sguad, platoon, and
company drills were held inside the drill ched. We had a pretty

big-sized one.

BURG: The reascn I'm smiling about all this is that in 1942, at



Col. Ray Hoffman, #I, 7-28-78 Page 5

Stadium High School in Tacoma, where John 5.D. Eisenhower
passed through just a few years before T went into the bottom
end of that school, the man in charge of physical education was
4 retired British Army captain, from whom we had no military
instruction, but in ‘42 with the war going on, our phyzical

education was built around military lines—-
HOEFFMAN: SBure, & =]

BURG: ==by——-T can't even remember his last name. We called him
Cappy. He had been a captain; and we did a great deal, probably
of very British kinds of falling in for formations and the whole
thing. [Laughter] You called him “Sirl" And I mean it was
"Sah!" when you replied to him. I wonder if Eisenhower, John
Eisenhower, might not have had--in fact, I'm sure he had that same
man. He would have to have had. But we didn't have the ROTC

or "Boys' Brigade" aspect of it. Now, vou had no time for

college, did you?

HOFFMAN: I had cone yesar. I was hsaded for, at that time, for
boys' work, ¥MCA. And I spent one year at Springfield in Massa-

chusetts and then the--

BURBG: WwWhat iz thare?
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HOFFMAN: That is one of the YMCA training schools, or colleges,
found by the ¥ that trained--social science is vour major if
vou're headed for boys' work. If vou're headed to the phyaical

education field, then physical education or F.E. is your major.

BURG: It's a four vear institution?

HOFFMAN: FPour vear, oh, yes. George Williams in Chicago was
the first of the YMCA-founded colleges. And it's since coms
out, now, all the way up to 8 doctorate in humanities. A&And

women, you know, of course. The coampuses expanded. and so 1

got a yedar 8t Springfield and thep--

BURG: Did the war come during that—- 2

HOFFMAN: Yeos—-

BURG: You had enrolled, I assume, arovund September-—

HOFFMAN: Yeah.

BURG: And then December Tth--

HOFFMAN: And December, it came. T made--I had already made the
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decision that I would go into the ministry if I were akle to
survive the war, and able to transfer what credits I had at the
end of the year. But I knew I had ta finish that year, My
parents had put in what they could. And T earned what T could
to get that one year. 5o I finished that vear and then went

looking to decide what serviece I wanted to go inte, and so forth.

BURG: That would take vou to June of 19472, (s

-\.___I L

HOFFMAN: Yeah, Then all the-—af course, the way we grew up,
you know. We grew up with the people in the town., The older
people, say, in the ¥ or in the schools, and so forth, were also
known to us in the churech or anywhere else. Some of them were
our Sunday school teachers, and so forth, S0 the ¥'s boye' work

director, a fellow by the name of Mike Pedrsof--

BURG: P-e-a-r or p-i?

HOFFMAN: P-e-&-r. Wanted to run at least one more complete,

full camping seascn. So--
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EURG: In that summer?

HOFFMAN: —-we joined the staff and ran the camp. Another fellow
and I ran it, Carrow and myself were the assistant directors and

I taught arts and crafts and this kind of thing.

BURG: You called him Carrcll? C-a=r-r-—oc=1-1%

HOFFMAN: Carrow. C=a-r—r-p-u,

BURG: I see. Was that his last pname? N paviie
HOFFMAN: Yes. His first name is Grant., And—-—

BURG: Where di you stand with the draft? Was there any problem

af being--

HOFFMAN: You know, we had two choices: wolunteer or be drafted.
But we had that "duration plus six months." HNo, I remember lots

of numbers coming up and I never really gave it a thought. I

knew I was going to enlist. So when the camping SS£ason Was over——
this would have been in August——then I started locking and thinking.

Fay Hall, who was the rector of the other Episcopal church in
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town—--Lowell had two Episcopzl churches, St. Ann's Lowell and
St. John's Lowell. Ray Hall was the rector. He went as the
first jumping chaplain of the paratroops. Well, that poked me
in that direction. I started locking, and I came on scme of the
literature, and so forth. And Ray Hall Had been all-American
swimmer for Brown University out of Providence, Rhode Island.
Great, great guy. And that looked pretty good to me, so that's

what I enlisted for.

BURG: Even in August of '42, that early, they had parachute

formations, and they had szome of thier propaganda issued, and

&

Hall had already gone into that.

-
=
-

-+ "
1'"\-'-". o

e

HOFFMAN: I forget the exact date, but I know that Ray——T'm =zure
it wasn't--it might have been about the time I finished that
first year, or something, that Ray went in. But they'd already
had the experimental platocon, and then the experimental company,
and they, finally, the experimental battalion. They'd done all

that bit.

BURG: Right. In fact, even in the thirties, T think they had.



Col. Ray Hoffman #1, 7-=28-78 FPage 10
HOFFMAN: Using the football helmets and this type of thing.

EURG: Right. Right. Locking guite different from the para-
chutiszts of 1943, '"44. Well, did vou enlist then at Fort Devin?

Is that where you went?

HOFFMAN: No, the way vou did it, you enlisted--at that time the
offices were in the--federal offices--were in the Post Office
ki1ilding. It was downtown Lewell, Merrimac Street, east
Merrimac, I guess. And I went in there and found a recruiting

sergeant ‘and talked with him, and so forth.
('ﬁ.\
ol ‘::'1_
BURG: Did he try to dissuade you, Ray? ﬂ f

HOFFMAN: Ho; they were a little—vou know, Tthey'd always ask vou
several pointed guestions. You could see their wheels going
around in their heads. “"We've got to make sure this guy isn't z

Iittle hit== [Laughter]
BORG: —-—a litfle flakey."

HOFFMAN: And you really came to this when your thing was stamped

"wolunteer parachutist.” A1l your papers were stamped "volonteer
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parachutist" after you got to the induction——the examination
center. They put us on a bus and sent us to Boston. And

there was a big--I don't know whether it was General Motors or one
of the big car companies, I think, used to use this place asz a
distributor's holding area for their automobiles. They had

2ll the ramps and everything else, Well, this was the examining
center. And if you can imagine running around there in vour--
either your skin or your skivvies. Just hundreds and hundreds of
people. But part of the examination was the interview with the
psychiatrist, and you knew from that that there were certain

guestiens being put to you to find out whether you were--

[Laughter]

BURG: He didn't just ask you whether you liked girls? [Laughter)

HOFFMAN: No. No. That was the furthest thing from his mind! &t
that point, you know, he wanted to know whether you really cared

about living.

BIIRG: ¥Yes. Yes. Did you have & death wish? Weére yoi ever

dropped on your hesd as a child? [Laughter]
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ROFFMAN: These kind of things. Then, I suppose we were told

to come home and then report somewhere.,

BURG: Well, listen, before you gc on, let me ask ¥ou A3E your
psychiatrist, [Laughter] why had vou decided to take up something
that you knew a little hit about, but something which was wvery,
very dangerous? Was it strictly beécause a man that you liked and

admired had gone into it, or what was your thinking at age 207

HOFFMAN: Yeah, I think this was = new way of doing the--I knew
1 was going to be an infantryman and I knew that I-~this is my
idea of a soldier, was the infantryman. But here was a new way
of doing this thing, and I think this is probabkly the kind of

thing.

BURG: It kind of exicted wyou,

HOFFMAN: Oh, yeah.

BURG: Let me ask you this, Ray. Had you ever flown up to that

poink?

HOFFMAN: Very few flights, but one of the greatest flights was
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given to me by my parents; it was in an old biplane, and I was
given it as a birthday present., I think T was twelve years old.
And socme guy brought an old biplane into—to cockpits, vou know--
into the South Lowell Airport, and you had=--1 think it was two
dellars or something--and you had a complete flight around the

city and then you'd land.
BURG: 1934 probably.

HOFFMAH: Yes. Eagily. That was a great flight, and then I
had probably one or twe flights after that. But no particular

Jumping.

BURG: 50 you knew what it looked like from the air.

f/ 7

HOFFMARN: Knew what it was with the wind in your face. I can
only say that I thought this was a new and exeiting way of doing
the soldier's job. And I thought, "Well, they're going to be out

in fromt." I guess that's where I wanted to he, [Laughter]

BURG: What is sometimes difficult for people--the younger people

today--to understand is the particular, and to them, I'm sure,
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the peculiar attitude we had at that time. It doesn't make any
more sense than the attitude of the British and Americans going
into the First World War, You had to be shaped and formed by your

times and you had to feel as we felt.

HOFFMAN: But yvou see, we were luckier than the Koreéan and

Vietnam people because there was a total mobilization.

BURG: Yesg.

HOFFMAN: Evwverybody waes involved. HNot just scme. And YOu Wers
involved until it was finished, plus six months. That's the

thing. That's the time frame. That's what you're--

BURG: A total commitment from everybody, so that it was vnthink-

able that you wouldn't or couldn't go.

HOFFMAN: In fact, you see, even those whe were crippled or
somewhat limited could go into a general service corps and could
serve. I have friends who had club feet and so forth. ¥You
could enlist for general services and somewhere along the line

you found a job. It was a strange thing to hear of one's frineds
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being given an actuzl 4-F classification. He would more likely

get a 4-F classification because he was the only son and a

widowed mother or scmething else. But even young men who had one
club foot, or one polio-damaged limbk, or something else, were able
to enlist in the general service corps, and a jobk would be found for
them. There would be some way that they could serve. This we

eliminated completely. They didn't have anything like this,

EORG: Yeah, later on,

HOFFMAN: OCne crazy mistake.

BURG: Now, they sent you back home then; the usual routine. Did
you know that you had passed the physzieal at that time when they

sent vou back?

HOFFMAN: Yes, you knew it before you left the building.

DURG: Ah, did wyou?

HOFFMAN: And this was one of the few times when you knew it
before you left the building. You knew that vau had been

accepted mnd that was stamped on your--boy, they used stamps that
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were about an inch--letters an inch high, vou know, and I

think we probably were given a reporting date. Then we maved
to--of course, we got on the bus, probably, there at the

rost effice again and went to Devins. HNow this time we went

to Devins, and that was pretty interesting because, very soon,
having had the manual of arms and the whole schmear, that made

it able to function wvery smoothly.

BURG: The bunch that went with you from Lowell, they were

not all paratroops?

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, no. No. The

BURG: They were a mixed bag of— a1

HOFFMAN: In fact, I don't know anyone else at that point.

BURG: Did they give you a standard infantry basie at Devins—-

HOFFMAN: No.

BURG: =-=or was it just simply a holding thing until they could--

HOFFMAN: That's all. They were just collecting us. We got
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issued our eguipment and so forth. We had to pull guard duty,
this kind of thing. And my first guard duty, I won the comand-
ant'e award, which was a cne-day pass. Buat first, you become
his orderly. That consisted in going and sitting in the outer
office, but I won it because T could do the manual of arms with—
out a cliek. I could beat any kid out there. Well, Lord, you
know, you had it for three years, and we were using those aold

Spanish-American war rifles that had an open breech.

BURG: The 45-70 trapdoor Springfield. [Laughter] Yeszsh, I
didn't ask you whether yvou were armed ar not in that brigade,

the "Boys'Brigade.," . ﬁi

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, yes. The whole thing. So most of the time whﬁgi
I hit guard, I could either get the pass or the oxrderly and so
forth. But sometimes it wasn't offered, and that was okay, too,
because you had to go on. Somebody had to pull the duty. But
lo and behold, the first guard duty I had was a night shift and
it was at the prisoner of war compound. At that time the sub-
marines who had been captured were held at Devins. Aand this was

the first time to lock at a young German officer, blond hair, the
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blue eyves, the leather coat—-—

BURG: The U-boat types,

HOFFMAN: The U-boat types--and a surly leock, and he came
right up to the corner where you had to pass and never said =
word, just locked. That was, I think, a reality impression
that you knew that what you were about to get into was real,
Here these guys were, locking at vou and still, even though
they were prisoners, still projected the greatest disdain and

hatred. Never szid a word,

BURG: That period and the beginning of the next year were

the glory days for the U-hosts, so their morale was at its

height.

HOFFMAN: They'd come in as close as, ycu know, Hantucket, and--

BIIRG: EBure.

BOFFMAN: —-the Cape, and then they tried landing some saboteurs,
They were captured and were put in there. So, not all guard

duty is that important, but there it was,



Col. Ray Hoffman, 7-2B-78, Interview 4y Page 21
BURG: That made an—

HOFFMAN: OQutside perimeter to walk. Probably didn't mean a
blessed thing, teoo, because they had, ¢f course, guards in the

towers. But, nevertheless—-
BURG: That made an impression on you.

BUFFMAN: It made you realize that there were human beings. out
there whe, even in a situation where they were prisoners, were
still loaded with disdain, hatred, and would have broken out aof
there just as socon as they could. But, of course, that was a

pretty high caliber type. These were all U-boat officers, and

they didn't mix them.
BURG: I see. No crewmen. s ]

HOFFMAN: I didn't seée any crew. I saw U-boat officers. And
yvou're a raw recruit. You haven't even gotten, I don't think,

to PFC by this time.

BURG: HNo. Hao.
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HOFFMAN: You haven't gone through your earliest basic training

pr anything else.
BURG: How long were you at Devins before they--

BOFEMAN: Mo more, I think, than five, six days. I wouldn't
think more than that because.... Let's ses, I enlisted in
Oeotober, the first of October, and I was probably at Camp Croft,
gouth Carclina, by the tenth of Geteher, 1t seems bto me. That's

where basic training was.

BURG: You went down there by train?

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, boy. T
BURG: Troop train? —

HOFFMAN: That train! That in itself was an experience.,
cshunted off and just--of course, it had to go at times when
there weren't other trains running scme of the tracks. Yeah,

we went down by troep train.

BURG: Juslt a mass of enlistees and indacteeg—--—
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HOFFMAN: Yeah.
BURG: -—-and Croft, C-r-o-f-t.

HOFFMAN: --f-t. Yeah. It's just outside of Spartanburg, South

Carolina.

BURG: That was an infantry training--
HOFFMAN: Basic training center.

BURG: —Dbasic training center.

HOFFMARN: BAnd we took our basic infantry training, and then

you're--that's your first eight weeks.
BURG: There was an eight week cycle at that time, \ S

HOFFMAN: Oh, walt a minute, here. We had thirteen weesks.
S0, the first seven weeks, I think, were basic and then the
next six were, in my case, were the heavy weapons: the
thirty caliber heavy machine gun and the 81 mm. mortar. From
Croft, let's see, yeah. The interviews were conducted--every

time you turned around you had another interview with an air-
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borne officer or a team--

BURG: Really?

BOFFMAN: Yeah.

BURG: At Croft?

HOFFMAN: Yeah.

BURG: By the way let's breazk now.

[Interruption] N Ak

BURG: When we took a coffee break, we were talking abeout
Creft, and you said that airborne afficers had come there and
did various kinds of interviews and tests, even while you were

deing vour training.

ROFFMAN: You never were, in your awn mind, sure that it was
all going to happen, that you were going to be allowed to go
to jump school. There'd always be interviews and then they'd

say, "Well, we'll let you know,"
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BURG: How did the interviews go? What kinds of things were

they seeking to learn in their interviews?

ROFFMAN: A lot of it was, I suppose, they were after your
experience and attitude. I ean remember one young lieutenant
talking to me about background things. what did you like to

do in school? Did you play a sport? what clubs did you belong
to? Church? The whole =schmear, and apparently this was important
to them to find out whether you were active in your home commuan ity

and, I suppose, how you related to people.

BURG: Were they doing that same sort of thing, as far as Yiou
could determine, with other pecple at Croft who also had

volunteered for peratroops? d &

HOFFMAN: Yes. They did more eof it when you got to Benning and

0CE.

EURG: Were they doing any active recruiting with basic

trainees at Croft whoe had not volunteered for paratroops?

HOFFMAN: No, I don't think so. I don't remember this happening.
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EUBG: So at that time that==

HOFFMAN: If your papers were stamped volunteer airborne, I SUpDOse,

a "woluntéer parachutist®--I think that's the way the wording

read--I suppose they had to keep that alive and did more--
[Interrupticn]

BURG: I'm getting the impression that in late 1942, early

1943, a parachute unit is a very elite outfit.
HOFFMAN: VYes.
BURG: That they're being very, very careful. \ 7

HOFFMAN: I don't say that to downgrade any of the other

services, but I felt, all the way through, that--
[Interruption)

BURG: Okay.

HOFEMAN: Until the time when they had ta just bring in massive

replacements, I think they were selective. For instance,
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nothing against you if veou had = jump refusal, but yvou'd be
gone by the next morning. You were not around. This is

later or--

8URG: I got the impression that, in fact, on the jumps at
Normandy--probably in the 10lst--it seems to me that there were

three jump refusals that night.

HOFFMAN: I don't remember any. New, there probably were, T
don't remember any. And it couldn't he really held against a
man if he were te look out of that aireraft and figure he couldn't

take it

BURG: There was no prejudice against the man., He was simply=-

52
HOFFMAN: No. (‘ﬁ
Neapa

BlIRG: —-released and returned to a regular unit, an infantry

unit,

HUFFMAN: All we knew was, he was gone by the next morning. That
took away that pressare and it teok away the influence of the

refusal on anyone else.
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BURG: Yes, he was not around to be made fun of=-

EOFFMAN: Nope.

BURG: =-=-or harassed in any way?

HOFFMAK: MNope, and he wasn't around for anyone else to think
about, either. That was, I think, important for the young new

Jumper. It wouldn't prey on his mind and--

BURG: HNow, let me ask you this, Ray. When you finish at Croft,
vou've had your basic-—-seven weeks basic and six weeks heawy

weapons and they've interviewed you varieus times-—-

HOFFMAN: It may even have been longer than that. Tt may have

been eight and eight, but anyway, it was--
BURG: Yes, the training cycles changed so much. \ .9

HOFFMAN: --basic infantry and heavy weapons. I had those two,
And why I got thirty heavy cali-water-cooled thirty and the 81
motar, I don't know. Probably size. [Laughter] You could

carry the thing.
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BURG: Exactly. I was thinking that, too, because 3 motar

tube or its base plate, or the ammunition for it, was pretty
heavy and you've got a chunky build. When vou finished that,
that last heavy weapons training, did you then receive grders

taking you to Fort Benning?

HOFFMAN: Went to Fort Benning, right. You had another airborne
physical while you were at Croft, aleng with the interviews =nd
s0 forth: and, you know, you had to wait something like a wesek
to find ocut if you passed the physical, wWell, I don't know

how many of these physicals you had, but it seemed to me every
time you turned arcund you were having another. There were
selection boards that you appeared before, in addition to these
interviews,and I would have to go back and check out some of this.
But, nevertheless, we went to Fart Benning. &nd, let's see how

that—-—

BURG: Again, by troop train? \ 7

HOFFMAN: Yep. Another great experience, moving that many men

and feeding in a baggage car. You set up the kitchens in the
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bDaggage car, and then you had te move along through several
trains to get to the baggage car and then come all the way back
with & mess kit., Can you imagine balancing this on a running

train?
BURG: &And coffee in your canteen cup., [Laughter]
HCFFMAN: Oh, it's a mess!

BURG: Yea. B5So there were guite a number of you going from
Croft? There must have heen quite a number of you who were
volunteer parachutists at Camp Croft, if it takes a troop train

te move you to Benning?

BOFFMAN: Well, of course, there was other training going on.

-]
L] &
& i
I= H

BURG: I see. af

There were other units at Benning.

HOFFMAN: ©Of course-—the infantry OCS. You see, what we're
going for is infantry OCS. And you still don't have a guarantee

you're going to go to be a parachutist.
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BURG: 0©Oh, okay then. When vou said selection Learda, I
almost asked you at that point--that almost scunds like going
before a board for Officers Candidate School. 8o you're selected

at Croft for that.

HOFFMAN: Along with the airborne interviews. veah, They
were being conducted, Every time you turped around you had

someone else to talk to,

BURG: Let me ask you this, Ray. Did you--was it possible to
gign up for, or valunteer for, OCS or were wou picked, and were

vou contacted and told we want you to apply for this?

HOFFMAN: T suppose there was, in the works, & methad of anyaone
volunteering. Hewever, if you had had, I'm gare, some callege
behind you, your company officers were aftey you to velunteer

for OCS8, to put the papers in.

BUURG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: T had a good platoen leader; I also had a good

company commander. They, of course--there was good rapport,
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Platoon sergeants, of course, were your idols. They were the
clogsest to you in all of your training. But your COMpany

officers were always around. Your platoon leaders were always
around. And there were a good many talks and so forth. "What

do you want to do?" So the advice was if you want, really want, to
become a parachute officer, then ¥You go to OCS first and then

¥ou go to jump school. Don't go the other way, because you're

then specially trained and you're probakly going to be run out to

be & replacement somewhere else.

BURG: I =ee, I zee, (fffﬁﬁk
i =
HOFFMAN: So that turned me to the 005 channel. i

BURG: HNow, may I ask you, did the airborne officers who were
coming in from time to time to guestion vou and test you, did
they agree with that thinking? Was that their recommendation,

tac?

HOFFMAN: They agreed with it., In faet, my platoon leader was a
former airborne afficer and he had been given this training
assignment. How long he had it--T don't think he had it more

than one cycle or something.
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BURG: So when you go to Benning, vou're there for infantry 0CS.

HOFFMAN: You're there for infantry 0CS5--

BUREZ: Three months?

HOFFMAN: Yes. ¥You still haven't been given the gao ahead for....
In fact, you didn't even get to Bemnning. TI'll have to Lack up

a little Lit.

BURG: All right.

HOFFMAN: I'll have to back up. Now, I'm remembering. You
finished basic training and you have already indicated you
want--they knew vou wanted airborne, but You now want QCS. Okay.
You go to an OCS prep school, and you're run through another

five weeks of training and performance. And from thig--this is
another way of sifting and selecting. From this, Your movement

to OCE is alao determined.

BURG: Everybody went through that, Ray?p

HOFFMAN: No. No. Those who--you mean, everybody wha was

going to OQE?
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BURG: ¥esg.

HOFFMAN: Everybody who wanted to go to 005 went to OCS prep first,

BURG: Everybody did.

HOFFMAN: If vou didn't make the cutoff point, then you didn‘t
move an. You would move to a cadre or NOO status or something,

but there was a cut point at which yoeu moved then to OCS.

BURG: 1 wonder if they altered that later an?

HOFFMAN: OQh, ves;

BURG: And just eliminated that five weeks and let the ninety

gays eliminate the unsuccessful candidates.

HOFFMAN: I think they altered 3 great many of these things.

BURG: Yeah., But at that time, early '43--

-

fffﬂm
HOFFMAN: Tt was a sifting quality process, - “?3

g

_:.'_I ]

b
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BURG: Yeah. Was that handled at Croft?

HOFFMAN: That was handled at Croft. Right

BURG: Yeah. So you had finished that five weeks and made

that cut and then went to Benning for the ninety days.
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HOFFMEN: Yezl.

BURG: Let me ask you this, was the ninety days for you,
headed for parachute work, any different from what any other

infantry candidate would go through?

HOFFMAN: No. You were firat being trained as an infantry
officer. The airborne training simply became a speciality on
top of that. The demclition school of training became a
speciality on top of that. But your prime job--your airborne
training was to get you in, and once you got on the ground wvou

functioned ae infantry.

BURG: The airborne thing was a delivery system to put an
infantry unit on the ground, te function as ground infantry.
Yeah. Sop there was nething unusual about that ninety days.
Were there further airbeorne interviews and testing during the

ninety day period?

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: They called you off the cycle--interrupted the cycle in
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a8 sense--to interviéw you, or did they fit it in?

HOFFMAN: They fitted it in.

BURG: Took szome of vour precicus free time.

HOFFMAN: Yeah. It's interesting. I seem to remember study
halls and prep pericds. They didn't leave anything to chance.

You didn't have any free time.

-\-:\"' 5,
2

BURG: Yes, during the nipety day pericod.

d

I. -
-
.—",-

HOFFMAN: Yes, you wore an OCE patch on your pocket, and an
your cap, I think, And if you did have any free time you were
in town, it was never in doubt as to who you were, and you were
alwayes under gbservation, you know. Which was gogd. The

préssure was on and yvou were expected te perform,

BURG: At the close, or toward the close of the ninety day
eycle, what was the routine that was follewed in your case?
Were you ‘told in advance, "Alright, you've passed and you're

going to jump school," or how would they handle that?
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HOFFMAN: Yeah. It seems to me we knew we were headed for

jump school--there was a whole group of us—-before graduation and
commissioning on the nineteenth of June. And we went inta
airborne officers--no, the jump schoel. I suppose the

reception center ar--it wasn't a pool at that time. It was after
it was all over with when we went into a pool, and from that yon

got your assignments,
BURG: Right.
HOFFMAN: So it must have been a jump school reception center.

BURG: Strictly for officers, or was it simply a receptian center

into which officers, non-coms, and men were put?

o . lag
HOFEMAN: Yaah, / IE\
BURG: You were guartered separately? ol

HOFFMAN: Separately. OQuartered separately, but everybody
went te this one area. That was the beginning of the four weeks

of jump training, A stage, B stage, C stage, and D stage.
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BURG: Okay. You're a second lieutenant.

HOFFMAN: A second lieutenant. And then two weeks heyond

that was the demolition =school.

BURG: &R1l right. Let's go back to that A stage. Let's

go back te--I'm assuming housekeeping tasks, getting you into
the center, and assigning you your orders, and issuing you all
the gear you might need. Toll me what it was like that first
morning, the first real morning when, now, you're going to
start your training. How were you handled? Right from the

outast,

HOFFMAN: Well, you're handled right from the ocutset, of T

course, by sergeants, and you hear all kinds of storiecs about
them. They knew what they were doing and they knew--it seemed
to me, they knew why they were doing it, just the same way that
tac officers and the rest of the people in 0CS...... You often
near of Mickey Mouse, but on the other hand, you had teo think
of all these things, so that when it w&s all noisy and you had

gome other things to de, yvou could do the other things with all
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the rest of this going on.

BURG: You mean in combat, while theére are plenty of distractions,
you had to be so drilled that it was second nature top do what

you had to do.

HOFFMAN: Yes, You were-—if ¥You call it harassment——but you
were constantly being challenged for petty things when you
knew yvou had some gther things te do. But it seemad te me that

it all went far the good.,

BURG: I think T understand,

HOFFMAN: 5o A stage begins with sergeants in control. Now
these are all jump sergeants. They're all airborne school
sergeants. They're fantastic guys. Loud, of conrse. But Vour
rank didn't matter., T was @ second lieutenant, but there were
[cfficers?] all the way up the grade levels. And T remember

an officer reporting to the wrong formation, and that young
sergeant called him owt and sent Him inte the corner of a
ouilding, facing the corner, and he shouted at thea top of his

lungs, "I am lost. I am lost. I am lost!," while the entire
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formation is out there trying to keep from strangling. And
everything is double time, of course. Double time back. get
in the right formation! [Laughter] You can be assured that he

never fell in with the wrong platoon from that point on.,

BURG: HNow, I can epnvisien & platoon, designated with a letter
or & combination of things, te which you belong; second lieutenants,
majors, privates, corporals, WCOs, a mixed bag of men for this

stage of the training.

BOFEMAN: Well, primarily your platcons would contaip the same

.'_1‘_
ranks, > =y

'
TS

BURG: So your platoon would be basically second lisutenants, or

basically officers?

HOFFMAN: —-basically officers. and A stage is phvsical condition-
ing. You know, you figure you don't need any more physical

conditioning after all that you've been through now. [laughter]
BURG: 1 can imagine,

HOFFMAN: But for one week, starting in the merning, runs,
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calisthenics, more hand-to-hand combat. But hour after hour
after hour, after hour. The whole day was devotad, and the

whole week, was devoted to physical conditioning,

BURG: Under the direction of a jump sergeant?

HOFFMAN: 0Oh, ves.

BURG: Did he call you "Sir," or did he just address everyone

in the same, uniform kind way? [Laughteri

HOFFMAK: No, no. Mostly, you know, it would he the whole long-
drawn-out "Loo-o-tenant. " “Can’'t you keep up, Loo-o-otenant?"

I can hear him now! And then you_knew you were tp keep up! It
didn't matter if vou died right there! vou were going to keep
up, and your body, by momentum, would just keep going down the
road, bechuse yau weren't going to be defeated! [Laughter] And,

you sea, that kind of thing just shaped what was going on.
BURG: Yeah, Un-huh.

BOFFMAN: No, you either were called "Lieutenant" ar you were

called "Sir." 1t didn't matter. These fellows were not arrogant.
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Now and then, vou met some ones that were over on the side of
cynic, but I always felt they were kept too long in the

training situation,

BURG: But you knew from the tone of that "vLoo-o—tenant," there

wasn't a great deal of respect in that. [Taughter]

HOFFMAN: Tt was always drawn out in that bull-horn voice, you

Know., But it was for a reagon,

BURG: vYou had a week 1like that, of the conditioning.

HOFFMAN: Well, and then, of course, you had the conditioning
all the way threagh. But A stage wag primarily physiecal condi-
tioning. There were some arientation lectures, and scme—-T
remember a £ilm comparing the training of the German parachutist
and the American parachutist, That £ilm exists scmewhere in the

system.

BURG: Yas, I'm sure, Yes,

HOFFMAN: Then, of course, all the hand-to-hand combat gstuff; vou

tpent hours in those pits, working,
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BURG: Then they moved ¥ou to a B Stage?

HOFFMAN: B Stage, and I think then you started on apparatus,
which w%uld be, you had your webbing and your straps and then
the thing--veu were being held in Your webbing, which is the
same straps and so forth that vou'd have when you strapped on
3 parachute. But you were suspended from a big ring: probably
ten, twelve trainees were suspended from this ring. But you
were in it, so you were learning to pull on the riszers and Vi
were learning te turn your body, and you were learning to

keep your feet, legs, tegether, all of these things, but yon

were learning them while you wers suspended in the harness,

BURG: Dropping--

HOFFMAN: No, no dropping at this paint. This was just a ring.
It seems to me it was under-—there was a littile roof over it. wWe
spend guite a bit of time doing this kind of thing. Then

jumping from platforms in order te land, to learn how to tumble.
They don't tumble today. They don't use the tumble at all., vyeou

have the five great contact points, which I never could learn.
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If I hadn't had previous training when I came on as a Chaplain....
That was so foreign to me to use these. What we were using was
the good ol' comfortable football tumble. But they didn't

want that. They have a8 new method where you make contaect with
your feet, and then your calf, and then yvour thigh, and then

your back, and then you're on the ground. We had to timble.

Your legs went over, whether you tumbled forward or backward,

and you spend a lot of time learning this.

BURG: 3Sort of touching shoulder and roll--

HOFFMAN: Just the way we did it in foetball. v¥ou had the
various levels of wooden platforms from which you did these
jumps &nd tumbling exercises. But again, it was a learning

and it was a toughening kind of thing.

L
BURG: So at that point you're simulating, to some extent, "
the impact that yeu're going to feel with the ground when you're
coming down in the chute, and you're learning how to abserk

that impact.

HOFFMAN: T think we began on a five foot and then we went to
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@ ten. Now, your impact comes from about a fifteen foot drop
at twenty--1 suppose we're coming in at fifteen, twenty miles
an hour or something. Anyway, it's the impact of a fifteen
foot drop. =0 ¥ou had thie final stage in which you--T
probably have some old, mayvbe even some Published, pictures, of

these things.

BURG: Yeah. I've seen Eome in our material here,

HOFFMAN: One of the interesting things was-—of course, we liked
it very much. We had gotten to the end of g etage and the
French General, Henri Giraud eame, and we put a demonstration

of B stage on for him.

BURG: Giraud. oh, ¥es. From North Africa.

HOFFMAN: And T think he had some South American Newspa pearmen
with him, and so forth, 7 don't know. pur group was solected

to do the thing., It was a lot of fun. we'a already been through
the B stage. We knew it. I ean remember him coming, with that

French cap, vou know,

BURG: That's G-i-rea-u-d
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HOFFMAN: Giraud. Yeah,

BURG: I think that's the wey he spelled it. Now C stage was

a Jittle more sdvanced.

HOFFMRN: € stage, now, you began to get into your packing.
Well, Efirst, of course, the parachute, it's component parts.
But primarily you're there to learn how to pack the thing in
these enormous packing sheds with tables. Nobody slept, ever!
Your eyeballs were Wide awake, because you were learning how

te pack your own chute, both vour reserve and your backpack.

BURG: Was that typical, Ray?

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, wyes. )

BURG: -—-that, throughput, you always pecked yvour own?

HOFFMAN: Yeah, You always packed your own. You didn't have
to de this in combat because the riggers were there, but in
order to get through jump school, vou had to pack your backpack
and your reserve chute, and you had to do them for each one of

the jumps. There were five jumps for the men, There were six
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for the officers, because they were required to take a night
tactical jump as their sixth jump. But, ordinarily, five is

your qualification.

BURG: Sc € stage began with the nomenclature of the -5

parachute——

HOFFMAN: 0Oh, yeah. These were silk chutes, not nylen. The
nylon went to the combat sirborne troops; these were a1l =ilk
chutes. But you learned how to pack them., You learned what
moisture would do to it. You learn how to tie that breaker
cord, and it's just a piece of string attached to that static
line and attached te the crown or the vent of that chute. It's

a piece of string about that long.

BURG: Had bto be tied--

HOFPFMAM: Had to be tied,.

BURG: -——ahsolutely right,

HOFFMAN: Becbuse that static line-=you learned how to close

that backpack sc that it would rip open. That's the only way
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you're going to get that chute open. But a lot of time spent
in learning to pack. and it was a fascinating thing. I watch
these free fall, sport parachutists packing, laying out their
chutes on the ground. And, boy, that looks dangerous to me.
But, anyway, they do it, and they've got different equipment,

and they know what they're doing.

BURG: But yours, the work is done on a long, long, absolutely

clean table,

HOFFMAN: Highly polished table, bheautiful. The chutes that
have heen used, of course, have heén dried in a tower. There's
a driying tower., And they're pulled--clip them on and pull them
all the way to the top of that tower and the warm air just goes
up through them and they get absolutely dried. You dori't want
any dampness at all. Dampness will pancake that stuff tegether.
S0, C stage you're involved in the nomeclature, the packing,

and you get some concept of the air and the weather, and the
speed of the aircraft, and so forth. And then D stage is Yo r

Jjump time.
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BURG: HNow, pricor to D Etage, do vou recollect any one in your

group who drops out or is eliminated?

HOFFMAN: It seems to me there were people eliminated, but

not because they said they wers not going to jump, I think
they were eliminated for personal problems or for hardship
causes. They were the only son, or something, or the mother
wag ill, and so forth. NKow they may have come baek and jeined
anather--but I'm sure there must have been pecple, But, as I

say, they were gone very guickly.

BURG: Anybody injured in the tumbling part af it would be

get back—--

HOFFMAN: BNow, that's another situation. { E

o

BURG: =—-and when they've recovered from that injury, sprain,
whatever it is, they just kesp on coming, but they 're behind

yau.

HOFFMAN: If you can possibly do it, you never admitted You were
hurt, you didn't want to fall behind. You didn'e wankt Lo be ra-

cycled, Once was enough. [Laughter]
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BuRG: Oh, yes, 1 can well imagine, All right. What I

think we'll do, we've reached a point where We can call a halt
ta it, remembering then that we take up with the D-stage on
the next one, because that, clearly. is the paynff to all of
this. So I think 1'd like to start with that when We have

time to build on i

[lnterruptiﬂn]
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DR. BURG: When we finighed last Frigay, one of the things we
wanted ta do when we first started was to talk akout the C

stage. There was some work at the ¢ stage or DI stage where

you actually worked in mock-ups of the C47.

COL. BOFFMAN: There were scome things that T locked uap that

you'd be interested in. That thing ranning? =~
DR, BURG: Yes. Kot

col,. HOFFMAN: Oh. Thought I had them here. These are doors—-

here's a mock-up.
pR. BURG: O©h yes. ¥es. Just a light wooden construction.

rol,. HOFFMAN: Spent a lot of time--sometimes they were the

actual old, plane carcass, Yyou know.

DR. BURG: Yes. I see. And this is a paperbound hook that
we're locgking &t right now; about seven by twelwve inches,

perhaps, titled: parachute School USA. Albert Love Enterprises.
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BOFFMAN: Put out by Love,

BUORG: Yes, in Atlanta, Georgia. This was published at that

peried, 15942-43,

HOFFMAN: Yes, at Benning. Here's the harness work that we did
and talked about. You did this, really, in all stages but vou
started it ount and did a lot of it in both A and B stage because
you had to get used to hanging in the harness, and vou had to

get used to pulling the risers, controlling your--so you learned

Nl
BURG: So what we're seeing here in this picture are the four

risers tied to a metal circle, braced metal circle, and then

thege pecple are jumping off the platform--

HOFFMAN: No, all you did in this one was te hang—--I1'll show

EURG: pow about this? It locks like maybe they just stepped

off the platform, and then—

HOFFMAN: The instructoer, he got up there. They may have, they
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may have gotten into the harness that wWay; usually you had to
pull yourself ap. The jumping off the platform is here; see
how he hangs right there, because you have to get used to this

business——

BURG: -—the way those straps cut in.

BOFFMAN: We have to go back, I guess, and find the platforms.

There's the old physical.

BURG: Yes.

HOTFMAN: Oh, we wore coveralls, by the way. One piece coveralls.

RURG: There are photos of physical training, hand to hand

comba Le—

HOFFMAK: Hand to hand--

BURG: Rope climbing-—

HOFFMAN: Here we go, Here are the platforms.

BOURG: Yes. The men just come up in long lines and assume a

jump position and jump off.
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HOFFMAN: From varying heights, to get used to the shack on
your feet, and also to fasten in your mind the tumbling. There
were times when you came off that thing backwards, so you'd
have to use a tumble to the hack when you hit the ground,
hecause you may come in backwards. And, therefore, he would

either tell you "your feet go left,” or "yvour feet go right."”

EURG: You mean, in effect, he was ordering you, when you

came off backwards, he was ordering you on one cccasion to take
your feet over your left shoulder, and the next time he may
tell you to take them cver right. So you got uaed to going
into that tumbling roll in whatever configuration you hit the

ground .

HOFFMAN: Every time. You went over--¥ou started going directly
over your head, If you went over your head, you'd be all
tangled up in the risers, so you went over oneé or the other

ehoulder.

BURG: To stay clear of that.

HOFFMAN: Stay--Keep your feet clear, be@cause i1f the wind were
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taking your chute over to the right, then your feet would go

to the left. So you wouldn't get entangled in it.

BURG :

June

many

this

vEDy

And, as & matter of fact, when it came down to it on
the &th, [1%44] there was enough wind blowing so that
of you in the chutes were oscillating rather strongly, and
kind of training that we've just seen here would be very

important to you. And even with it there were a lot of

sprained ankles and broken legs.

HOFIMAN: This is the parachute packing.

BURG:

Oh, yea. The big shedsg--

HOFFMEN: & lot of time, a lot of time in the sheds. HNobody

slept. That's & [trainsnasium?] te teach balance.

BURG:

Oh, so you're walking over rather narrow planks and--

HOFFMAN: These are pipes.

BURG :

5 £
Almost like gigantic monkey bars. {. -J

HOFFMAN: That's right, that's right. These are pipes. Like

a kig, what do the kids ecall them?
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BURG: The impression one gets from looking at this particular
Publication is that they were really fitted out to, in effeot,
mass produce, the paratroopers, because these installations

are pretty good-sized.

HOFFPMAN: You did--in order to get your position in the door,

and in order to exit properly--

BURG: Yes. The picture that we're loocking at now, the left

foot is forward in the door and the right foot somewhat drawn

back.

HOFFMAN: That's right. &and kicked with your right foot.

BURG: Kicked ount the door with—-—

HOFFMAM: Out the door

BURG: =--the right foot--

HOFFMAN: The prop stream hit your right foot, turned you a

quarter turn, put your head on your chest, and you went down,

underneath: that=-
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BUORG: Tailplane.

HOFFMAN: --tail. You practiced that hour after hour after

hour, because you wanted to do it right.

BURG: This is--

HOFFMAN: These are towers that are used for harnese training,
You'd ceme out of that and get the full shock of the harneas

on your body. BAnd then you would slide down this cable. It's

a pulley. Here, you can get a better look at it this way. Itk's

a2 pulley.

BURG: Yes. The pulley is on a cable and the pulley's attached
toc a crossbar, and two risers lead, in this case, dewn ta the
chute pack, or where the pack would be. 2aAnd then you're jumping
out of a mock-up of a door, and then you slide down that cable
to the ground. Looks like thege people are perhaps fifty feet

in the air when they jump out of the mock-up.

HOFFMAN: They had two levels, I think we said. These are the

actual towers, now. One is controlled and ane is free,
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BURG: And this is in the third week of C stage, when you come

down either controlled or free.

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: And I believe you told me at the end, that at least one

of these towers had been at the New YorkK Fair in 1939,

BOFFMAN: I think both of them were. Thie is a control; you see,
there are these wires, and this is what they're using at--what is
it? Worlds of Fun? --people sit in this. And this is the way
you start it. In order to first experience coming down, and first
experiencing the shock of-—- Here he is, he'd just landed, Poox,

poor.

BURG: Landed on mats. MNow yvou say that is 2 poor landing?

HOFFMAN: ©h, worst possible--

BURG: Legs spread apart and--

HOFFMAN: You want to land with everything touching and together.

BURG: Uh-huh. I notice that on this centrolled drop, all
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around the periphery of the chute, at perhaps eight different
points, there are guide mechanisms, and so the chuote is open
and its coming down within a circumference formed of about

eight vertieal wires, so the chute ecan't poasibly drift.

ROFFMAN: This is a control. You's go up, the first time youn'd
90 perhaps one hundred feet. Then he'd take you up to two
hundred, or one hundred angd £ifty, and then he'd take Tml]

bp to two fifty, and that's the Eop. And in this yvou would
just come straight down but vou would get the sensation of

coming down. You can see how high up it is there,

BUORG: Yes. right. They are very geod photographs, by the way,

of people doing this,

HOFFMAN: These are the fres towers,

BURG: Yes. And this permits them to take up four chutists

at a time.

HOFFMAN: Yes, per tower, Of course, yvou're heing ocbhserved,
by the instructors all the time. They've got their

megaphones and they're talking to yvou while you're on your
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way down and while you're on your way up. He'll say, "Release
number one." Each one of these arms is numbered. "Release number

one, " then you're watched as vou come down.

BUEG: Yes. We might comment that at that same time, I don't
believe the British, were using towers. They usually were
taking four men at a time, and an instructor; up in a structure
hurg from an cbservation balloon. They'd run the balloon up to
the height they wanted and then the wen would drop out a haole
in the. bottom of this container, with the instructor telling
them what to do. Then it was necessary to winch the balloon
back down, put four more jumpers in it with an instruetor, and

winch it back up to altitude--

HOFFMAK: I think our navy was doing that with the blimps,

weren't they? When they were teaching their riggers to--

BURG: They might have. Now these are the uncontrolled, free

jumps .

HOFFMAN: That's right, free jumps. "m—dﬁ
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BURG: They take you up where your chute is enclosed in a metal
circle and, as you say, then, from the ground they instruct
them to release number one. &and at that point the parachute,
already cpened up, is simply released from its iren ring, and

the jumper falls free.

HOFFMAN: At that point, you have the same sensation as you do in

descent with a parachute from a plane, except for the height,

BURG: &nd he's not feeling an opening shock--

HOFFMAN: HNo, net &t all.

BURG: --but he's bheen--in effect, he's heen getting some af
that when, on these earlier stages, he goes out the mock—-up

door on the harness,

HOFFMAN: This is--these are enormdus wind machines. Recapse
you had to learn to control that conce you hit the ground, and
from varicus positions. Here again, you would lay down and
the chute would be cpened by the machine behind vyou. A couple

men would hold it up until the wind hit it. And then the thing
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would be revved up and then he would tell you whether to come up
left or come up right with your feet. 2and you had toc come uap, yet

on your feet.

BURG: With the wind machine inflating your chute and dragging

YOou .

HOFFMAN: TYes.

BURG: aAnd then yeu had te do the--pull on the proper risers

to——

HOFFMAN: BRun around behind it if you could. Pull it down or

pull in the bottom risers, teo try and empty it of air.

BURG: Make it =spill the air. Was that D stage when--

HOFFMAN: Ko, this all came in portions of B and C stage: D
stage was entirely devoted to the jumping. You may go back
on the harness apparatus for more harness training in guiding,
pulling down the risers, or reaching across to turn your body.
You wanted the wind at your back if you could get it. This

kind ef thing.
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BURG: So if I want toc turn right, then I'l11l reach across my
body with my right hand and grab the left risers, and draw
them, or attempting to draw them, across in front of my body,

and that will rotate my bkody to the right.

HOFFHMAN: Uh, which way is the wind blowing? o.k. Which way is

yonr drift?

BIIRG: Supposing I'm drifting right.

HOFFMAN: And you're locking--suppose you're drifting right ang
if:-you're drifting to the right, but your body isn't facing

to the right, you want to get over thera.

BURG: I want to face the direction of drift, if I possibly

CETl .

HOFFMAN: Yes, wves. Then vou would make your pull. How, there
ara cgther ways of doing it after you set--you take hold of both

of them and you shake them. And you can turn under.

BIIRG: TI've got a pair of risers at each shodlder. sm T

shaking myself around with the front pair, the front two risers?
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BOFFMAN: Well, you wouldn't, you wouldn't be taught to do
that. You'd get that later, [Laughter] You'd get to--

[Laughter]

BURG: Oh.

HOFFMAN: =--but the way you were talking about reaching across,
that would turn you arcund. But your ides was, yvou wanted the
wind at your back if you could get it at your back, Otherwice,
if the wind is any other direction--say it was in your full
face, or coming at yvou from the side--well, vou're not going

ta be in a very good position to get a gocd solid landing on

the balls of your feét, with your feet together.

BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: You see how would yvou do it?

BURG: I'm jumping ahesd in my own mind to all of you ceming
ocut of those planes that night on June the sixth [1244]). ¥You
had precious few seconds, many of you. HNow, I know some were

dropped from heights of fifteen-hundred or two thousand feet,
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but I knew that some of you evidently went cut at two hondred
feet. ¥You had very little time to make the necessary evaluation
of how you were going in, and to work with vour risers, and to try

and get a face-forward-with-the-drift landing.

HOFFMAN: Well, I--You Know=-=

BURG: Which iz probabkly why so many got injured.

HOFFMAN: If there are, 1f there are accounts of guys that ceme

put at two=hundred, they're lucky.

BURG: Yes, there were evidently some whe did that. They said
they came out and their chutes deployed and their feet hit the

ground.

HOFFMAN: I would say it would happen just about that guickly.
You wouldn't even oscillate, I don't think, once. But by this
time, by the time you came out of the planes in Normandy, you
were--all of these things were gonditioned reflexes, if you
worked at it. But, you know, your idea was to get on the ground,

and—--
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BURG: Alive! Uninjured!
HOFFMAN: Yes. Yes.

BURG: As I turn pages here, I see these men are wearing, they

slmost leck like the present day football helmet.
HOFFMAN: Yes.
BURG: And their coveralls and their packs.

HOFFMAN: 1In fact, it was a plastic, interestingly enough, it

was a plastic helmet.

BURG: And the static line, judging from these photographs,
on the main chute, the static lines are sort of bound back and

forth across the back of the chutg—--

HOFFMAN: That's right. f.é"/—‘\"i\‘-

.____

BURG: And then hooked up in vour--

HOFFMAN: During your packing you learned how to sew this back

pack; after you've stowed the chute, left and right, you
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captured each one of the folds of the chute in the elastics.

That's all inside the pack, then you learn how to sew this.

BURG: The little panel in the back of the pack.

HOFFMAN: You learn how to tie the static line to the apex.
And that had te be tied in order that the chute would deploy.
And the rest of the rest of this had to be done correctly, so

that all of this would rip free.

EUBG: Yas,

HOFFMAN: And so this static line, and then vour hook, ism
somewhere where you can reach it. It's about eon your--coming

ovaer your shoulder, it's about here.

BURG: Oh, the hook for that static line.

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BUEG: 1 see. 5S¢ it's over on your left hand side.

HOFFMAN: Depends if the stick is hooking up from that side,

But erdinarily it is en the left Hand side.
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BURG: Uh-huh. So all you had to do then was reach up some-

where around the left side of your covaeralls, vour uniform--

HOFFMAM: Yes. You'd have it where you could get a held of it,

probably hocked on a piece of the--

BURG: And for your training, these are C47's7?

HOFPFMAM: C47.

RURG: Which the British called the Dakota. So your training
jumps are made from the aircraft that you're going to be
dropping out of in combat. I count sixteen men loading the
plane in this photograph. The sticks going into these aircraft

are bigger then the ones that you--=

HOFFMAN: Mo, there should be twenty-four going 1in, twelve on a

stick. But you see, no eguipment, no bundles—-

BURG: Right. Strictly for training. Where in a wartime jump

it'd be more like seventeen.

HOFFMAN: When vou went in, you had bundles in bombk racks
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underneath the wings. Eguipment bundles. Then you had vour

pack, vour ammunition, everything else. And then say, you had to
have a radio or a boat, these extra things; they were either on the
front or they were in a leg pack. B&nd the leg pack, of course,

was released before you hit the ground. At least you tried to.

BURZ: Y¥Yes.

HOFFMAN: You let it drop. It weuld drop maybe fifteen feet and

hit the ground bkefore vou did.

BURG: 1t wasn't secured to you, so that between the Jumpe-—

HOFFMAN: Yes. Yes. It was.

BURG: It's secured at your ankle--—

HOFFMAN: ©On its own line, No——

BURG: But what I'm wondering is, that fifteen or twenty feet

of--

HOFFMAN: It was secured up on your harness,
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BURG: HNow in mid-air you release it from your leqg. Did it

then hang at the--

HOFFMAN: About fifteen feet——

BURG: ==-at the length of fifteen or twenty feet belew Your

body.

HOPFMAN: What you wanted to do was to get that weight off you,
and not hit that ground with that weilght, because it was

attached te one leg. Wow!

BURG: In theory, if things worked right, that struck the ground

fifteen feet before you did, roughly.

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: And you weren't hitting the ground with, say, one-hundred
and fifty pounds strapped to your leg. Rather, that hundred and
fifty pounds struck and then shortly after that, you struck.
Except in those cases where men went out the doors at cne
hendred and fifty, one hundred and eighty miles an hour, when,

oftentimes, those heavy leg loads simply wrenched their bodies
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out the door. At that speed, men got bad backs, wrenched

backs, and landed already injured or even disabled. No way

they eould avoid that, I guess. Alright, I understand. Going
in the aircraft during the training, they would take a couple
of sticks, because you don't have all that additienal stuff
with you. You're seated along the sides of the aireraft, facing

inte the center of theé aircraft--

HOFTMAN: Tt's all there were, just those seats in metal, ¥iou

know, aluminum, A bench, that's gll: they had two benches,

BURG: And these photographs show the preparations——

HOFFMAN: Stand up, hook up. On the command. When you got the
red light, ordinarily, your jump master would give the commands,
And at the stand-up, everyhbody would get up; and at the hook up,
you'd hook your statie line onto the cable that ran from the tail

tc the nose of the plane.

BURG: TInside the aircraft.

HOFFMAN: Inside. You'd start with equipment check. You'd check
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the Fellow in front of you. %¥ou'd check the back of hig; you'd
check your own in the back. A&nd then if there were twelve men
in this stick; "Twelve okay, Eleven okay, Ten okay, Hine okay,"

and =z forth.

BURG: The jump master is the last man to jump?

HOFFMAN: The jump master? It dependz--no, in the training
gituation the jump master simply--unless he's taking his jump
master training--the jump master is simply controlling; he's

an instructor, in the plane. You have a jump master and an
assistant jump master, =so the jump master would go first on the
combat jump, and your assistant jump master is bringing the

gtick forvard. He leads them aut.

BURG: Yes, I see. But in the training situation, the Jjump

master might not jump at all.

HOFFMAN: Ordinarily, he didn't jump at all. Unless he--the
officers took an extra week of jump master training, and of

course, they did jump.
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BURG: %Yes. And then everybody, on the green light--and that

light, by the way, is lodated at the door of the aircraft?

HOFFMAH: That'e right, Your,-=-=

BURG: ©On the left hand side I think.

HOFFMAM: You can get a look at it, and he's looking at it, of

cCoOuUrse.,

BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: You practice hour after hour, the stand up, the hook
up, the eguipment check. When the command is given, "Stand in
the deor!l," that's when you saw the man with his left foot in
the door, with about four inches of his sole hanging over the

edga of the door.

BURG: Yes=.

HOFFMAN: EBoth hands cubside the aireraft on the doer frame, left
and right, head up, locking at the horizon. Then on the "Stand

in the door," everybody moves up close, they're touching. And
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part of that is to get the rest of the stick in a position to
hook up as they move through, because you couldn't put twenty-
four men on. You ecouldn't put the whole stick across that--

hooked up onto that—-

BURG: That cable.

HOFFMAN: Uh huh--into position, because you're going out one

deor, You're not going ocut two doors,

BURG: Alright, Ray, let's jump forward again, because I know

that in soms aircraft this happened on D-Day, early morning--

and seeing that picture of men in the ailrcraft, all hoocked up.

It was on that day. possible for a man in the stick, hooked up--
perhaps a nunmber five man, or the number six man--to take a piece of
flak through the body as he stood there hocked up, and to drop

onto the floor of the aireraft. And at that stage, he's

obviously badly hurt, and vou're not going to take him. But

he's hooked on there with hias statie line. You'wve got to get him

unhooked before the rest of the stick can go.

HOFFMAN: Well, vou carry him on and push him toward the rear of
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the plane, push him gut of the way.

BURG: But his static line is still hooked up there--

HOFFMAN: That's right. That's alright, as long as he's on
his feet and I can keep him moving., He won't interfere with
anything. All the static lines are on the other side of the

door, by this time.

BURG: I'm afraid I don't understand, because--—

HOFFMAN: Static line runs this way. Everybody's hooked up--

BURG: ¥es.

HOFFMAN: ==-on. And you're going down like this. This man
gets hit; so, just hold him; don't try to unhook him. You can,
but you have to delay, and every second you delay, you delay

those men behind vou.

BURG: Yo,

HOFFMAN: Just carry him along. 2And his static line is on, so

you just carry him along, cokay.
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BURG: To the rear of the plane.

HOFFMAN: BHere's the door at the left rear of the plane. It's

to my right front as I'm standing, hooked up to jump.

BURG: I meant, to the door.

HOFFMAN: That's right. Here's the deoor. Just put him over
there in the left rear of the plane near the crew chief. He'll

take care of him after were out.

BURG: And his static line will then sort of run down the line.

HOFFMAN: That's right! Well, it won't go any further than

the rest of them. The rest of the lihes are all--

BULG: Yes, I see.

HOFFMAN: --now, all bunched right here, and they're going out
the door and around. I don't know if we've got a picture of

ik,

BURG: They're towards the back of the book, I think. We've

got a shot of them going out, and here you see the static lines



Col. Ray Hoffman, 8-4-78, Interview #2 Page 77

going out through the doorway.

HOFFMAN: There we are, there we are, zeel?

BURG: So we shove him back here to the tail--

HOFFMAN: Let's put him back There.

BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: NWow if you worked out your--well, usually your crew
chief was somewhere in this area; he could help you out. The

aireraft ecrew chief.

BURG: Yes. Who was not going to jump.

HOFFMAN: No. He could help you out. S5it him down, lay him

don——
N
%)
BURG: Yes. 3 rf
Nzt

HOFFMAN: But try and not delay those men behind you.

BURG: Yes. Yes. Where you would have trouble is if the man
is badly hit and goes down. And, of course, with all the gear

on, your weight has been increased a hundred and fifty pounds;
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he weighs three-hundred plus pounds with all his gear. Then
you've got to make a guick decigicn. Unhook him, or if you
think you can get him on his Feet, staggering back to the
hack of the plane to get ocut of your way, you would do that.
But your peint is that every second that yvou use in making a

decision to pick him up, ©I trying to drag him--

HOFFMAN: I had decided that this would have been my method of
handling it. That I would carry him forward, rather then delay

thosea men that were behind me.

A
-
3
-\_\: [SLTE T .’Hf
-

-~

BURG: Because we have to figure if things are right, the
Lircraft ig probably doing about one—hundred and ten miles an
hour over the ground. Some of those jumps on D-Day, as we

wnow, were made at one-hundred and Zifty, one-hundred and eighty
miles an hour, so each second that you delay, trying to take
care of that man that's been hat, translates into yvard after
verd of separation on the ground between the man ahead of him

and vou standing behind him.

HOFFMAN: Figure--they ' re supposed to t+ravel at ninety--but

figure one-hundred miles an hour, and heow far that alireraft can
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travel in one second.

BURG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: And if you could, you didn't want te increase the

distance unduly.

BURG: Yes. Because it's night time. It's going to be hard
encugh to assemble, anyway. And every second aof delay
translates inte fifty or saventy-five yards of distance bétwesn
each of you on the ground.

[Ed. note: At 110 miles Per hour, a one second delay between
jumpers would result in = fifty-four yard separation betwaen the
two jumpers on the ground. ]

HOFFMAN: I don't remembar anybody saying that they were

unhooking people, but they probably did.

BURG: It isn't really very c¢lear in the books.

HOTFMAN: You see, even that would be bad. You go to unhook him

and suppose he drops on the fleor?

BUEG: Yes.
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HOFFMAN: Now, vou run the risk of somebody tripping over him,
and so forth, But if ¥you can get him forward, by holding ento
his webbing or something else; if you can get him forward, get
him up from under foot, but if he's really down, you have ta
unfock him, because his static line will foul everyone behini
him if he isn't unhocked. You have s lot better way of doing

it.

BURG: My understanding is that a lightly wounded man, lightly

inju%red man, would probably jump.

HOFFMAN: Most men wanted to jump to get out of that plane.
BURG: Yes, /"_"“s\
HOFFMAN: They didn't want to stay in there. Rt

BURG: Here we're seeing photographs of more of the practice
jumps. And these are at a pretty decent altitude, as far as

I can tell,

HOFTFMAN: Daytime, too.
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BURG: Daytime jumps. And then things dealing with signals

and codes and the radios--

HOFFMAN: This would be, probably—I don't know. Whatever it

gays there.

BURG: Maintenance of communications equipment,

HOFFMAN: Yes. These are calm old boys,

BURG: Well, Ray, surely that wasn't part of ¥Your jump training,
was it? I mean, the things I'm locking at here ars Jquite
specialized. The ump master training involved the use terrain,
the use of aerial photos, the use of mapa, and so forth, and wou
did it day and night. You picked out the-=-you identified your
drop zone and seo forth, This is what veour officer epend his

time doing. That's why he made that sixth Jumg .

BURG: Yes, before he's dualified,

HOFFMAN: He bets his five regular jumps. And he has one more

wook of——

| Interruption Side 2]
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BURG: Does every officer take that jump master training?
HOFFMAN: Well, at that time every officer did.

BURG: Alright then, the picture I have of you is that vou're
newly commissioned out of OCS5, a second lieutenant, ¥You do the
four stages--four weeks, really--of this jump school that we'wve

looked at here. You do five qualification jumps.,
HOFFMAN: Qualification Jumps.

BURG: But you're going to do a sixth ane because vou are an

cfficer.

HOFFMAN: Some of the NCO's were in for jump master training,
but I know it was a requirement for the officer ta take the Jump

master training.
BURG: And you take it. Doss that take an additional week?
HOFFMAN: One week. Yesg. L

BURG: An additional week beyond D stage, pe
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HOFFMAN: That's right. Because you had tactical jumps, that

is, with eguipment. ¥You had night jumps; you had--

BURG: WNow these are jumps that only the officers made?

HOFFMAN: Only the jump master classes made.

BURG: Night and tactical jumps.

HOFFMAN: Yas, yes.

BURG: The rest of the men are going to get that kind of

thing--night jumpa and that kind of thing--later,

HOFFMAN: In the unit. In the unit.

BURG: Yes. So, when you finished that f£ifth week successfully,
what happens then? Is there some kind of little ceremony that

you go through?

HOFFMAN: When you finished your gualifiecation Jjumgs, you

received your badge.

BURG: Yeur jump wings.
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HOFFMAN: Yes. There wasn't any particular ceremony for the

jump master training. That was just part of what you did,

BURG: 8o you'd already got your jump wings on after the fifth--

HOFFMAN: After the Ffifth jump.

BURG: =-=-successful jump. And then finished the fifth week.

Then what happens, once you've done that fifth week?

HOFFMAN: Well, then there was a selection made, HNow, I forget
whether people were sent to communiecation schesnl or anything
else; but I know there was a demolition school and I was
selected and sent to demclition school. ThHat's another three

weaks ,

BURG: MAll officers?

HOFFMAN: HNo. No. Officers and NCO's, if T remember correctly.

BURG: Alright, let me ask you this. You were selected to q o
to that particular schocl. There was a communication scheol.

Is it safe to think that all eofficers who are passing through
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this jump training are going to be sent to one school or ancther?

HOFFMAN: I don't think so. I think a lot of them went directly
out to the pool for assignment to an established airborne unit,

I suppose they had guotas or something.

BURG: Yes. But you went to demolitions.

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: Held at Ft. Benning? Was that where the school wasz?

HOFFMAN: It was at Benning, but I think it was in the Alabama

area, but I'm just not sure. It was at Beaning alright.

o

_ﬁ?\
BURG: And it's three weeks? ffx fi)

T

HOFFMAN: Three weeks. Classes again, graded tests. In
fact, in demolition school the graded tests came st the end

of each dav's work and--—
BURG: Written test?

HOFFMAN: --written test,
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BURG: Yes. pAs far as demolitiens are concerned, vou'rae
learning te handle various kinds of explosives and detonators,
new plastic explosives, wvaricus pieces of equipment like this,

so that yeu can blow bridges——

HOFFMAN: Doesn't seem to me that we had the plastic stuff.
We had the guarter pound blocks of TNT. We were learning how
to carve those things and make a shaped charge, among other
things. Of course, you used the dynamite; yvou worked with the

detonator.

BORG: And fuseg and--

HOFFMERN: You learned how fast the fuses would burn. ¥You
learned what size charges were going to be needed for the

different types of bridges.

BURG: Steel, concrete, wood. And where to place the charges,

I assume.

HOFFMAN: Right. You know, yeu actually went out and did

this kind of thing but your classroem work was involved with
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the formulas. If it was an eight inch beam, what's it going
to take to cut ity Where's the best place to drep the span,
¥ou Know? Learning, for instance, where the greatest amcount
of destruction ecould be made for a communications center.

What do you go in anpd "get"? What do You want to destroy?

BURG: T see. So, for example, if the Germans are operating
a telephone exchange in a building, vou don't want te waste your
time; you want to pPlace a charge that will do maximum damage,

¥ou can't proceed at random on anything like that,

HOFFMAN: Then, later on, You figured cut, "what on earth 4id
wa wreck a telephone exchange for when we could have used the
whole thing?", and then ¥ou were very gelective and careful
about how you did that. You learnesd how to drive a tank, You

learned how to steal = tank. [Laughter]

BURG: As part of this work in demolitiosns?y

HOFFMAN: You learned how to drive a locometive, because yvou might
want to steal one, and vou might be in a position to deo it. ¥ou

learned how to fire enemy weapons. You did the whole schmear.
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BURG: But not necessarily during that three wesk—-

HOFFMAN: Yeos.

BURG: --during the demolitions work?

HOFFMAN: During the demolitions work.

BURG: 8o we, we must think af all of you in that course, that
three week eourse, going off, getting inteo a tank, and vou're

given a familiarization course on how to start it--

HOFFMAN: Start it, drive G s gl

BURG: —-drive it.

HOFFMAN: Actually drive it, the whole works'

BURG: Locomotive the same way

HOFFMAN: The whole business, Loocomotive the same way. Yes.
Big steam jobs and other types of vehicles. And this was just
addinhg . another rescurce to the skill of the airborne soldier

50 that when he was there, he ecould make uze of what he was
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able te lay his hands on. Because he wouldn't have tanks

of his own.

BURG: Did that three weeks course also inelude familiarization,
for example, with how you might immobilize, let us say, a

German B8 gun?

HOFFMAN: wWhat will it take? What kind of charge? How quick?
Where do you put it? Put it in the breech? Put it in the

barrel? What de you do with it? vYes,

BURG: You learned also something about hew to fire_—

HOFFMAN: How o immobilize a tank.

BURG =-German wesapons, for example,

HOFFMAN: Yes, fire of enciny weapons. You probably--1 don't
know how many weapons, but we had them all, I think., at least

all that were captured at that point.

BURG: 8So you actually had the German Weapons there?

HOFFMAN: vYes.
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BURG: And when they instructed you, vou could learn how
to feed German ammunition into a German machine gun; how to

load and fire a German artillery piece,

HOFFMAN: I thought the training was very good.

BURG: And, given the kind of reasoning vou had used in
selecting airborne, that three weeks must have been a pretiy

interesting--and, to you, a very worthwhile kind of training.

HOFFMAN: Yes, oh, 1t was. 1 would say the demolition was-—-
of course; it was very interesting. You were always wide
awake, because the instructors were keeping you awake, you
know. After all, they're handling the things right in the
classroom, even though they've got dummies, they've also got

live ones.

BURG: Yes., Live charges.

HOFFMAN: But, finally, you had te take the live charges in
your hands and you had te learn how to put the thing teogether.

Yes, it was a good course.
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BURG: By the time the three weeks is over, you have zlso

blown up some things, 1 Supposa?

HOFFMAN: Oh, boy!

BURG: Because you'we taken it all the way--

HOFFMAN: And your final tactical jump-—which I think might

have been eight or ten, maybe ten--was fully loaded, with

your field gear, and vour Weapon, and your demolition things, and
a8 assault against a3 fortified position, in which yeu had to

klace the charges. 80, you learned the whole thing.

BURG: Now at the end of that course, when you'd successfully

passed out of that, were you then assigned te a unie?

HOFFMAN: Yeg.

BURG: Alright, I don't want to go there for a moment. What

Or go--do you remember vour first jump?

HOFFMAN: Yes.
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EURG: Do you?

HOFFMAN: VYes.

BURG: How did it strike vou?

HOFFMAN: Of course, you've been, you've been--you've spent
weeks on physical conditioning and vou'we spent--you know,
you've put in all this time at oCg and everything else. vaou
are motivated. And you spent days in learning all of the
sequences in the stand up, the hook up, and stand in the door,
How, "stand in the door"-—-yvou weren't walking: it's a shuffle,
with the left foot forward, and the right foot comesg down and
then your left foot gees: to that door, with about four inches of

the--

BURG: You're desctibing a left leg swinging around to the

daor .

HOFFMAN: Yes. And so ¥ou stand right on the threshold of
that door and your hands are outside the doer, and you're

lecking. And when you touch--that's 2ll he does: he 5ays,
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"Go." and he touches your leg. It's instantaneous, berause
¥yoeu've been doing this in the tower=s, and in the mock-ups, and
everything else., v¥You kick your right leg--and I remember all
this-~you kick your right leg forward, try to come up as far as
the hip. But what's happening is +that that slipstream, from
that propeller on the metor on that side, hits that leg and
furns you, immediately, a quarter turn to the rear of the
aircraft. You duck your head, put vyour head=--your chin on your
chest--vour hands are open but on your reserve chute. Your feet
and knees are together. Kow, you're going; vou're dropping

down and passing under the tail, and vou're beginning your

count: "one thousand"--you did it as "One thousand and one, one
thousand and twa, one thousand and three," It's neisy. It was N3 igy
in the aircraft: that C47, without any lining in it, is @ noisy

thing anyway, And the statie lines are clacking, and the, of

course, the motor, and then the slipstream: bey, you feel it in

your face and you feel it on your body! But you begin your

count: "One thousand and one, one thousand and two, one thousand

and three." And you ¥now that at one thousand and three, you want to

feel something., You want to feel the chute! [Laughter] vyeu



Col. Ray Hoffman, 8-4-78, Interview 2 Page 94

can feel the thing being ripped--

BURG: Vibration as it's coming out of itg--

HOFFMAN: Yas, Ripped out of the--back pack being ripped off,
That part that was sewn on, that little panel, ang then you
can feel each one of thoge things coming loose that were put

in there with the elastics,

BURG: The folded-over risers and the chute panels-——

HOFFMAN: Yes. The whole business, But the thing that yeoyu're
walting for, the thing vou're waiting--vou'ra waiting for that
tug! And if your position is right, then ¥You get--the chute
16 opening Up--being dragged out of the pack and opening up—-

but it's going over your head--

BURG: oh really?

HOFFMAN: ——toward the Tear of the aireraft. 7 don't know if
they've got any good pictures over here. I guess not. Jngt: R

find seme for yeu. It's opening up--

BURG: Here, these People show--
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HOFFMAN: There we are. See it? See it?
BURG: Yesg,

HOFFMAN: See it? It's going over your head. Okay, now,
you're waiting to feel a tug, and when you feel that tug you
know that blessed thing is Gpen. Immediately you leok up. You
want to find out if you'we got any blown pénals, Is it really
open? Have you got a riser--ghroud line, rather--over? &and

it gives you--it's called a "Mae West"—— [ Laughter)

BURG: Because the chute almost is divided in half into two

smaller chutes,.

HOFFMAN: ¥es. And you don't want that. You want to make

sure it's open. If it's open, finey if it isn't then yvou got to
go and make your decision to go for wyour reserve. And then,
it's guiet. Just guietness. And you're fleating: be even
hetter then when yvou camé off the free tower; you're just
floating, gquiet, because--now you're excited. And you want to
talk te that other gquy. And you know if you talk, that

instructor on the ground is 90ing to know you're talking. But
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sometimes you talk,

BURG: ¥You were not permitted to talk in mid-air>

HOFFMAN: No vak yak. No yak yak. Because that's +o keep
everything--later on You did, of course. But a great, great
feeling! The great feeling, of course, is that the blessed

thing is open.

BURG: Yes. [Laughter]

HOFFMREN: But then the thing was, it was gquiet. Later on, oh,
after I came back,--5f courae these are silk chutes, naw. Theay
open just, they open with a pepl  Hylon chutes open differently,
but we only had silk. Nylon were given to the combat units.

For training, we had the silk ones. But later on, after I came
back as a Chaplain, then you had the big, oh, the big carco
planes, and you would tailgate off the back end of those after

they opened them up.

BURG: The wiole back cepens like a clam shell,

HOFFMAN: And on those, vyou just ran down and jumped over the
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edge, vou know, and all this. There was nothing like Jumping

from that C47! But it was quiet and you're underneath the

thing. And then, of course, you've got all the things that you've
been teld vou got to do. You've done them on the towers and sa
forth here. Looking. You have sane time to look around and

you see tiny people on the ground. Everything looks little.

The trucks look little, and the--now then, you come to the
realization that, "Hey! You better quit enjoying this, because
you've got to get ready to make the landing." By this time

your oscillations have calmed down and you're pretty much

T v 3
Wi s
e

just sort of mOvVing, moving across. If the wind is gentle,
and it mostly was in a training situation--about one hundred
feet up, now, vou prepare for yvour landing. Angd you decide
whether your drift is such that the wind is at your back or

not. If it isn't,you adjust yourself and vou get it at yvour
back. Y¥You get yvour feet tagether, knees slightly bent; up to
the risers, hold on. But you den't look downdt That's the Fatal
mistake. And vou're locking off, oh, maybe thirty, forty deqree
angle you're lacking off, trying not to let your brain know

when your feet touch the ground se¢ you won't stiffen and break

something,
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BURG: Yes, I see. That's why no looking down.

HOFFMAN: That's the most difficult thing to do! Especially
if you've had any hard landing. In that firse landing, wvou
don't know what +o expoct, Bo it's g Jey! You just come in:
it was a nice landing. But when You get a bad landing, then
¥ou know how hard it can be. Anyway. Yes, I remember the

first. I remember everything on that plane.

BURG: Was the second Jump more difficult or easjier?

HOFFMAN: Well, the second Jump, now you Know what's going.
There's nothing--veu still go through, I think everybody in

the world goes through, the sweating-out peried, But increasingly
the landing becomes the concern, because you know the wind

isn't always going to be nice and gentle as it was on the

instructien jumps, and so forth.

BURG: They'd pretty well see to that I suppose.

HOFFMAN: Well, the rule was=-I believae the wind could pot he
more than 12 knots; I think they would zbort a flight that

was in the air. They would cancel any coming off the ground,




Col. Ray Hoffman, 8-4-78B, Interview #2 Page 99

But you had to get te a3 point where you could, and many times
you did, handle that wind. Yes, they tried, they tried to--
and the safety features are still an today. The wind is tested

and--
BURG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: —-but vyou know, you can test it at one time, and at an
altitude, we'll 5ay, of two hundred feet aor three hundred feet,
¥you might have a different set of wind currents. The shape of
the land--we Jumped in Turkey one time--the shape af the land
will give you some sparks, I'll tell You. There were two--it
was a valley, and then the valley broke into a fork and the

two went up this way. But the wind whistled down these two and
came into the long valley where the drop zone was. You could
measure in the drop zone: it would be just fine, except the
SUStS were coming down these two valleys that entered into

by
this area. There zre things like that will-- ﬂ;frr-a

&?.'
BURG: But by and large, I weould suppose, by the time vou're

taking these qualification jumps, people that have problems with |
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heights--fear of heights--have been weedad out. I would expect
¥You aren't going to have very many refusals to jump in the

five qualifying Jumps .,

HOFFMAN: Ho., By that time ¥ou have suffered so much--yvou've
gone through so much PE, and packing, and everything else,
apparatus work, hand to hand combat—-that, ¥ou're going to

make it, if you've made it that Far.

BURG: Yes. You'll jump,

HOFFMAN: Yes. There were some. I just don't remember any
refusals at--there were none in the sticks that were suited

Up in my area. There probably were some.

BURG: Yes, somebody who had screwed his courage up as far

as it would go and made it part way, and then that was it.

HOFFMAN: You really think that you've got it all put together
but, boy, that last push. 1In a way., it's a fear of the unknown,
and it's a fear of doing something that you're--it's unusual

for a man to do,
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BIIRG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: You'wve heen given a grealt amount of confidence.

You've learned how the chute ji= made, haw it operates. ang
you've tried it out from two hundred and fifty feet. T would

say that most of the refusals would have come prior to this.

And they wouldn't really have heen connected with the fear of the
heights. They would hawve been connected with, "I don't want

the harassment, I don't want any more of this pPE--

BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: =-any more of the pain, ™

BURG: When you are assigned to a unit--can you remember the

approximate date? You finished the demolition course--

HOFFMAN: That would have been in August and September. September
of '43, I went to ¢ Company, lst Battalion, Five Forty~second,

Ist platoon. We had two lieutenants per platoen, and the other
second lieutenant ranked me by a few days so he got to bhe the
platoon leader, and 1 got to be the assistant platoon leader.

The company commander was 24 years old, and a lst lieutenant.
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BURG: ¥Yes=m, Five, the five--

HOFFMAN: Five Forty-second.

BURG: -=Fiwve Forty-second parachute infantry battalion?

HOFFMAN: Uh, regiment .

BURG: Regiment. SOYYY, regiment.

HOFFMAN: This was the great Colonel Ryder.

BURG: R-I-D-E-RT?

HOFFMAN: R-¥Y. Same man who lead Lhe units into Sicily and got

shot up so badly. Fine guy .

BURG: Although you joined +that regiment, the regiment itself

was not part of an airborne division at that stage?

HOFFMAN: Calonel Byder trained this unit, put it together from
replacement types, and so forth. Passed the Army ground test,
that every combat unit goes through., And then they broke it

up to be used as replacements,
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BURG: Mot an uncommon thing in those davs.

HOFFMAN: I can remember him, officer's call one morning in

the theater—--filled the theater with all the officers in the
regiment--I ecan remember him coming out on that stage, having

to make that announcement. fTearsin his eyes. Good: spirit.

We put our--we received our volunteers out they were not yet

in jump school. So we took them through the Jump school training.
We did the PT and the lectures, and these things, and then took them
into the handa of the jump school instructors and they put them
through the last or final stages of their jump training. we

want all the way through. Tactical Jumps and field problems,

and all of the testing that the Army does for a large unit, a
regiment, battalion, company. All the range firing, the whole
thing. They were ready, They were ready. By that time, they'd
changed their minds hetween types of airborne--airborne operations
are going to be tried. And. they've decided that they're going

to stay with just the two--of course, you don't find this out
until years later--101st and the B2nd [airborne divisicns]. The

17th {airborne] isn't on the scene vet,
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BURG: Right. And, of course, the 13th [airborne] is gquite
late. It doesn't get over to Europe until 1945, the last

two, three months. They're there, but I don't think they ever
went in as a unit, but parts of the 13th were used in various

places.

HOFFMAN: fThe 11th [airhﬂrne] ig out in the Pacific, but it

1sn't really put together as a big unit,

BURG: The Five Forty-second was statiopned at FL. Benning?

HOFFMAN: No, we were in the Alabama area. Sece, Benning
overlaps both Georgia and Alabama, 20 we were ip the frying

Fan area and across the other side of the Chattahoochee River.

BURG: You took these men thas were assigned to the Five Forty-
second, and the officers and non-com cadre trained the untrt, and
then suddenly Ryder's got to call you all together and tell yvou
that they're breaking up the unit. 1 can understand what sz
disappointment that would be. If you'wve built morale in a unit

and given it spirit--
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HOFFMAN: Well, and they liked him. They liked him. He'd
been on the Sicily thing, and he was one of these unusual
men who could run, and he ran with the whole regiment. This

kind of thing. He had great visibility. You always saw him.

BURG: Yes. What happens once that decision has been made?
What happens to all of you? The trocps, are they to be
assigned to differing units? But, now, what about your non-

ccm and your officer cadre? What happens to Vouzs

HOFFMAN: We are all destined for the Army Ground Replacement
Foal in Pt. Meade, Maryland, those that are going over to
Burope. 5o we're broken up intc units and we get on the troop

trains and we go to Ft. Meade.

BURG: When you go as units, yeu're going just as casual

COMDANigs=——-

HOFFMAN: We're going as nothing! W®ot only that, but no Jump

pay. You're a casual and, therefore, you don't get paid.

BURG: And at that point you, personally, don't command
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anything. You're not the assistant leader of anything,

really—

HOFFMAR: Well, on the move--

BURG: --execept a casual company on a troop train. How's morale?

HOFFMAN: After we arrive there--Terrible. Disappointed. When
we arrived there, then of course you're just funneled off to

an encrmous officer pool. And you're waiting for an assignment.

BURG: Ryder, too?

HOFFMAN: You know, I forget where he went. HNo, he didn't go
to Eurcpe, if T remember. But he stayed, maybe in the planning
end of the thing. It'd be a shame to loose the expertise that

theay had in that man.

.II" ol uu'-"'.-"::r.
BURG: Yes. Well in the pool--this would be at the end of 1943,

Hovember, sonewhere in there?

HOFFMAN: Yes. It would have had-==let's see. We, uh, September,

Cctober, November. It would hawve taken us three months to
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put the unit together. End of November, Oh, I don't come up

that far.

BURG: How long were you in the pool, roughly? I assume the

next move was that they shipped you overseas?

HOFFMAN: TRight. We were being put together for shipment on
the Santa Rosa and we were, of course, grouped inte companies

and platoons.

BURG: Again just for administrative purposes.

HOFFMAN: That's right.

BURG: This is not a wviable combat unit; it's just an assemblage

of men grouped up for ease of handling.

HOFFMAN: Yes.
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COLOWEL HOFFMAM: Yes, well we traveled by night.

DR, BURG: You remember it as being by truck.

COLONEL HOFFMAN: By truck. And--yes, I know we came by truck.
I know we came by truck to--I guess every movement from the
port was by truck:; it may not have been. We were eclosed in,
no pateches, no beots. HNo identification whatscever that you
were coming in as a--to build up the airborne units. And when

we arrived in the camp at Hempstead Marshall--

DR. BURG: Two words?

COLONEL HOFFMAN: Hempstead Marshall, yes. That is the estate,
owned by a Boston lady who had married an Englishman, being
used as the base camp for the Five Oh First outside of Newbury,

England.

DR. BURG: Wgould that be H-e-w-b-g-r-r-y

COLOMEL HOFFMAN: ==hb-u
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BURG: —-B-u-r-y

HOFFMAN: Like in Wewbury, Massachusets.

BURG: Right.

HOFFMAN: And when we arrived--it was just a tent camp, that's
all. About the only thing that--the only thing that was a

Wissen hut--you know, the old metal--was the latrites--

BURG: HN-i-g-g-g=-n?

HOFFMAN: Yes. --the latrines, with the showers and so forth,
The rest of it was tent. We dropped our bags, and so forth, and
went and got a cup of coffee. We were sitting around with the
men in the section and [ laughter] here comes "Axis Bally" cn--

on the radio, "Welecome!", and starts reading names |Laughter],

BURG: S0 you were;:1've heard stories like that —-

HOFFMAN: We could have died! The care with which the whole
thing was taken. Your [jump] bools were at the very bottom of

your duffelbag; you know, your pride and job [ laughter]; and



Colonel Raymond Hoffman, 8-11-78, Interview #3 Fage 110

every patch was cut off. You'd never displayed your wings;

| laughter] and here she had the whole thing -

BURG: Now, literally, you new arrivals got off the trucks,

went in to have coffee _.

HOFFMAN: I dropped my--they had a series of smaller tents

in the officers’' row, and then they had the company tents,

and so forth, where the men were--and went by, got a cup of
cuffee. I was sitting around with the men in the section, and

here she comes ——

BURG: BShe wasz on the air; and identifies thisz new shipment,

this new arrival, identifies Hempstead Marshall——

HOFFMAN: Yes, these new arrivals., Welcomed them here. | laughter|
BURG: -- and gives your bloody names!
Ilﬂ'.r_‘h.
HOFFMAN: [Laughter] and the whole thing! o
ST

BURG: Oh, boy! Oh boy.
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HOFFMAN: You began to wonder just what was going on.

BEURG: Yeah. Well, you're the first one, I think, I've talked
to that had that experience and could tell me, "Yes, 1

gat there and I heard her saying it."

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: And vou people recognized the names that she was

reading off?

HOFFMAN: Yeah, yeah.

BURG: Did you know, then, when you went in and got that
coffee, that you were going to be with some particular bhattalion

of the 501st?

HOFFMAN: 1 knew I was going to be with the intelligence
section. Ben West was the (or Ben Wiecks, wacks, wax), was it

Wast or Wacks, West.

BURG: 1 would say West, but we'll check that.

HOFFMAN: Ben West, old Southern Loulsiana boy.
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BURZE: Was he S-=37

HOFFMAN: No, 2, S5-2. You see, the only reascn they wanted the
lieutenants were to lead the recon, enly it wasn't called recon
then, it was called scouting and patrolling., And to set up the
G.F.'s and do a little patrolling. I thought it was = fascinating

busginess, I tell you. We'd work,

BURG: Did you know, by the way, before vou arrived there that
that would be your assignment, or was it given to you as soon

as you got off the truck.

HOFFMAN: I think it was--they may have known, but I think we
didn't get it until whoever was yvour guide or YOUr SDONSoOr was

taking you over to your tent. I think Ben was there.

BURG: 5o that that night. 1 assume vou arrived after dark,

or do you remember that?

HOFFMAN: We did a lot of traveling by dark but if I remerber,

we arrived shortly after noon at Hempstead Marshall.




Colenel Raymond Hoffman, B-11-78, Interview #3 Page 113

BORG: So there was plenty of time for you toe be taken to

meet him and tald of this-—-

HOFFMAN: Yeah. It seems to me they had had their chow, and we
had had rations or scmething on the way, but the old coffee,
you know, they had made in one of those big, twenty-gallon

[Laughter] pots!

BURG: Remember 1t? I have the burntout inesides to prove it!

[Laughter]

HOFFMAN: That was always on, you know; the cooks always had

that, so—

BURG: In fact, 1t had been on since December B, 1941! [Laughter)

HOFFMAN: Probably from World war 1 ! They'd never cleaned it!
[Laughter] But, it tasted good, right at that point anyway.
It's vou know,; it's pretty damp and miserable at that time of

YERT——

EURG: Sure, because your--
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HOFFMAN: --in England.

BURG: --there in the winter time, really, or the early spring,

March, was it, that you got there?

HOFFMAN: I think March. We traveled twenty-five days, I think,
by boat so it was a very slow convoy; Enormous, enormous Convoy.
It seems to me, yes, late February or on inte March. I think
we got there in March. But here, what I was doing was getting

acquainted with everybody.

BURG: Yes. Do you happen to remember what West said to you

when you met him for the first time?

HOFFMAN: Well, old West was a very, very friendly and

exuberant guy! He had a, he had a laugh that began down at

his ankles, you know, and just--and you had to listen very
carefully to what he said, because he had that wonderful Louisiana
accent, or something. Primarily, it was, you know, “Welcome,
we're glad to have you." Gee, I don't know his exact words.

T can see him now, wawving, "Come this way! Come this way!" He'd

taken me over to my tent and-——
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BURG: You were coming in to serve with, or even command, an

existing unit?

HOFFMAN: The 2-section of the Five-Oh-First HRegiment,

BURG: Was there a scouting and patrelling platoon?

HOFFMAN: They did it. No.

BURG: You were there to form it?

HOFFMAK: The S<2 section did it., The 5=2 section did the--

each battalion=-2 had his own section.

BURG: Ah. Then mavbe yvou'd better explain that to me, because

I'm not grasping it, and anvone using this might not--

HOFFMAN: PRegimental -2 has his regimental intelligence section,

made up of an assistant -2--

BURG: That was you.

AOFFMAN: Yes, 1t may of--no--but, you know, we're always

beefed over in personnel in a combat situation.
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BURG: Higher than the Table of Organization would call for?

HOFFMBN: I'm guite sure. I think I, perhaps, was the only
officer at that time. But you had draftsmen, you had--oh,
I know, sure, of course! You had Meyer, Captain,--I guess,
than, lieutenant—--who was the interpreter in the interpreter

section; you had draftsmen—-

BURG: M-a-y—e-r?

HOFFMAN:; M-e-y—e-r, 1 think. I'll have to lock him up-—-

BURG: But pronounced Meyer.

HOFFMAN: 1I'11 have to look him up. Wonderful German kid, and
he had his enlisted interpreter. BAnd these were all trained
at language school, and soc forth, you see. They taught them

you Know-——

BURG: "German kid" in the zense he was German-Amecrican.

HOFFMAN: German, oh, German-American, yves! And then we had

a8 Jewish——
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BURG: And his language skills, French, as well as German? Do

you remember?

HOFFMAN: He was primarily a German interpreter, I forget
whether he spocke some French. I think he did, but primarily
a German interpretser. Because this was the rOW section, vou

see. They were going to do the interrogation.

BURG: Interrogation of priscners, sure,

EDFFMAN: He had an enlisted man by the name of Schwartz, a
Jewish kid from Breoklyn, and they were a good team. Now
later con, he may have had scmecne else with him, and T have
to check on that. But this would be the kind of set-up that

the regimental-2 would have.

BURG: I =ee. And cartographers, do you think, or just

draftsmen?

HOFFMAN: Well, they were, of courss, trained hoth ways. OfF
course, he had clerk typists, and these kids could do anything

under the worst kind of conditions. They had to make the



Colonel Raymond Hoffman, B-11-78, Interview #3 page 118

overlays--some of those overlays that you have in that file
were mede on & gelatin-—you remember that poured gelatin?

well, they were made on that thing.
BURG: You often got a purplish coler out of that.

HOFFMAN: 1t was purple going on: Yes, when it was put on.
Those kids were magicians, they could make that stuff work

in the field: no humap Peing can make that stuff work in

the field [Laughter]: those kids could: 8o, that's the

kind of section. Your patrolling, your draftsmen, your
interpreter section, were all part of the regimental-2's e

intelligence section. \E _uf

BORG: So we would have to figure that included in that group--—
part of the 5-2 gperation--would be at least one officer,;
vourself, for example; non-—coms; and enlisted men whose job

mainly was the patrolling and reconnaissance aspects of it.

HOFEMAN: Scouting and patrolling, that's right. What would
be called today, recen: excepk on the jump, and for days

afterward, yvou didn't have any vehicles, so You did it all on

foot.
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BURG: Yes, and as I think you may have noticed--I certainly
did when I went through the overlays that we're referring to
of the Five-Oh-First Regiment--there are overlays showing patrol

routes.

HOFFMAN: Constant.

BUBEG: ——acrosg—-

HOFTMAN: Constant.

BURG: =--various areas of ground to test out what is there.

HOFFMAM: Major Allen was the -3, HMNow, Seneral Allern. The 38ir
mobile concept was his baby. He was a major at that time and was
the —-3. 1In every briefing, there was always the patrol, the
patrelling routes, and so forth. That was constant. 3ll the

batfalion sections were out on patrols.

BEURG: 5o you met, presumably, that day or the next day, yon
would have been introduced to the noncoms and enlisted personnel

that you would be working with.
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HOFPIMAN: Yes, that afternoon.

BURG: That afternoon.

HOFFMAN: Yes, that afternoon. I would szay it was shortly

sfter 1:20, Z2:00, somewhere in there.

BURG: MNow were these personnél--or West, for that matter--
combat-experienced? Had scme of them served with the 82nd

[airbhorne] , for example, in Sicily.

BOFFMAN: HNo, you Souldn't get, to my knowledge--there may
have been some in the regiment, but not to my kKnowledge.
But the .thing that they had going for them was that they
were the gld hands from the days of Camp Tacoa in Geprgia,

when the Five-0Oh-First was activated.

RURG: aAnd the Five=0Oh=First was one of the first, 1if not the
first, parachute regiment activated in the American Army, isn't

it?

HOFFMAaM: Well, I think so.
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BURG: I think it was.

BOFFMAN: You know, why it was ever left off the official rolls

of the 10lst Airborne, I will never understand that.

BURG: You were always "asttached"--

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: -—--—not assigned?

BEOFFMAN: ©h, Lee said, yvou know, it was a mistake, an, an

oversight; it was a tragic oversight.

BURG: Although the division itself, evidently, in the things
thet are published under divisional auspices, always goes out
of its way, it seems to me, to say the Five-Dh=First was attached,
but in the eyes of the division there was never any doubt that the
Five=0h-First was an important and integral part of that division.

Thoere's no way around that!

HOFFMAN: It keeps vou=--it keeps you--it keepe morale up. What

wag the first anit deactivated? Five-Oh-First!
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BURG: At the end of the war?

HOFFMAN: Absolutely! Without any I, if's and's or but's.
Break'em up! So, yes, they said that., But if it was an oversight,

it was never corrected.

BURG: TIt's a bit of a sidetrack, but would any of that have

been due to Howard Johnson's persconality, do you think?

HOFFMAN: It's-—-that may be the hest explanation involved. It

seems--1t =zeems tragic that that would be so.

BURG: And I should say for the record that Howard Johnson was
the commander of the Five-0Oh-First Parachute Regiment, until he
was killed in Holland, and he did have the reputation of being
pretiy abrasive, and setting very high standards, and rigorously

holding te them.

HOFFMAN: He never did anything that he didn't--when he gaid it
was a regimental run, he led the regiment. And if vou saw an
airborne regiment running cross country, there he was out in

front. [laughter] I imagine he had a hundred jumps before
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Formandy even started; by the time he was killed, maybe, he
had 150-200 jumps. But I'm sure he had a hundred jumps before

Hormandy started. That was too bad.

BURG: Yes, if that were, if that were the cause of--

HOFFMAN: fThat's my, that's my feeling.

-

&
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BUORG: But getting back onto our main theme--we'll return to
Johnson; you have to return to Johnson in discussing these matters.
The thing then, to you, that the Five-Oh-First had going for it
was the fact that many, many of its perscnnel, officers and

enlisted men, had been parachutists literally from the baginning

of the American parachute endeavor.

HOFFMAN: Right. They volunteered and were recruited and went
through jump school together, and went through the Louisiana
maneuvers together, and came overseas together in troop ships.
They were already a put-together unit. But, that would e the

old boys and the new boys, in a sense: because after Hormandy,

it didn't matter toc much. But of course, they had their memories

of that, and that's good. They were in the unit from day one,
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BURG: Yes. 5o you were joining a regiment with very hih

marale.

HOFFMAN: But, we were joining and bringing plenty of people

in, a lot of replacements--I don't kXnow if they were replacements,
they were--what you were doing is beefing the thing nup. Yas,
good morale. Really, you know, they were the "Geronime's" T.
don't know if you have ever seen the Indian head, the Geronimo

Indiana head, which was their shoulder, their regimental insignia,

BUTG: The distinctive insignia on their shoulders, an enameled

CcCrestc.

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: Yes, I think I have seen a picture of them.

HOFFMAN: They were the "Geronime"s", and that didn't always
go down well with the other units: but ves, high morale here.
They couldn't have done as well as they did if they hadn't had

a lot of confidence, good training.

BURG: Procisely. What wasz your routine like? We've got vou
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there and established, and vou've met the people that you're
going to work with. What kinds of routines are you invelved

with in 5-2 in the Five-0Oh-First?

HOFFMAN: Well, you started out with reveille and, of course,

You ruan.

BURG: Every day?

HOFFMAN: Everyday. [laughter] <You're still doing it, [laughter]
gtill doing it. Eumé out the gate, run left, down the hill, and
Bewbury was at the bottom of the hill. AahL, you felt great. All
the way out the gate, down the hill. Then you turn right, and
you had to come back up that hill [laughter]. And, of course,
here is the thing that I always th%nk the jump school sergeants for,
the "loo-po-tenant" boys. “What's the matter, can't you keep up?"
And, as we started back up that hill, I heard the words, "Can't
you keep up?" And, yvou know, I'm the platoon leader, I'm going

to keep up! I'm going to keep up! It doesn't matter; I might die
at the gate, [laughter] I'm going to keep up! [laughter] OF
ToDurse, You k;ﬂw. we Ware young; my heavens, twenty; twentv-one,

twenty-two; some of the kids were seventeen, eighteen. Anyway,
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¥you did that, you did your map training, yeu did vour WERDONS
training, you did your scouting and patrelling, you did your
formations, you know. One of the great formations of all time,
which is hardly used that T could see in Viet Nam and Korea, is
that diamond formation. 7T thought that was the greatest

formation that ever came along.

BURG: The point, and the flankers, and the rear,

HOFFMAN: BAnd the rear. And, T could turn that thing ‘anyway

1 wanted to go; every cne of those men knew what we wanted. We
got out of many a good sorape that way, I thought that diamond
formation was the finest thing they ever put together, but it's

almost like it never existed.

BURG: It's so basic, Ray, it's hard to imagine why it wouid

cease to bBe used,

HOFFMAN: Those units that 1 went with sure didn't use LT o

BURG: I mean, it's an ancient,

HOFFMAN: You did it Indian file, and T'm saying to myself,
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[whistle]l "Here we are, Indian file and [ laughter|--

BURG: You see, that goes back to James Braddeock. [Laughter]

It just doesn't make sanse.

HOFFMAN: But, nevertheless, I don't want to get into that.
They're the tacticians; I'm not, at this peint. In these days,

you didn't tell me how to do it.

BURG: So you're out in the field, part of the time, practleing

that kind of thing as a section.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Yes. Then we had--all the time operations are

being planned. They may be training:; they may be diversicary

and zo forth. And this is all going on. There is a war room--—

that is, a tent which iz a war roeoem. It contains the plans.

This is one of the fascinating things, yeou know: you cculd be in and
out of it. Thie is why so many of my letters centained, either
vague references for my own use, or small amounts of discriptive
information that I could give to Priscilla while I was writing.

Because you respected the security.
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BURG: Yes. But this would be enough, even all these years
later, to key in your memory certain things going on. In

effect, labeling a file drawer that you could open 35 years

later and remember.

HOFFMAN: Then, let's see of course, there were exercises; there
were, as the time grew closer to May and June, live fire exercises

down in the south of England. Fantastic.

BURG: Live firing. You'd better tell me how that would work. What

would be done?

HOFFMAN: You'd have a long exercise and long mansuver--simulate
jumps, sometimes you had to jump. Somet imes they'd watch you
jump; sometimes there's a simulated jump off the back of the
trucks, making it lock like the way you'd land with a stick, and
so forth. Have to assemble. Of course, you have to practice
these things. There were jumps, day and night jumps, and

e forth. But the live fire would involve the entire regiment.
Apparently the English had set aside a whele slash of southern
England for live fire. And you would go through this exercise;

you'd call for your artillery, you'd call for your air--
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BURG: T mes.

HOFFMAN: --use the whole business. Until everybody got bored,
and some guy saw a water tank and they just put about seventy

thousand rounds through that man's watertank! [Laughter]

BURG: And this would be light stuff; rifle fire, carbine fire--

HOFFMAN: Rifle, machine gun--

| Laughter]

BURG: Machine guns? |[Lauvghter|

HOFFMAN: Machine guns! AR's! Just because, you know, it's

about the third or fourth day and you're getting bored cut of your
skull. How you've seen all the good stuff. The artillery's come
over, you'we heard it. That was the thing—to hear, to know

about outgoing shells--and they were coming right over your head.
Of course, you had gotten some of this in the States. In your
training. The commanders, of course, were maneuvering the units.

But those were great training exercises.
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BURG: In something like that, would they go te the trouble or
have the capacity, to let you hear the sound of German mortar
fire, for example, or more particularly, the sound of German

light machine guns firing, or their machine pistols firing?

HOFFMAN: No.

BURG: Of course, my recollection, fram talking to my friends
who had been there, was that when you heard a Géerman machine

gun, you didn't mistake it, becanze--

HOFEMAN: Never.

BURG: ~--it was Brrrriiiiiipppppp, instead of pop pop pop pop

pop.

HOFFMAN: Yes. In fact, most countries' weapons have a distinct

noige.

BUONG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: And you come alert.

BURG: If nothing else, you know it isn't one of yours,
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HOFFMAN: Right. You come alert pretty fast. That's why you
didn't want everybody, even though they could use them, carrying
[ enemy] weapons, because how are yvou going to know who's behind

you?

BURG: So if someone had captured an MP38, you didn't want

them firing that thing -in combat.

HOFFMAN: If possible. Sometimes the pistols were kept, just

in case. BEut yes, there were reasons for it--

BURG: Yes, sure.

HOFFMAN: ==there were intelligent reasons.

BURG: And besides that, the Germans tended to take a2 dim view
if they captured you and you're carrying one of their machine

pistols,

HOFFMAN: Very much. Very much. But, of course, the ammunition

supply.

BURG: Right,
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HOFFMAN: Our weapons were more dependable. In faet, vour own

weapon was more dependable, because vou took care of it.

BUEREG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: But the sounds; well, you eéither picked those up at
gome other previous training or you heard the sounds in a
training film or something. But the actual sounds you didn't

get until it startsd.

BURG: Alright, let me ask you this, Ray. Had you, within a few

weeks, met the battalion commanders of the Five-Oh=-First?

HOFFMAN: Oh, sure. They were--you had great, you know, great
camaradeire. I didn't think there was another unit in which men

were so easily met at all levels. Suare.

BURG: Because 1 would imagine that those three battalion commanders
and their assistants, and on down the line, they're going to have

to rely on yvou and your group--—

HOFFMAN: Well, the battazlions--

BURG: =-for a certain ampunt of informatieon.
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HOFFMAN: =--yes, But the battalioms had their own -2 sections
and they patrolled for their commanders. We patrolled for the
regimental commander. But we had the prisoner of war interrogation
team, and many times we would take him with us or he would go

out and patrol with them, so that he would be available.

BURG: Yes. And there's a sgharing of information,; I assume. As

mach as possible.

HOFFMAN: Eoy, that was the key to making the fhing work; if yvou had
the information, get it out, share it with them. ¥es, I thought
the battalions commanders, particularly Ballard--who is, what?

Isn't he the Adjutant General with

[ Interrpution]

BURG: Alright, as we come up then into mid-May of ‘44, coming
into the last couple weeks of May, the training, I assume, kind
aof tapers off. The last of the exercises, the maneuvering, this
kind of thing; because whether you people knew it or not, you're
coming up on D-Day. When do vou first realize that that day 1is
now very clese? It is when--do they shut you off at Hempstead

Mar=shall?
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HOFFMAN: You see, so the German intelligence would riot know,

we did many movements into marshalling areas and back out again,
just as every night and every day there were overflights, trocp
carriers: towing gliders. Many times they'd make a cirele out- into the
ocean, and this kind of thing was going on all the time, day and
night. We moved into marshalling areas several times. The

time you began to realize it—-of course, if you had access to

the "War Room," vou Knew: "Hey! Here we've got some new aerial
photos." And, of course, we did a lot of work with aerial photo
maps and the photos themselves. But T would say, from the 20th

of May, perhaps, on, we wers pretiy sure that the thing was

going to go. You were certainly sure by the end of May that it was
going to go, because we made the final meve. And the final move

was the one where you were closed in, and where the briefings

]
e

nof started with conteur maps, and using the little mock-ups on

the sand tables, and this kind of thing.

BURG: ©On those aerial photographs, had there been anything e
to identify what those photographs were of? Or wers you warkineg

with photographs--roughly, let us say, 6 by 6, B by B--that simply
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showed unspecified terrain? You could see the fields, you
would see villages, and this kind of thing, but it's not

identified.

HOFFMAN: Yes, some were that wav. For training purpogses, some

were of the area where we were.

BURG: So they were photographs of England.

HOFFMAN: Yes. But they were of similar terrain; and we

could map out training on them.

BURG: But as far as you know, at that stage you weren't being

shown photographs of Normandy?

HOFFMAN: HMNo. No.

BURG: Now, let me ask you this. When you moved te a marshalling
area, as you say you did several times, were you able to tell
on those moves, on your way to those marshalling areas, that

it wasn't the real thing?

HOFFMAN: Sometimes. Sometimes you couldn't. But most of the

time it was playing it pretty straight.
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BURG: Yes. But you knew that you hadn't been briefed on

specific objectives, sg=--

HOFFMAN: HNo. And we would have had something more then

what we had on some of those moves. The last time it was

pretty well certain this is a go. We know now that we're

going, and we know that we're going into the Cptentin Peninsula.
We just don't know exactly where. On the other hand, many of the
problems involved these water barriers, and all that mesz. So
vou knew that yvou were certainly going to hit some of that

kind of stufr.

I"‘::.._' o o
BURG: Because you'd been briefed; they started briefing you

on things: like that.

HO2FFMAN: You ran the tactical probleme: Thev'd say;, “"Well,;

this area is marsh. There's a river here," and so forth. Well,
okay, it could have been anywhere,; but not under those
circumstances. Why are you going to brief people to run

tactical problems, and not pay attention to the fact that they're

telling you about specific kinds of terrain. That would have
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been a waste of time, if you'd thought abougt 1t,

BURG: Yes. So, obviously, everything that they'd been telling

¥ou, you needed to Know.

HOFFMRNM: Yes. But when the aerial photos began to show 2D,
and the telephone poles--or the peles——were being put on the

drop zones,

BURG: Erected in the fields.

HOFFMAN: And the wire running through—--across the tops of

them, I mean. You began to feel that somebody Knew something. .

BURG: Yes. I should say for the purpese of the interview

that Col. Hoffman and I are talking across a xerox of cne of
the maps that would have heen used at the time; a map of France,
and particularly the area around Ste, Mere-Eglise down past
Carentan, which has been marked. It has the contours, the

road intervals, everything. So; when we refer to these things
we have this one=to—~fifty-thousand scale map 1n front of us.

Noew, how about your own specific jok, as we hit that last



Colonel Raymond Hoffman, 8-11-78, Interwview £3 Page 138

pericd of time? The aerial photographs show you the terrain
that you're going to Jjump into; you're being warned of the
marsh areas along the Merﬂerf?it and the Douve Rivers. What
was paid to you, personally? What kind of briefing are you
getting, and what kind of briefing do you have to give to

YOO meny

BOFFMAN: Well, the major obfective given to the section was to
move to the high ground above St. Cime-du-Mont--which I assume
is up in this area--to set up an OP. Johnson wanted the
advantage of having an cbservation post that might be of same

value to him.

BURG: Then we should ‘say, tooc, Ray that the reason for

moving to that higher ground arcund St. Ccéme-du-Mont is
because the drop zone is just to the east of that town. That's

where they--where you thought you were gcing to land.

HOFFMAN: I'm still==this would have bheen his reason for it
but—--we must have known enough, or Ben West or somebody, must

have heen looking ahead that we wouldn't make it in; that we'd
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make it in somewhere inte here,

boat, the radia;

whole schmear,

BURG 2

Bouth

arnd slightly west of 5t. EEmE—ﬂu-Mnnt,

Page 13o

Because we had the rubhber

you know, the collapsible paddles and the

And when you =ay "here", you're pointing to the map

and you're also

showing me an area across the Douve

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG =

HOFFMAN: Yes. I know

had to get across that

BURG: Well Ray, among

think, was the lock at

HOFFMAN: Oh yes. BAnd

BURG: And the bridges
rubber beat is not for

north of the river,

I'wm just wondering, now, why =-

Why the rubher boat?

that we were, that we had it because we

thing. But it may have heen a precaution.

the objectives for the Five-gh=-First, I

la Barguette,

all the bridges an the Douve,

on the Douve. It's possible that the

you to return from south of the river back

but rather for you to make it across that
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river from north to socuth. To secure the other ends, Perhaps,
©f the Douve bridges. The one at le Port was also an objective,

1 think, for the Five-Oh-First,

HOFFMAN: Yes, that would probably be 3rd Battalicon [506th

Parachute Regiment].

BURG: Yes, Captain [Charles G.] Shettle, I think, is the man

who ultimately winds up there, under the conditions of the drop.

BOFFMAN: Well, I just know that we had s rubber boat, we had
the radio, and so forth. The idea was to get to that high

ground beyond St. anquu-MnntE.

BURG: "Beyond," to the north of the town or-=-7

HOFFMAN: Well I think so. I'm looking at this contour line.

BURG: Yes, the ground does seem to rise, doesn't 'y

BOFFMAN: I'll check my other maps. But it doesn't rise very [

rapidly, neverthelegs—-—

BURG: HNo.
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HOFFMAK: =-I can't see what that 1s; that may just he a pot on

the map. But, neverthelegs—-

1 ] -l*.
BURG: I get the impression the ground from St. Come-du=-Mont
is rising as you move east., There szeems to be a little rise

there.

HOFFMAN: But it didn't work cut, because-~if I remenber
correctly, this is an artillery position or an artillery unit

headguarters, or something=-
BURG: That is, the Germans?

HOFFMAN: --up on that hill. <Yes,

BURG: The Germans had set up that way. But when you're

briefed, yvou're shown sand table-—-

ROFFMAN: Mock=-ups.

BURG: =—-mock-ups of the territory around St. C8me-du-Monte, and

of the Douve bridges that you're to work with, and 1la Barguette,
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HOFFMAN: la Barguette,

BURG: Everyone, I gather, was wvery, wvery nervous about the
locks there and that was given as a very definite and major

objective.

HOFFMAN: If the locks went, then the causeways would be

virtually useless in moving the troops up.

BURG: Ewvidently, the fear was that the Germans--if they
controlled the lock--would flood this area. and, of eourse,
what no one realized was that the Germans had been working on
fleocding that area, I think, since 194Z, and had flooded it
about as much as could ke done by admitting sea water through
the lock ‘at high tide and shutting off the lock when the tide
fell. 8o, really, the damage that the Five-0Oh-First is
supposed to prevent has been an accomplished fact for months,

and it simply isn't picked up in the serial photographs.

HOFFMAN: Y¥Yes, and I don't understand why it wasn't.

BUORG: I guess you'd have to get the exact right angle. The
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photo=recon aircraft would have--preferably, I suppos@-=-=the
sun sinking towards the west and the aircraft flying to the
east of the Merderet and the Douve. Then the light would hawve
gleamed off the water, but the reeds and marsh grass had grown
up, and therefore that water surface--I guess here along the
Douve the water surface was visible from the air and you were

warned abkout that area,

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: But on the Merderet-—and this was particularly bad, I
think, for the 82Znd Airborne and some af the I0lst--somehow 1t
didn't get picked up. Remember, I mentioned to you that there's
actually an engineer map of the Merderet on which some engineer
has written, in a nice percise hand, "This ground may be soft.”
Soft? Tt was under six feet of water is what it was. But anyway,
that area around St. Come-du-Ment is the area that you——in those
last few days of May--that vou and your men are working with.

You're sort of memorizing that terrain.

HOFFMAN: St. d%mﬂ—ﬂu—ﬂﬂnt. even more than some of these other
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places, is the orienting point, because you knew where

everything was from that town.

BURG: Was there a church there, de you remember? and had

you memorized the shape of the steeple of that church, so¢ that
you could recognize it to help you rally? I think it's
[Brigidier General James A.] Gavin who spesks about memorizing
church steeples. I don't believe it's St, Come-du-Mont but——

it's Ste. Marie-du-Mont, whose church steéple—-

HOFFMAN: He would have been up in this area, but [Ed. note: HNerth
of St. Come-du-Mont] he may have done that. ¥You certainly had
enough informstion about every town, including maps of the towns,
their streets, all of which was probably taken out of old

tourist guides. [Laughter]

BURG: ¥Yes, and awful big effort had been made to do that.

HOTFMAN: You had those things for briefing. I might leck
through my stuff and see if I've got anything better than that.
But, anyway, that was what was assigned to us. It was impossible

of completion at that stage. e wanted it at first light, you
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know; well, you weren't anywhere near that place at first

light: [Laughter]

BURG: ¥Yes. Well, we'll get to that--I'm smiling, too, because

I can see where we've marked this map to show where probably

you came down, and there's neo way vou'd get there. [Laughter]

You had a minor little lake between vor and the 5t. Chme-du-Mont
area. Now, did they lock you up; that iz, did they encleose and guard
your compound at Hempstead Marshall, or did they move you to =z

marshalling area and lock you up there?

HOFFMAN: Yes. The marshalling area was near the airport.

BURG: Wnich airport, do you remember?

HOFFMAN: ©No, I den't. &nd, I don't know how to jog that out of

me but, neverthelesg==

BURG: Yes, Listen, if we-—-—

HOFFMAN: -—-we definitely were locked in, and somebody goofed
and there weren't enough tents, and this Xind of thing. But

they finally got the whole thing settled, And then, of course,
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the barbed wire all arcund the place.

BURG: Do you remember when they leocked you in?

HOFFMAN: About four days prier, I think. ¥Yes. Maybe, maybe,

five or Bix, but anyway-—--

BURG: First of June, second of June, somewhere in there?

HOFFMAN: No, I think end of May——30, 31st, somewhere in

therse.

BURG: Okay.

HOFFMAN: Because, you see, the real decision for the sixth
wasn't made until he had to make it. So, I think the first,

or the original, was to go ¢n the fourth.

BURG: Well, the Fifth. I think you were slated to leave the

night of the fourth and drop in the early morning on the fifth.

HOFFMAN: 12:30 on the f£ifth, yvou see,

BURG: Yes. TRight.
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HOFFMAN: And we would have been in the planes on the fourth.
¥es, we were locked in and guarded by pecurity. But we also

ware very cauticus about guarding our cwn areas.

BURG: When it came te that, when you got to that area, how
did you keep the men cceupied? O©Or let us put it another way,
what kind of duties had to be carried out once yeu're locked

in to the marshalling area near the airport?

HOFFMAN: Well, of course, you had yvour--if you hHad bundles,
vou had to pack them. And then there were work details, because
you had to help people getting things out to the planes and
getting them strapped underneath in those pseudo-bomb racks,

vou ¥now; they ecarried the bundles on them.

BUORG: That was done ahead of time; not done; let us say, on

the fourth of June, but dong earliar then that.

BOFFMAN: Well, I think, you know, they would have backed it up.
They would have done it in however much time they needed for it.
But if they had to draw work details, they'd readh in and get——

and you had chance to get yourself an apache-type [mohawk]? hair-
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cut and so forth., But most of us got just the fuzz, you know,

BURG: Yes, Just clipped it short.

HOFFMAN: You knew you weren't going to get a bath very soon.
You also knew from the medics that it's a lot easier to work

an a scalp wound if vou haven't got & lot of hair.

BURG: Yes. Right.

HOFFMAN: We didn't have very much hair anyway, but it's a
lot easier to keep clean, Plus the fact that there was a
bit of fun going in to it, you know, watching people lcok like

a bunch of boiled eggs. [Laughter])

BITHG: Yeo.

HOFFMAN: We did not=-a lot aof them had the--

EORG:=: The Maohican.

HOFFMAN: —-the Gerconimo thing, you know.

BURG: Yes, the Mohican roach of hair left along the top of the
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head. Yes, I've seen pictures of that.

HOFFMAN: DBut most of ns didn't have that. We had a short,
fuzzy haireut; maybe about & guarter ineh of hair. But

for wvery parctical reasons. It was sanitary to keep yourself
clean, but if you did get a wound, it's much more easily

treated.

BUEG: Now you told me that your eguipment included a rubher
life raft, an inflatable rubber life raft. It included a
radio. What, what types radio? One of the fairly large

command sets?

BOFFMAN: Yegms.

BURG: & 300-=-=

HOFFMAN: Well no, Oh, let me think back. It would-=-yes, if
yvou're talking about the type of radic that a company commander
would use, and it would ke carried on the back of the radio

operator.

BURG: Yes. I'm not sure of the number of it, but=-
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HOFFMAN: No, I'm not either. fThat's why I stopped--

BURG: The case would have hesn carried on the back by a radie

ma .

HOFFMAN: But it was jumped in as a leg pack.

BURG: Yes, I was afraid it was! [Laughter] That probably

meant a wrenched back for somebody when he went cut with T

HOFFMAN: HNo, usually--[Laughter] It sometimes meant that the

set was damaged when yvou got it on the ground. [Laughter)

BURG: 1I'll ask you this, too. Had vou or any af your men

ever been in an inflatable ruhber raft?

HOFFMAN: Oh, yes.

BURG: You had used one.

HOFFMAN: Oh yes.

BURG: Okay.

BOFFMAN: I think one time we used a farm pond. And we had some

——
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fairly savvy kids whe had lived 1in the out-of-doors, you

know., Yes, we could have uged it if we had to.

BURG: Yes. Did you learn that--

HOFFMAN: The thing I was afraid of was, we were going to lose
the paddles and we'd be trying to poke that think along with
a gun butt or something. The paddles weren't much bigger than

that gun butt, I'll tell you that.

BURG: Yes, collapsible-—

HOFFMBN: Yes. You put them together;y you had them in two

pleces.

BURG: ~—-aluminum things, probably .

BOFFMAN: Yes. No. They were wooden .

BURG: They were wooden, ay?

HBOFFMAN: Yes. They werc wooden in those days.

puRG: ©Did that stuff go out to the aireraft early, as a
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bundle under the aircraft?

HOFFMAN: No. HNo.

BURG: It went in the ship with you, as a bundle to be

kicked out,
HOFFMAK: Na, it's & bundle to be worn on the lag.

BURG: ©h, the raft alsc wasz a leg pack?

HOFFMAN: It was a leg pack. Oh yes. 0h yves. Didn't want

tc have to seramble arcund looking for that thing.

BURG: Any other heavy, leg pack equipment for YOUT own

section?

HOFFMAN: No. The radio and the rubber boat, that was about

all we wanted to logk at, I'1l tell you.

BURG: &And you carried neither one of those; they were slung

on eocmebody else.

HOFFMAN: Yes, Jim Gartner, I think--Gartner, I think carried
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that radio. You know, I have in my mind--I guess my chief scout
took the boat. I have in my mind, I was going to jump the

oat.

BURG: But you don't think you ‘didz

BOFFMAN: ¥es. I don't think I did. I think Sayers jumped the

baoat.

BUEG: E-=g-i=—

HOFFMAN: e-r-s. An Indian bhoy. We called him "Chief". Fine,

fine person.

BURG: Where was he from? Do vou remember?

HOFFMAN: 1I'd probably have to go and look it up: Ariszona,

Hew Mexico,somewhere in Ehere.,

BURG: Yes. 8o perhaps,; Kavaho.

BOFFMAN: Maybe, Yes. Left-handed. The only man I ever saw
wha could handle an M-l rifle left-handed. Tt was the most

beautiful thing that--
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BURG: And not get hit in the face with the ejected clip?

HOFFMAN: Y¥Yes. Always kept that thing crocked in his right
arm. A&And he ecould put that thing on his shoulder faster than
any man I knew. But he'd always, always carry it in the crook

of his right arm, and he could threw that to his left shoulder.

BURG: 8o he may have been the cne who jumped with the boat.

HOFFMAN: I think Jim Gartner, the draftsmen--you were, every-

body did everything, you know. He, uh——

o
:I - )
e

BURG: ATe you saying Gartner, G-a-r-t-np-e=r?

HOFFMAN: I believe so, I believe so. I think that's—-=1
remember they had a baby while we were somewhere, after the
Hormandy thing. Yes, I think we'd decided ta do it that way;

it would just leave me a little freer.

BURG: What were you wearing when you go out that door? Can
you recollect your own personal gear? I know every ocne of you
was loaded down. But let's get 3 picture now of what yvou're

carrying: weapons, eguipment, the whole Lit,
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HOFFMAN: We had that impregnated jump suit.

BURG: As gas protection.

HOFFMAM: I think so.,

BURG: Yes. That's a two-piece outfit, isn't it Ray?

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, ves.

BURG: Tt's the baggy pants with the pockets that were so
distinctive, and the pockets are sort of a slash pocket with

a couple of snap fasteners,

HOFFMAN: Like a jumgle ecoat. I'm trying to think if we had
that impregnated, or whether we used that khaki, where we had to
put the impregnated stuff on afterward. It was for another

cperation.

BURG: You think it might have been a material, a chemieal,

that you put on just pricr to the jump?

HOFFMAN: No. These would have been clothes completely impregnated.

They wouldn't have left that tg--
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[Interruption]

BURG: You're not sure, then, akouft the impregnation. Except
that when you jumped, the jump ocutfit that you were wearing was

impregnated.

HOFFMAN: Yes. I think, vou know, there was no guestion

about us & ing any impregnation. The uniform issued already
were impregnated. I was just trying to figure out whether they
had used a khaki, or whether they had had to use this 0.D. that

is akbout the color of the fatigue uniform, you know.

BURG: Yes. The pictures seem to show a light color cloth.

HOFFMAN: Yes, that's what makes me think of khaki. 2and the

oneg I have at home 15--=

BURG: Now you're wearing--you're going to jump in June-—-
I'm assuming that you're wearing light underweazr, the O.D.
colored shorks and 9.0. colored undershirt., Then, did wvou

wear @ regular Q0.D. shirt, wool shirt?
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FOFFMAN: No. You had a undershirt and vou had your jump

jacket on over that.

BURG: I see. 5o you're not wearing a shirt with sleeves in

b El o < o -0t

HOFFMAN: Not that I remember. I may have had one in the

pack or bag-—-

BURG: Yes. Yes, you probably did. You're wearing jump

boota .

IOFFMAN: Oh, the boots, definitely. Up in here, just about
at your chest, where your breastbone comes, there's a Zipper
pocket, Inside that was a jump knife to help you cut yourself

loose, TIt's aboul wyay.

BURG: Mayle three, four inches long? The blade, that is.

HOFFMAN: Yes. HNo longer, 1It's a fold-up,
Like a pocketknife., But it's pretty good size. The officer's

pack was a musette bag., The old musette bag.

BURG: Yea, 1 remember,
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HOFFMAN: Packed: TI'll tell you, it was packed with everything

you could put in it. In your--

BURG: That was slung, I assume-——

HOFFMAN: No. Underneath your--vou flip it over vour head and
it hangs on your back. But you have your webbing on first.

Your regular field webbing belt--

BURG: To support a web cartridge belt.

HOFFMAN: That's right. Belt, Yes. Belt and suspenders and
50 Iorth. The musette bag would have been on your bhack, but
to put it on with the chute, you brought it over your lhead and

it lay against your thighs, underneath the reserve chute.

BUEG: Yes. I seoe,

HOFFMAN: See. And that's the way you jumped it. So vou had

it bumping against your knee caps. [Laughter]

BUEG: On the jump anyway. Yes.

HOFFMAN: And when you get cut, you ducked your head and
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flipped the thing back and it landed up on your back., Had
rations in your pockets. We used the X ration. That's

the thing that came in the pack: looked like "eracker Jjacks M

BURG: Yesg.

HOFFMAN: About the size of a cracker jack box, completely

sealed with heavy wax. Those were in your side pockets,

BURG: Were there a specified number of those that you were

Lo carry?
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DR. BURG: When we were talking last week, we talked about how
vou, personally, were loeded down and the kinds of things vou
were carrying with you. We talked about rations and sticking
the stuff into vour pante pockets and the jump jacket, or what-
ever they called that. How did you refer to that jacket you

warea?

C0L. HOFFMAN: Jump jacket.

DR. BURZ: What I didn't ask you wWas, what were you carrying as

a personal wedpon or weapons?

coL. HOFFMAN: On that one, I rhink T had a carbine. <Carbine.

DR. BURG: How, would that mean that you wWere wearing the web
belt with the one pouch, over here on the left hand side, with

the carbine clips in it?

COL. HOFFMAN: With the clips in it.

DE. BURG: Right. And then & canteen slung off that, and I

think you said you wWore your medic pouch slung on that belt--
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HOFFMAN: On the belt--yes.

BURG: —-rather than carrving it loose or tying it on yeur arm,

or on your helmet, as others did. Were vou carrving any-—-

HOFFMAN: Just standard webbing and standard items uh,-—-

BURG: Right. Did you carry a jump knife strapped on to your

right leg?

HOFFMAN: Well, there was a8 jump knife that went intec that little--
EURG: Inner pocket, inside.

HOFFMAN: Yeah, it was a zipper pocket in the chest portion of

the coat.

BURG: T know that a number of them were wearing knives, long

knives, slung on thelr leg.

HOFFMAN: Yes, usually attached to your boot so that it counld be
reached. This, you see--when your webbing, when your harness,
was all buckled, it was almost impossible to get into this zipper

pocket for the other knife, and so you put one on your leg, and
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and I think there wers a variety of knives cérried.

BURG: 0Oh, veah, I've seen machetes——

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: Some men are holding machetes in Photographs taken at the

time.

HOFFMAN: But, these that were on the boot, many of them were
made by old blacksmitha, and so forth, with a long, oh, probably
a4 ten-inch blade. pand a metal handle with a Spike, and with

kind aof a brass-Xuucks Arrangement .

BURG: vYeag,.

HOFFMAN: T had one like that.

BURG: But you didn't carry it in on the drop?

HOFFMAN: I took it in on the drop; and as T was getting out of
my chute, pulled it out, because I couldn's get to my czrbine at
that time-—-still laying on my back, trying to get unhitehed-.

pulled it out of my boot and stuck it in the ground, so that t'ad
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have something close to me.

BURG: 0©h, so you did have one strapped on--

HOFFMAN: ¥es. I'd have something close to me and then, in the
eXcitoment of getting free and so forth, I left it in the ground.
[Laughter] It wag sticking--it's probably plowed in by some

L |
French farmer aor something., b

BURG: Yes, like the Civil war infantryman who stuck his ramrod
in the ground and then retreated fifteen feet, and there's the

ramrod! [Laughter]

HOFFMAN: Right.

BURG: Yes. Now, the pouch--as T remember those pouches—-—would

enly have had two ¢lips in it, for your carbine,

HOFFMAN: Yes, but, vou know, vou alwavs had extrag,

BURG: You were carryving extra; that's what T wanted to find out .,

You were carrying extra elips, tucked into pockets and--

HOFFMAN: oh, but ¥You could put extras on the web belt,
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BURG: Extra pouches.

HOFFMAN: Yeas, surs,

BURG: Do you remember if you had done that?

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: Uh-huh. Because, with a carbine, you can run through a

clip in the weapon and two clips out of the pouch fairly fast.

HOFFMAN: Well, vou remember now, these are not semi-automatics

at that stage, if I remeémber right,

BURG: You may be right. I don't remember when they put th

automatic switch on.

HOFFMAN: Later, a little later, they came up with that kind of a

semi-—auvtomatic tvpe thing.

BURG: Well, a full automatie! +vou did have semi-automatic's——

HOFFMAN: I guesg that's it. T guess that's it!

BURG: ~—~like an M1l. Then they put a switch on it and vou could
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actually fire them in a ripping sort of burst. The whole
¢lip at one time. ©Can you think of any other--we'wve talked
about the musette bag, the knife in the koot, the jump knife
inside the pocket in the front of the jump jacket. How were
vou carrying that carbine when you jumped? Slung on you in

any wayr?s

HOFFMAM: In a casae and=-

BURG: In a casea?

HOFFMAN: ~<¥epa, and, kind of a scabbard-type case,

BIRG: My recollection is, that was a web scabbard,

HOFFMAN: That's right!

BURG: It's not leather?

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, no!

BIRG: Raight.

HOFFMAN: No, nol No, no! It's--the riggers would sew these
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cut of canvas.

BURG: Yes, uh-huh.

HOFEMAN: And it seems to me it had z piece of webbing at the
top with a snap and you hocked it in your D ring, and it went
down along your side, and then you just brought your harness

strip around--

BURG: Your parachute harndss-—--—

HOFFMAN: -—-yeah--and that kept it against the left side.

BURG: And that's where you carried it,

HOFFMAN: Left side.

BURG: And secured like that, there's ne chance that on the
cpening pop of that chute, you're going to get the butt plate

Jjammed into your armpit so that you're dissbled,

HOFFMAN: That's right, and there's no chance that that thing is

going to flip up.

BUEG: Yem, I soce,
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HOFFMAN: See, if it weren't secured by the--even though it

stayed attached to you, it could flip around--

BURG: Right.

HOFFMAN: —-make an are in the air, or half an arc.

BIRG: Yeasz,.

HOFEMAN: But, just having it snapped on your webbing was not
any assurance that it wouldn't have broken free with the opening
shock. So that was another reason for having it cinched on

and tight, so--

BURG: Exactly.

HOFFMAN: --there was no possibility of the thing going out,

And, of course, yvour helmet--they didn't have this——

BEURG: Kind of a cup?

HOFPFMAN: Well, we used a cup, but today they have a strap on
the tep of the chin and the bottom of the chin. We had the

leather eup.

BURG: Y¥Yes. But other than that, it's a standard stesl helmet with
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helmet liner—-

HOFFMAN: That's right. &And your little knitted cap, the little

beanie.

BURG: Like a--gh, you wore that under it!

HOFFMAN: Under it, to keep you warm. Otherwise you—-

BURG: Then, were you using helmet netting?

HOFFMAN: Netting,

BURG: Owver the top--

HOFFMAN: Netting over the top. Yes.

BURG: Did you wear any of those insignia for the side of the

helmet? The club, the diamends, the hearts, the spades=—

HOFFMAN: Yes, and if I--it was Klondike's. I'd have to look

it up. Klendike, I think, was a diamond, but we could leock that

up. Everyone had that.

BURG: The regimental headquarters would be wearing the diamond?
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FOFFMAN: Yes. The whole regiment would wear the desigration: it

didn't matter.

BURG: I =mee. Everyone ware " el

HOFFMAN: Yes. I don't think we broke it to battaliong, EXcept

in the code words.

BURG: Alright, I'l)l check that out, becauyse T think--

HOFFMAN: See, if you locked aut, ¥ou knew that here was a Five—
Oh-5ix man, here was s Five-Ch-Deuce man, and these were Five-Oh-
Cne men, because you saw either the diamond or heart or spade, or

something, on the side of the helmet

BURG:  Can you think of anything else slung on you, attached to vou, in
your pockets, or anything; for that particular drap? Dpid you, for

example—I think veu have told ME you were carrying maps, or--

HOFFMAK: We had maARs.

BURG: Which you had covered over with this material,

HOFFMAN: That's right. Maps, and aof course, your flashlight.
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BURG: No sidearm, EXceplt the carbine. You weren't carrying a

.45 Colt?

HOFFMAM: HNot for that one. No--

BURG: Okay.

HOFFMAN: This was, you know, everybody wanted one, but finally-—
and, I guess, by scrounging there were some extras around. But

there weren't anough .

BURG: You carried nao grenades?

HOFFMAN: Yes, we had grenades.,

BURG: Did you carry them?

HOFFMAN: We had grenades. Oh, yes.

BURG: OCne, two? Do yvou remember how many?

HOFFMAN: I didn't carry any taped on me. I would say—-

BURG: HNone taped onto yvour web eguipment?
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HOFFMAN: HNo.

BURG: You were carrying them in pockets, presumably.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Just an estimate, I weould say four. But, ves, I
would say four, It didn't zeem to me that T needed to carry more

or wanted to carry more than that, but they were availsahle.

BURG: Alright now, on the day--in the first place, I think you

and I have taiked about this. You were due to Jjump the night, or the
early morning hours, of the Sth: therefore, you were to load in the
late evening hours of the 4th, and they cancelled it. ¥You then

had to spend the day of the Sth making do, whatever you could. Then
it's on again, so they're going to load you the night of the S5th

and you're geoing to drop in the esrly morning of the 6th. Naow,

tell me what happened and what it was like when vou pull out of

that marshalling place now-—for the last time;--on the evening of

the 5th. You're going now to the airfields to heard. Do vau, do

you remember What airfield you boarded at?

HOFFMAN: HNo, Wigh I could,
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BURG: But that's something we can--we'll look that up.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Wish T could, ——

BURG: Howard Johnson has split regimental headguarters and

it is going to jump with two different battaliocns.

HOFFMAN: He always did it this way, because you never Xept them
together. But I'm guite sure that I would have gone with the

2nd battalion.

BURG: With the 2nd. So that's Klondike White.

HOFFMAN: Is it?

BURG: Klondike Red would be the 1st Battalicn. The reason why

I suggest that, is that when I plotted the drop pattern for Klondike,
the headguarters, and Klendike White, the 2nd Battalion, the
headguartere aircraft al] dropped--these red circles on the map
here--all dropped pretty much in the drop zone. And Johns=on
evidently dropped with that outfit. From what you've told me,

it seems more likely--in plotting Klondike Red, the lst battalion,

we find that there headgquarters airerafb dropped up to the north
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and slightly west of the drop zone.

HOFEFMAN: Un-huh.

BURG: So it looks as though vour part of regimental headguarters
went with the lst Battalion. Thair drop, by the way, was badly

scattered, as you see from the map-—

HOFFMAN: Yesg,

BIRG: --the Ist Battalion--what do we have? --gleven, twalve,
Twalve sticks are dropped south of Carentan, one of the worst
places that I can imagine to he dropped, And meveral more of

the lst Battalion drops werg made in the drop zone; we can see
those green cireles here. But, also, a number of aircraft--seven
of them--dropped well, Just south eof Ste, Mere-Eglise, as a

matter of fact.

HOFFMAN: Yesg,.

BURG: Obviously, some of ¥you would have found 82nd Airborne men
around you., But, if this works out right--and we have to base

it on the fact that you're pretty sure you didn't wind up in the
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drop zone, and we know yvou were in-a headguarters aircraft=-it

logks like you must have gone with Klondike Red that night,

HOFFMAN: Yes, that could be.

BURiG: And that Johnson went——

HOFEMAN: Who had lst Battalicon?

BURG: I don't remember who had that. It wasn't Ballard, was

HOFFMAN: HNo, Ballard had 2nd. Bwell, Julian Ewell, had 3rd.

I'1] look it up. I think Julian Ewell had 3rd.

BURG: Yeg, well, again, we can pin that down, as to who it was.

HOFFMAR: IL may have been lst.

BURG: BSo, you lepad with them--we can almost give you., in fact,

the number of the aircraft, but you don't remember which aircraft--

HOFFMAN: HNo.

BURG: =--it was. Bat, we have their numbers, of course.
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HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: And we assume that you got in one of those four. Dig they

truck you to the airfield?

HOFFMAK: I don't think so. I think we were close enough to

walk from our .area.

BURG: When did you start out for the field? Do you remember?

Did vou have a meal in the camp?

HOFFMAN: You were well fed, you know: steak and the works., It

sgams L0 me wWe had the evening meal and then started out——

BURG: There was plenty of time for it.

HOFFMAN: I think, probably, we may have left the area long
about eight or eight-thirty. Maybe even before that, you know,

as early ae--you know, the old thing about hHurry up and wait.

BURG: Yes,

BUFFMAN: We spent a lot of time laying under the wings of the

aireraft
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BURG: It was still light.

HOFFMAN: Yes, I think so. I think so.

BEURG: It had been pretty stormy. IT had rained,; but that
evening, do you remember rain falling while you were out there

an the f£ield?

BOFFMAN: No. Cleuds, but--it's an interesting feeling that you
know this ie the, this is the thing. 1It's going to come off.
vou're ready for it. I wan't say you den't have anxiety, bhecause

vou'd ke a fool 1T you didn't.

BURG: Uh-heh. Uh-huh.

HOFFMAK: But, I think, to a3 man, they wanted to do just the

best they could do to make it successful.

BURG: Yes. Were you wearing,or carrying, your chutes and harness

when you went out there?

HOFFMAN: They would be at the plane, if I remember correctly.

They were at the plane.
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BURG: So when you marched out there--

HOFFMAN: Both the reserve and the backpack.

BURG: Alright, basically, what yvou yourself are wearing are the

things yeou've described to me, less the reserve and main chute.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Yes. I don't believe we had to carry our own chutes
cut there. They would truck that out, and they were in piles
heside the planes. 8o are the bundles. So you didn't have to

carry the leg bundles and this kind of gear.

BURG: Right, the radioz and rubber raft, and things of that sort.

HOFFMAN: You might have had to carry them if it were packed late,
or something, or there was some tie-up:. But I think everything

wae clean gide.

BURG: Then, as you got out there to the field, each stick, sach

aireraft load of men--

HOFFMAN: Manifest load.

BURG: ~--just ztopped off at that aircraft.
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HOFTMAN: Ye=.

BURG: Is there, at that point, a check made to see that these,

let us say seventeen meén, are physically present at the aircraft?

HOFFMAN: Whoever was jump mastering the plane, or was the plane

commander, would make his checks.

BURG: They had--

HOFEMAN: Hobody had his, nobody had his people.

BURG: Right. He had a list with him. Now on that jump, did you
have any responsibilities, aside from your responsibilities as an
afficer heading up a section? Were You. a Jjump master or assistant

jump master?

HOFFMAN: No, we didn't have to do that, you kriow. You had
hattalion and regimental staff people in Lthe plare so--I forget
who was the jump master on it. But 1 relieve it was one of the
company commanders. It was probably the C© Company commander,

maybe. But on that, I didn't have jump master responsibility.

BURG: Okay. ©Out of that group--again,; I say seventeen men,
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because that's probably approximately how many there were--how

many of those men were your ewn responsibilities as an pfficer?

HGFFMAN: ©Oh, I think we jumped the whole section, becaunseé we

had the-—so we probably had--maybe T didn't jump them all; maybe I
jumped only about ten. Because we had the OF pbjective to 9o up
on the high ground at 5t. céme-du-Mont, So them were probably
eight or ten. T think there were more then seventeen in the

plane. ¥Yeou just sat on both sides.

RURG: From one of our previous interviews, we know that during
training, with everyone wearing nothing but the chutes, double

stirks went off C47's all the time.

HOFFMAN: That's right.

BURG: Ent the more heavily-laden the men were, the less room
there was in the amircraft. And a jump stick of seventeen men
or so wauld be more like it. And you think it probably ran a

iittle more than that?

HOFFMAN: I thought we had twenty or twenty-one. But that would

be alright. Seventesn to twenty, wauld do it.
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BURG: Sure, sure. Let me ask you this wvulgar guestion.

anytime anything exciting happened to me in the Army, I usually
had to go te the can. [Laughter] I can figure that, for

some purposes out there on the aiffield as you're waiting to

l1pad up, that's easily done, but some men are going to suddenly--
2t least twenty per—cent of every unit, will have to have &

bowel movemant [laughter] Jjust priocr to getting on board the

alrcraft. How was that kind of thing handled?

BOFEMAN: Well, in--if it was hefore you suited up, that was

easily taken care of.

BIRG: [Launghter] Yes.

HOFFMAN: PBut that's not what I worried about! I worr ied about
what the hell was going €O happen after you got in the aircraft!

and, of course they had a pee fube, this kind of thing.

BURG: Yes, a little relieving tube.

HOoFFMAN: I tell you, with all that gstuff on, it juat——thera's

no way. fYou simply did it by inhumarn discipline! [Launghter]

You just turned off all thoughts of it, or anything else, because--
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BURG: In other words, you didn't do it at all—--

HOFFMAN: Right!

BURG: --once you got in that aircraft!

HOFFMAM: Just unbelievable, the tightnessz of that thing:; wou
didn't want it loose, you didn't want that harness loose!

You wanted that tight. Of course, the webbing comes up. through
¥Your crotch, and I'm not sure I ecould have made water if T

finally succumbed, but I wasn't going to! [Laughter] That's all!

BURG: Yes, yes. Well, I was thinking that while you were walt-

ing to load up, then--

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, yes, no problem then.

BURG: --then you don't have to--

HOFFMAN: You just get away from the plane.

BURG: Yes. Were the pilet, the co-pilet, and the ecrew chief
out there at the aircraft when you arrived? Did they stay with

your group while you were waiting?
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HOFFMAM: Well, it seems to me that they arrived after wa

get there, but we were alwavs there first.

BURG = 1 sea,

HOFFMAN: Then the Air Force people would--or, then, the Army

Air Force people, ocama,

BIEG: In some instances, obvipusly, the pilmt. co-pilot, and
crew chief introduced themselwves to the people in the stick.
Nems, not always, 1 guess, did they do that, but in some instances

they did. Do you remember them doing it with your growp?

HOFFMAN: 1 think, probably, what I remember is that they--well,
wa would just sort &f gather around and the pilot would say that
he was the pilot, and this is the co-pilot, this 1s his crew
chief--some of the amenities, Then he would tell a little bit
about his briefing, what he thought the weather was when he got
there, and this kind of thing. I thought it was a reascnably
friendly way to try and make the whole plane as much of one

unit as you ecould.

BURG: Yes, do you recall at this pericod of time whether that
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little briefing gave you confidence? Were vou confident in
his ability? Did he come across as a knowledgeable man with

whom to fly?

HOFFMAN: Well, yes, I felt he was going to--you're really
looking ahead. Is he really going to do what he says he's
going to do? Hold to the course, no evasive action, this kind

of stuff.,

BURG: &Slow that aircraft down, so you can get put of it safely,

HOFFMAN: This kind of thing, this kind of thing,

BURG: Will the altitude be right?

HOFFMAN: Will he really do this when he gets over the drop

Fone?

BURG: Berause, in your case, he did not!

HOFFMAN: All I know--I just know wWe were going pretty fastl

[Laughter]

BURG: And [Laughter] he missed! He didn't put you anywhere

near that drop zone, except by comparison with the other people



Col. Ray Hoffman, #4, BE-18-78 Page 1B4

in the serial, who got dropped--well, I just--at a rough
guess, I'm going to say some of the drop that should have gone
inte your drep zone, went thirty kilometers away from where

vou yvourself landed.,

HOFFMAN: Yes. Well, in some cases, I suppose this drop zone

was in pretty good shaps.

BURG: Yea=, it was,

HOFFMAN: Sometimes the jump master said, "No., I'm going to
hold", because of the flak, the fire on the drep zone. He
conld see the tracers. He just went on -and hit it two, three
fields away. Their guns are in place; they can't move them
that fast. 56, sometimes it was the jump master who made this

decision to let the green light stay on a little while longer.

BURG: Yes, yes. fYour drop Zone, I think it was D ¥ D-for dog,
but 1°'11 check that and we'll put it into the interview correctly.
Az we look at the map, one does get the impression, coming in

from the west, that your particular serial--although some of it
digd drop right on the zone, absclutely on the zone--it locks as

though zome of the aireraft, seeing the ground fire, bore off
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to the southeast and dropped south of Carentan, and that your
group of planes tended te bear off a bit to the northeast, and
dropped early! But, you have that meeting. What time, do you

remember, did they put wyou in the aircraft?

HOFFMAN: 1'm guessing, but T would say around ten a'alock.

SBecause we're going to fly for awhile.

BURG: I think vour guess is probably pretty accurate. Ten-—

thirty is a time that we c&iten encounter, too, s0--

HOFFMAN: I would accept that. Yes. Because wa're going ke fly.
Then, this had been done so many times before; every night the
troop carriers took off and flew. And the gliders. The tow
ships and the gliders, two gliders, would take off and would
fly. They would fly all over England and they would sometimes
sweep out to sea. And just te confuse the issue. &All during

May==

BURG: Right.

HOFFMAK: And so--but, anyway, we dol to fly for some pericd of

time. First to rendezvous. And then, to start in across the
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Channel.

BURG: Where were you seated in the aireraft? Just in general
terms. Up in the bow? Aft in the aircraft? Or if you remember,

what number were you to jump?

HOFFMAH: I was about third or fourth, I think. So that would
have put me about five or Six seats down from the door on, as
youre looking, it'd bBe on the left hand side, Then you'd be on
right hand side when you get wp te jump, because you're going

to go towarde the bkack, but——

EURG: Yes--

HOFFMAN: Yoib'd bha on the lef hand side.

BURG: 7You entered the aircraft, turned towards the pilot's
cockpit, and vou're on the left hand side, about the fifth

seat, perhaps.

HOFFMALL - Five--Four or five seats down.

BURG: Was the door on that aireraft taken off the aireraft, or

was it shut in flight?
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HUFFMAN: Now I believe for the Normandy jump the doors were

off.

BURG: Oiten they were.

HOFFMAN: Yes,

EURG: And from your position, you could not see out that door
very easily. You'd have to lean way forward and turn your

head to the right to try and see anything out the door.

HOFFMAM: Well, vou know, you weren't tied to the seat, You
could hold on te the static--you could hold onto that wire that
was going through. And you had good chance; everybody was up

having a look, you knaw.

BURG: From time to btime people would--

HOFFMAN: From time to time. Whenever something waas exciting,
or something to cheer about. When the coasts came-—when you
Left the English coast--but when the French coast was starting
to come into view, everybody wanted to have a lock at that., But

you could look out the little gunport windows. But one of the
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biggest thrills was to know that the fighters--

[ Interruption {(Side 2)]

BURG: Sorry for the interruption. You eoculd see the fighter

aircraft, then?

HOFFMAN: You eould see the fighters., You were told they would
accompany. But when you leoked out, then you saw puffy clouds,
and you saw the ocean, of course. Then vou gsaw the const of
France coming up, but you alsec saw the—I1 guess theéy were
Lightnings, and so forth--but, anyway, you saw the fighter

aircraft sweeping in.

BURG: Akove you and below you.

HOFFMAN: Well, we pretty well knew that they were above us,
but it was kind of nice to see them coming in helow you, too,

I don't know where they were going at that point.

BURG: Right. On that flight, particularly since vyou're headed
out scuthweat from the BEnglish coast, you're going to run ocut

to sea from Cherbourg--did yvou see any of the invasion armada
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beneath you?

HOFFMAN: I don't remember. WMo, and I think it probably was
deliberate, in that we would have gone out the southwest corner
of England., In fact, we may have rendezvoused, moved ocut west,

and then started back southwest and made the sweep.

EURG: Some men saw them.

HOFFMAN: Yes. They could.

BURG: Saome aircraft went over parts of the fleet as it was

assembling, but vou didn't.

HOFFMAN: Well, they were probably down there, and somebody
probably yelled, "Lord, look at how many!" And this kind of
thing. I'd have to go baeck and see if I can find a3 note on

that,

BURG: But it isn't in your recollection, now, that you saw them?

HOFFMAN: HNo. HNo.

BURG: Now, you went put to the Channel Islands and you turned

toward the socutheast when you were northwest of Guernsey. And
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you flew past Guernsey and Jersey, headed for the Cotentin

Feninsula and coming onto our map, herae.

BOFFMAN: That's right. From the west.

BURG: 5o you saw the coast coming up; the weather was clear

at that point?

HOFFMAN: Well, there were pPuify clouds and we seemed to he
rrabably five, six hundred feet above them. You could see

the coastline guite clearly,

BURG: Some of the reports indicate that just about the time
they hit the coast the cloud cover 4ig thicken up and many

aireraft flew into clouds,

HOFFMAN: As vou flew over mare of the land mass the cloud did
get thicker. But at that point it may have just been g break

in the clouds where you could look down through,

BURG: Alright, let me ask one more guestion before we break
for a cup of coffee. Was there any sickness in your aireraft

thus far on that flight?
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HOFFMAN: No., I do not remember any air sicknessa in that

particular aircraft. But they were all pretty seaworthy guys.

BURG: Did you yourself take any Dramamine or air sickness pills?

HOFFMAN: HNo. took neothing. I hardly would take an aspirin,
unless 1 was desperately put to it; and then it worked, if I

had to have it, but I did not.

EURG: Who would have handed those out? Would they have baﬂﬁTb

handed out as you waited to board?

HOFFMAN: Ordinarily you'd have at least one medic around, and
the jump master would indicate that he had somebody he thought
might want te use the DPramamine, But that would have just been

a measure that was taken plane-side. But if you had some history
of having trouble with air sickness, you probably would already
have vour Dramamine as a regular part of yvour kit. I don't

think anybody would worry about that.

BlRG: &o you weren't aware, or you don't recall now, anyones
taking it plane side, although they may have taken it in the

camp: before they went out.
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HOFFMAN: Most fellows who had used Dramamine to counter seg
sickness or air sickness would have taken it, I think, prior

to going to plane-side.

BURG: It seems to me that's the way it is usually taken. You

takae it in advance, scme time ir advance,

HOFFMAN: Yes. Because it has te have a little time to work,

as I understand it. I did not take any.

Bekry
o T

e

BURG: As you know, I'm raising the issue becausa we have Lb;:if
many reports, from Uafying sources who were there on that night,
that numbers of men attributed their--not just drowsinesg—-—
their ability to simply fall asleep on their feet--after they got
on the ground to the fact that they had taken air sickness

medicine, They describe it in various names but Dramamine is

one of the names that is used.

HOFFMAN: Well, that may be. Then, of course, you were tired.
You had worked hard:; you hadn't had a great amount of sleep.

You're not going to sleep prior to that thing.

BURG: Yes. You didn't get any sleep the night of the fourth

or fifth.
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HOFFMAN: And it was on again, off again, on again, off again,

BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: You were tired. Those bundles are heawvy,
were plenty of work crews, and this kind of thing. Plus the
fact that, you know, psychologically, the human body protects
itself by going to sleep. And if it's bad, and yvou get an
apportunity to stop, I would gay that the guy could fall asleen.
And that's up to his buddy, and his sguad or platoon leader,

to make sure that he doesn't Stay thare, seems to me.

BURG: Yes. Well we could probably figure that the previous
night of 4 / 5 June had been a strain, work details on that day,
and then again on the 5th. Ang loading up, and the strain anl
the tension, lack of sleep; probably, the absclute relief of,

"My God, I got out of that planel I'm alive, I'm on the ground!"

HOFFMAN: "I'm on the ground!”

BURG: And, any of those mén who took the Dramamine to be sure
they weren't airsick, were adding that drowsiness on top of

fatigue,
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HOFFMAN: And what if--here's ‘a guy wha doesn't understand,

really, Dramamine,

BURG: Yeas,

HOFFMAN: Maybe he's usad to aspirin. So he's already taken
some back in the camp; mavbe he rogk some on the plane, He's
got, maybe he got too much. 2ut I do not remember any of our
people having any problem with it. There were guite a few
pegple who were not blessed and would be either sea or air
sick. Some of them would get car sick. They knew this and
they had this as part of their kit. They would have Dramamine

but they knew how to take 11,

BURG: Buy anyway, in your aircraft, as yvou come inte those
clouds and start to ocross the Peninsula on the last Ieg of the

trip, no air sickness,

HOFFMAN: Mo, not to my knowledge.

[Interruption]

BURG: Okay, as vou came in--coming out of the west-—you wera
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in clouds for g time, then I think You break out of the clouda
and at that point certainly the pilot, 2o-pilot, and maybe
some of you in the aireraft, eould =sce ground fire. You're

Bven receiving ground fire out here on the west side of the

peninsula. How were things in vour aircrasts

'3
5,

HOFFMAN: OFf course, as you came across the coast YO saw

flak and this kind of thing; however, I dap's think it wage-

it may have heean put up at us, It was probably up for the--—
trying to get the fighters. But, nevertheless, that didn't
bother. But it was as ¥ou began to get inland, then ¥You began
to get the tracer stuff, The .50 caliber, the 20 millimeter .
Tracers everywharel T think I said, "My travel agent scheduled
me into France and I slid down a stairway of tracer bullets!
[Laughter] Tracers everywhere., You could hear the aircraft
being hit. When it 9oes. through the aluminum skin it has that
distinet kind of a—-almost a "thud, ping!"  And you knew that it
was real, that they really didn't want us in there, [Laughter]
But tracers everywhere, and the in?hreatinq thing was, at least
in my recollection, they were beautifully organized onh certain

on the drop zones with their fifty calibers. And they color-keyed--
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if I'm not mistaken abou this=-they color-keyed their--I
think they were probably firing them in batteries of fifty
calibers. Because contrel was a control, notonly of units,
but a control of sight in whieh they could see their machine
gun--you know, you fire s machine gun out and when it hits
the ground it will give a long eliptical. And when Yo
traverse, what vou're doing is laying down long eliptical,

When you turn-——.

BURG: The beaten zone where the bullets are falling is in

that shape,. i
HOFFMAN: Yes. That's right. Caused by the vibraticon of the
gun. When yvou turn that up--say you've got a battary of feur,
five, six guns, so forth-—and when ¥ou turn that up, vou're

5t1ll going to get a spread of that beaten zZone, even if vouke

firding in. the air,
BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: Say this map is the drop zone. In the four corners,

he was traversing in to the center and back out again, using
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his fire to come through. And =o whan it met in the center,
You had a cone of four streams of tracers coming up. That
sticks in my mind. That was over flown. HNobody went—-as far
as I know, nobody went into that one. But they were sure--.
And it seems to me that there were colors--white and a kind
of a red, maybe a pink. But the tracer types were of colors.
Now that might have been due to smoke or something else but,

neverthelesg——.

BURG: Your impression though, eoming in and seeing that, was

that these wera deliberately--vou would get the impression--

HOFEMAN: So they could Keep track. It would seem to ma that
they were keaping track of the way their machine guns, fifty
calibers, were firing by having different colored tracer bullets,

And I think this would he entirely possible and a little MO e =—

BURG: HNow there was one drop zone--or what you assumed o be
a drop zone--that was real ly blanketed in that way, with

converging=--

HOFFMAN: I'm assuming that they had a good many of them, but the
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one that sticks in my mind is the fact that whoever was
eontrelling this thing--of course, they're not going to be
shooting across the drop zone. If they've got people on the
other sides, they're not going to--. But what they were
doing was moving the guns so that it came to a point about

in the middle of the drop zone and then they were going back.

And traversing up and down,

BURG: Yes., What we'd have to assume, Ray, is that for purpnges
of anti-airborne attack, which they assumed would happen sconer
or later, they had picked out eertain fields that would be

ideal dropping zones and had positioned gquns in a place, then,
where they could try to Put an umbrella over that drop area

and make it tough for anyone to come in.

HUFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: Was your pilot, as you flew into the drop area, was he
Jirking arocund guite a bit with the aireraft? You were still

seated?

HOFFMAN: ©Oh no, vou were on your feet. You know, I wouldn't



Col. Ray Hoffwan, #4, B=18-78 Fage 199
know-——
BURG: Yes. No way to know where--.

HOFFMAN: I could probably figure out how long it's geing to
take but I would say we were on our feet for a gopd fifteen
minutes. Actually, you wanted to be on your feet, Apnd the
Jump master wanted everybody up. We were up, hooked, eguipment
check, and ready; he hadn't given the "Stand in the door™, but

we wara raady,

BURG: You didn't have a red light that soon, I assume.

HOFFMAH: Oh, I don't believa so. I don't believe zo., And

I'm sure that even after the graen, he chose to delay to overpass
another place because--. But if yvou're asking, "Does the

pilot take evasive action?", I don't think ocur pilet 4id, although
it was certainly bumpy from the weather, the wind, and so feorth.
But I don't think he =slowed it down very much. I think he togk
his evasive action after we had cleared the aircraft, and

that was--, There may have been some evasive action but he

really couldn't do wery much. If you're flying along in a

formation, you're not going to make very many evasive moves
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at that point.

BURG: Yes. Do you recall looking out of the aircraft and

seeing other aircraft near you?

BOFFMAN: Yem, vou could see. You could see them.

BURG: Yes, 5o this outfit yvou were with were s5till in zome

kind of formation. It looks like it, becauzse of--

HOFFMAN: 1 think we were in a reasonable Tformation. I don't
think we were as tight as we were in the training things, but

you couldn't expect that.

BURG: Then after passing through the clouds and breaking out
in the clear near the drop zone, and then hitting all of the
flak, the tracer coming up, it loocks as though that serial of
aircraft probably was broken up. But it looks as though at

least seven aircraft were fairly closely grouped up whan you
were out., Did your jump master delay after getting the green

light?

HOFFMANM: Yes, 1 saw the light go on, but he waved the crew
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chief off. And, of course, the crew chief is working for

the pilot. 2nd he waved him off; then he went,

BURG: Your impressicn was that the jump master delayed

because of fire coming up. I wonder if he saw that water?

HOFFMAN: Well, he may have done that; toeo, but, yvou Know,
there were tracers, You know, in all kinds of spots. He may

nave. He may have decided tEhat he didn't want that waler.

ing
BURG: TYesg, (_-

Y %

i
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HOFFMAN: But, in any event, he did the same thing that I

think anybody would have done. He was paying attention ta

the light but he was also looking on the ground. and Vou
learned to do this in ¥your training because-—aVven your early
training--what we warse doing in Alabama was jumping along the
Chattahoochee River. Ang you den't want to mistake the
Chattahoochee River for the drop zone, and you don't want to
mistake the conocrete airport landing strip for the Chattahoochee
River. You want to come in between them. 8o if the pogition

of the plane was wrong or if the green light, because of

weather or somelhing else, had come on too gcon; vou could have
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dropped the back end of the stick in the Chattahoochee River
Or put them on the concrete. So it was not unusual for Jump
masters to use their brains, as well as being aware of the

light.

BURG: And the question that we can't ask him, of COoNrEe, ig--—
there'd be so much poise in the aireraft, I imagine ¥ou would

not hawve heard hime-—

HOFFMAN: Noise,

BURG: =--if he =maid anything to the crew chief. The Jjump master
must have Known--the Jump master is experienced-—he must hawve

known that the dircraft hadn't slowed dowrn .

BOFFMAN: Yes., There was nothing that he eoidld do abouk that.

BURG: MNothing he could do, He's g9t no communication,

HOFFMAN: He could vell at that crew chief all he wanted, but
the crew chief isn't going to influence tha pilot at this point,
and there may have bean a reason he dido't slow down, He may

have been, and undoubtedly was, ‘a plane on his tail.
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BURG: Yas.

HOFFMAN: But, you see, if there was somebody behind him they
would be flying at a slightly higher altitude. And if he slowed
down, you'd be sawing the stiek directly underneath the next
batch. And there's so many planes. But, our pilot, as far as 1
could feel, did not take any ¢f this Kind of evasive action

that threw you on vour knees, as soma of the men talked about.

BUEG: Yes, Yez.

HOFFMAN: He probably was as jumpy as anyone, because of the
tracers coming up, and you could feel the sircraft being hit
by rounds., I think he did what he had to do. But 1'm sure he
didn't slow it down. But on the other hand, we still had wind,

We still had wind and it was 5till bad weather.

BURG: Yesg,

HOFFMAN: I mean, the whole thing was a feat of will to come

off, because we stil had bad weather for this thing. Wind and rain.

BURG: 5o you went out., About the fifth or the sixth man ocut of

the plane.

HOFFMAN: Yeasg,
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BURG: Any incident in getting out the door? I mean, nathing

slowed you down, you had no bundleg--

HOFFMAN: I had the rubber beoat on the leg.

BURG: You had that on the leg.

HOFFMAN: But I had shuffled enough to--I had shuffled through
the thing enough to know and I got out. I don't think body
position was very good. I think what I [baughter] did was to

get out of the aireraft!

BURG: Dut when you kicked that bundle out into the slip stream,

you must have found yourself whipped out there pretty fast.

ROFFMAN: Just as--faster than I had ever experienced in my

life, and the opening shock of course, was a beauty!

BRG: Did it tear that bundle loose?

HOFFMAN: No. No.

BURG: Did it injure your back?

HOFFMAN: MNo. My position must have been reasomably good in the
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air, but it also could have been youth at that point. [Laughter]

BURG: ‘Yes.

HOFFMAN: Etrong enough to—-

BURG: You checked your chute to see that it had opened?

HOFFMAN: Am I opened? Of course by now, the count and Every -
thing else is absolutely automatie. Then you're in the air,
and interestingly enough, there is--you know, you hear Ffire,
you sea tracers, and so forth—-but you know you're going down
in a place where there isn't any. 5o the jump master made the
right count. And he may have only been playing with four or

five seacondsl

B8URG: But the first impression vou have--when the chute's
opening, you're free to leok, and your right lag is stil]l
attached to yvour body along with that bundle; you looked arcund,

you could hear small arms fire, machine gun fire--

HOFFPMAH:  And ses tracers.

BURG: --flak. You could hear the aircraft.
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HOFFMAN: Oh, ¥es. You could hear the aircraft going over

and another is coming.

BUEG: Yes, But vou could lock down and where ¥ou were going

to land, there wasn't tracer coming up.

HOFFMAN: There wasn't any obvious--that's right, no tracers
Soming up--but there wasn't any obvious fire or movement., Now
we're getting into about, I suppose, it's twelve thirty: it's
dark. But as you—-=it's interesting that ¥You can see the ground
from above at night. In g kind of a-=-half wWay able to make

out shapes and so forth. But there didn't seem té be any

activity on the drop zone we wera going into.

BURG: Could vou sees water from the air?

HOFFMAN: Yes, vou could--well, you could Se@=T suppose what
T thought was, "Well, now that's kind of swampy." You could
see gomething. But you could also hear people. Zush! Anda you

hoped that the place that You were headed for was a little

more solid,

BURG: You mean "Zushl," the noise of scmebody going into water®
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HOFFMAN: Of the water, ¥yes. Of a jumper going in to a kind

of a marshy—-

BURG: How high were you, by the way? Did you make an estimate
when yvou made that look areund? Were you higher then you thought
¥You cught to be? Were you lower then You expected to be? Or is
your recollection that vou had beed dropped at a reasonable
altitude? Another way to figure it is, how lonyg were you hang-

ing in that chuta in the air?

gt

HOFFMAN: That's just what I'm trying to do, I would gsay tha%
We were higher than we would normally be, which may have been
Jood because I think the wind moved us far enough 8o that we
got up into pasture land, instead of landing in the sort af
marsh, or in the irrigation diteh for that matter. But we got in

the pasture land.
BIRG: Was the wind out of the south, by and large? Or southwest?
HOFFMAN: Maybe southwast. The movement——

EURG: Because it would leok as Ehough, from the position where
Wwe have those headguarters aircraft on the map, that to avoid

landing in a swampy area that wind would have had to shove vou
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from the southwest up this way. And it did. You did not

land in water; you hit in pastura,

HOFFMAN: Right on the pasture along here.

BEURG: Do you remember how long you were dangling? Long
enough so that you figure your jump was made from a higher

then dseal--

HOFFMAN: Yes. Long enough to say to yourself, "You're really
in the air too long for this kind of operation.” Bat, never-
theless, you finally realize vou're going to go in Lo some

solid pasture land, and you're not too well-dressed for water.

BURG: Did vou see anyone in the air, anyone else’'s gtick?

HOFFMAN: You see other jumpers. Yes, you could ses other

jumpers in the stick.

BURG: Did you talk to them or did you stay silent?

HOFFMAN: I think, I think we were well enough disciplined
not to say very much. You might say, "Are you all vight?", some-

thing like that. But there wasn't a lot of talk in the air.
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t want to aliert anybody, if you dign's have to,

until you were--hecause yvou knew you were going to he helpless
from the time you hit the ground until you could get free from
the chute, because ¥ou ecopuldn 't get to YOUur weapon or anything

aelgea,

BURG: Yesg,

HOFFMAN: You had to get free from that harness before you 4id

anythineg,

BURG: Did you ranage to drop that ley bundie onts its cord

in plenty of time?

HOFFMAN: I got rid of that, I got rid of that thing so that it

hit the ground before T did.,

BURG: Were you oscillating in the air because of the wind,

oL ——

HOFFMAN: WMo, Well, you finally damp that thing downr. But it
isn't the wind that's going to cause vou to oscillatae, The

wind will make yau move, but it's your body position that will
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give you the--and the waight of course added to 1t--will give
you that. But finally, you damp it down by using your risers,
And so, primarily, 1t's the lataral movement of the--thal the
wind is pushing vou along on. So I hit ip s Pasture maybe ahout
ten or fifteen feet from a hedgerew. You know, all thoge

pPastures were bound by hedgercws,

BURG: And you had no problem. Your bundie hit, then you hit.

HOFFMAN: And T hit, 1'1) tell veul [Laughter]

BURG: Did you hit hardz

HOFFMAN: oOh, boy! 0Oh, boy!

BURG: In what position, Ray?

HOFFMAN: Backwardsl |Laughter] You Enow I came in backwards,

as much as I tried not to! Gah-donk! It was Just awful! [Laughtear]
You would have gotten twenty laps and push-ups and everything

elee if you ever did that sver here. There I was in the mogt
important jump and I elam in backwards! But yeou're so happy tao

be on the ground. [Laughter)
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BURG: Did wyour chute--

HOFFMAN: Roll over try to get the chute collapsed. Well, the
way te do that is--without, vou know, we didn't have these,
they have snaps on them now, S0 you get the bottom of the
risers and pull them in, so that You can collapse the chute
this way: Make it lay down. Okay, it laid dowrl. Rﬂil over,
and you're trying to stay low irn case anybody starts to shoot,
Roll over now. Get out the knife. Stick it in the ground.
You know where that is, in case you can't get everything unbuckled,
and you had to guarter turpn—-I'm sorry, we didn't hawve the
Juarter turn. Spap. You sea; your leg straps come up through,
and your shoulder straps come down, today, and they go into a
cireular snap holder, And they all come together, and if you

punched that in and turn it a guarter turn, all of the things

will wvnbuckls.

BUR{G: ¥Yeq,

" Ly
5
\."\‘ .
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HOFFMAN: Okay. We had D rings, 80 you had to undo each cne of
them, and if you ecouldn't undo them, you cut them. We had the

=nap one to go into Holland though., We didn't for the Normandy.
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I guess they didn't have encough of them. But I ecan't get

that D ring unhooked from everything! [Laughter]

EURG: You've got a strap run through sort of a double D ring.

Is that how it worked?

HOFFMAN: Let's see. You put your harness on; okay, vou bring
your leg straps up and they hook. Yes, there are two for your
leg straps and two for your shoulder straps. &And they're all
I rings. Bo you have one here, one here, and then down here.

Well, that's your--akhout where your hips are.

BEURG: You've got two up there on the chest-—- 1L

HOFFM&N: Yes,

EURG: —-—-two more dowh -at the hip level.

HOFFMAN: Best I can think of. Anyway, you're trying to get

these things unhooked, you know.

BURG: They'wve already been cinched up.

HOFFMAX: Oh, yes.
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BURG : Something fierge! sn--

HOFFMAN: wvou want them j

But, here T aml
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DR. BURG: Now, when we broke off last Friday, I missed my
opportunity. I didn't realize the tape had run out. So what
1'd like to have you do is tell te again., We've got vou flat
on your back. Despite all your training, you made the worst
possible landing you could have. You came in backwards. Yoo
took out the knife strapped to your boot. You stabbed it in

the ground. &And vou told me that y¥ou then heard, on your side

of the hedge row, beshind vour back, footsteps appreaching you.

HOFFMAN: Owver my head. That is coming toward me. And, of
course, you had the helmet on. You're trying to look, but the
helmet's keeping some of your top vision away. And you can

hear these feet |sound of stomping feet] and they 're coming, and
they 're coming. And [Laughter] the-—today, the parachutist
simply has to pop inte his chest and make a guarter turn and his
straps will fall away. But in those days they were hooked in,
with very very strong D rings. You're trying to get those things
out; 1f you can't get them out then you try to cut yourself

loose. Well, in the course of trying to serew my head arcund to
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see¢ what it was that was coming, I wias, in the dark, getting
further and further away from that %hife I had stuck in the
ground. And the footsteps, they sound just the way footsteps
sound in the dark. And I thought, "Well, boy, Here I am", vou
know, "five minutes I'm on the ground and I'm about to get it,
and here I'm flat on my back. I've got to do something here.
I got to roll--" I can't get to my weapon and now I begin to
look for the knife and I can't find the knife! The best thing
I can do is to screw my head up as far as I can and try to
lock over the helmet, the front of the helmet. And by this
time the footsteps have stopped, and I am locking up into the

eyes of a big brown cow!

BURG: [Laughter] "A bossy cow," as you said.

HOFFMREN: Big old bossy cow. I'll tall you--whew!

BURG: And, of course, it would have sounded like two people

coming up on you, tow! [Laughter)

HOFFMAN: Right, t was just chump, chump, chump, chump, chump,
chump. And moving at a rate that you didn't identify with a

simple, walking human being. These "people” were kind of--
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they locked like they knew somecne was there and they were
coming., And she did. [Laughter] She was just saying, "I'm

going to have a look."

BURG: Your sigh of relief: you're lucky that that didn't give

You away to nearby Germans!

HOFFMAN: Boy, I tell you, I finally got free from the—-—

BURG: About that time vou were able to unclip--

HOFFMAN: Yes.,

BURG: =-=from the D rings and crawl out of ¥Your harness. And
you hid your parachute and packs and everything underneath the

hedge row? Shoved them in there?

HOFFMAN: What yvou usually did was to cut that chute loose, the
8ilk, loose from the harness. That enabled You to rell it up into
a little tighter ball, Now I remember hiding that thing in, or
under, it seemed to me, a wood pile. Then, T must Have carried
it along with me or saomething. Perhaps it was simply brushwood

at the side of a hedge row, or at the snd of a hedge row. That
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Was about the size of 1t, anyway.

BURG: I remember that the instructions they gave all of you

was that during the hours of darkness, they suggested that

¥ou rely on your knives ar on hand grenades. Neither one of

them gives away the position of the person who used them. There's
no noise from one, There's no muzzle Tlash from the other. I
remarked, in fact, vyou'd logt your knife. ¥You never did find

the knife,

HOFFMAN: Hao. Never found that nife.

BURG: You suggested to me that either somebody got a souvenir
or the French farmer plowed it in. Or it's still there, satuck
in the ground somewhere. Buf ¥ou had removed your knife frop
cireulation. [Taughter] I assume that ¥You probably had a hand
grenade ready for use, bul what vyou did was to uncase VOur

carbine,

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: Because vou figured that the grenade was--in the dark,

You weren't about to throw it,
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HOQFFMANM: Ho,

BURG: For fear of who you'd be throwing it at.

HOFFMAN: Tt didn't seem to me that that kind of use of the
grenade was called for, unless vou knew what you wara after.
And at that point, we were more interested in collecting people

than uh,--s0 1 decided not to use it. HNot to use the grenade.

BIRG: 5o, you were starting out in the approvad fashicon, We

had talked about the faet that vou had been £iftH or sixth one

out the door, so you're about the Fifth or sixth one on the
ground. The rest of the stick, presumably, is ahead of you bo

the northeast, roughly, as a compass direction. Judging from

how your plane was probably coming in when it dropped you, they're
out ahead of you to the east or nertheast. So you were starting
down the hedge row to find them. You had your cricket, which,

for a few times, you used,

HOFFMAN: Right.

BURG: Then you stopped using it. You went to the pazsward.

Let me ask you why vou guit using that ericket?
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HOFFMAN: Well, the Germans are no dummies. They soon caught
on to the fact that these corickets were being used. And they
only had to listen in the dark to figure out what the sign and

the challenge was.

BURG: You remarked, I believe, that these crickets had been
chosen for use gimply because thers were no ecrickets in France
that sounded remotely like that. And when vou say the Germans
wara no dummies, you figured they also knew darn well there

weren't any crickets like that in France! |[Laughter]

HOFFMAN: The other thing was that part of the stick would land
on one side of the hedge row and the other part of the stick
would land on the other part of the hedge row. And those hedge
rows were tough to get through, so you weren't guite sure what
your answer--coming across there, coming across the hedge row-

what that was.

BURG: The hedges often stood, I believe, on low banks of earth,
maybe four feet high, and in the hedge row there would not anly
be brushy stuff, but very tough, rather tall growth, and all that

pretty much interlocked,
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HEOFFMAN: Over the years t+hose roots made a mound ingide of
which-—or through, up through--everything was growing. But
the mound, really, was just heavy roots. How, wvery often it

was doubled and there was a path or a road in between.

BURG: I sea.

HOFFMAN: So you ware ROt Sure.

BURG: One other thing that I would like to have YOu comment on
again. We were talking about this after the last interview.
We've both seen the movie "The Longest Day", 1D which, in the
gequences on the parachutﬁ drops, much jg made of the fact that
the cricket scunded 1ike the belt on a German Mauser rifle when
it was being operated. But you found that a little incredible,
because you indicated ta me that the ecricket sound was a very
guick: "click, ~lickl" And the response Was: "glick, elickl

click, eliek!”

HOFFMAN: Sure, and it was a percussion sound. That is, it,
yes—--guick, I guess, would be the best wWay. and it just doesn' t
seem to be possible that you would confuse that with the sliding

af a bolt, no matter how Fast you siid the thing.
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BURG: Because the bolt deoes have to travel guite & distance,

HOFFMAN: Yes. You'd get at least two sounds from that bolt
coming back. You might get even the third sound of the clip,

the top of the clip.

BURG: Yes, there's the unlocking sound as the bolt is raised
and the bolt handle hits metal. Then there's the sound of metal
sliding. Then its got to slide again, and as it pic¥s up the
cartridge off the top of the magazine follower, there's another
kind of sound. The sound of the round going into the breech,
and the sound of the bolt locking down again., You paint was

that 1t--

HOFFMAN: Yes. T saw that in "Longest Day" and I just wondered,
wondered why he put it in there, bat perhaps somebody told

[Cornelins] Ryan that but--

RURG: Yes, somebody may have thought that.

HOFFMAN: And, you know, by that time, who would be using the
crickets? Because he was talking about the sirborne thing. But I

suppose perhaps he talked to someone but I do not identify
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that thing with--nor do you identify it with a cricket. [Laughter]

Really, that thing doesn't sound like a cricket! [Laughter]

BURG: Yes, when wvou worked it, it didn't really sound like a
cricket anyway. [Laughter] It didn't sound like = Mauser bolt
and it didn't sound like a crickest! So you went to the passwords,

"Flaﬂh IL_I:Thunﬂer il .

HOFFMAN: My own feeling was that they--here they picked a wvery
well known thing. Because every kid who ever got a "Cracker
Jack", got a cricket in a "Cracker Jack". He knew what that

sound was. He knew that was an American sound!

BURG: Yes. That could very well be. Ewven though these crickets,
as you pointed out--it may be in the other interview--are little
brass boxes. They look nothing like the metal insect-shaped

crickets that we got as toys.

HOFFMAN: That's right. The sound is the same, because you had
a plece of watch spring that had been stamped with a littlae

circle, so you'd get that elick.

EURG: Right,.
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HOFFMAN: The bottom portion was a piece of spring metal,

the same as they'd used to make all of these things from.

BURG: Yes. MNow, one other thing I want to establish before
we move into what happened to you next. We remarked on this,
and I don't think it got into the tape. When vou had shooed
cff that cow, whose attentions were unwelcome to you at that
moment, your chute's tueked away, vou've got a hedgerow about
ten or fifteen feet away from you, and you look around and there
ig nothing in sight on which you ean take a bearing. There's
ne canvenient church steeple in view, no structure in view.
S0, in effect, you're dumped inside a hedgerow-lined pasture
with no real idea of where the heck you are, or whether you'wve
hit near the drop Zone, or anything. You start out then to

find the rest of the stick. Did you encounter anybody?

HOFFMAK: Yes. I went along and found, both sides of the hedge-
rew, there were people. But what we did was to keep moving

until we came to the adge of the hedgerow which would-

BURG: Edge of it, ¢r the end of iL?
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HOFPMAN: 1 mean the end of the hedgerow.

BURG: You picked up responses on the other side of the hedgercow,

so you all start moving the same direction.

HOFFMAN: ¥Yeg. Everybody was moving. It would seem to me that
everybody at that point was sort of moving east, but with a
feseling that eventually we were going to have to go south, south
east if we were going to get to St. Come-du-Mont. And if, as
we have; or yvou have, figured out, we wers in this area. we had

to see whether we could get around all this water here.

BURG: You had seen that, as 1 recall, from the air. So we ean
assume that as you got peaople you didn't head north, which

would have brought you onto that road that leads to Chef-du-Font.

HOFFMAN: No.

fa
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BURG: It's a road that runs =ast and west, but— Q s ﬁf

HOFFMAN: You could get your--vou pretty well knew your north

and your south directions——

BIRG: Did you?
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HOFFMAN: —--youwr east, you could get thosse,

BURG: Cowld you see enough of the stars, for exanple, or were

you carrying a lensatie compass?

ROFFMAN: Well, of course we had compasses, and--just trying
to figure. Uhh-h! So long age! I think we worked til we
came to the end of the hedgerow. Gathered together, we probkably

had ten or twelve people by that time.

BURG: Roughly, how long would you suppose that took, by the
time you got te the edge of the hedgerow and you're all face

to face?

HOFFMAN: I wouldn't say very long, maybe half an hour or so.

BURG: ©Some of these men you were meeting on your side of the

hedgerow?

HOFFMAN: Yes, olthers were on the other sides.

BURG: These ware men from your stick?

HOFFMAN: Yeg,
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BUEZ: I mean, they were your men, vou kpew them.

HOFFMAN: Yes, YES.

BURG: Were vou the ranking cfficer? Or, in fact, the only

officer in that group?

HOFFMAN: At that point, I guess I was. But it seems to me
that we picked up cne of the captains. A&nd I just den't kaow

whether it was Phillips or cocne of the others.

BURG: Would this have been a captain from division headdguarters?

HOFFMAN: ¥No, it would have been from regimental headguarters.

BURG: I mean from regimental headquarters.

HOFFMAN: Yes. But, no, it would have--it seems to me it would
have bean from khe 2nd Battalion, because that's who we went

in with.

BURG: Mo, I think you went in with--

HOFEFMAN: With the 1st?
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EURG: You went in with the 1lst.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Wish I knew that for sure, you know?

BORG: Yeasz, Well I do too.

HOFFMAN: Yeas.

BURG: But we only have headguarters aircraft--Headguarters

the 50lst, as you recall, was split in two by Johnson--we
either have headguarters aircraft dropping their sticks right
on Drop Zone D for dog, or we'wve got four headguarters aircraft
up hera. [Bd., note: slightly south of the Chef-du-Pont-Ste.

Marie-du-Mont road]

HOFFMAN: Yeg--

BURG: And it's-—--

HOFFMAN: Well, I'm assuming--

BURG: Yes, and I don't see how we can put you down there. [Ed.

'y

note: on Drop Zons D]

HOFFMAN: We're looking for this road.
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BURG: Right. Right, that--

HOFFMAN 2 I remember.

BURG: =-that main road that leads out to Carentan and runs
up through Ste. Mere-Eglise and up to Cherbourg. And evidently

you were headed, roughly, for it.

HOFFMAN: Yes, yes.

Burg: Naw when you found that captain, does he then scort of

take over command of this small group of a dozen or so of yvou?

HOFFMAN: Yes. 1It's not a taking over. You know, he's there, and
you're there, but you're the only group that's there, so the zenior
miEn takes the command and you begin to move. And it wouldn't have
mattered i1f it was you know, a corporal, or a platoon sergeant, or

anyang else.

BURG: &And presumakly, he had some kind of mission to accomplish.
You have something to aceemplish. Were vou still carrying the

rubber raft?

HOFFMAN: HNo.
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BURG: Y¥You left that,

HOFFMAN: Let's see. No, we have the raft and we have the radio,

now broken. [Laughter] (;"Q
a8
BURG: Usually, ves! Sl

HOFFMAN: Now smashed! [Laughter] Oh, boy. I think we probably
abandoned that rubber raft dewn hare toward Houeville, or
somewhere, when it became obvious that we waren't golng to need

it for deep water, you know.

BURG: Yes. The reason I ask the question about the captain,
phrasing it that he probably haé his missien and you had yours,
was that most of the men there were Your mer, wWho were--you and
they had been tapped for a particular jok; that's why you had
the rubber life raft. The captain presumably has not found any,
or few, of his men, vet, he has a task. I wondered, whose task
at that point prevailed? Could the captain, who outranked wou

but has none of his men there, put you to work on his task?

HIFFMAK: Well, I don't--
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EURG: Did he do that?

HOFFMAN: He didn't do it. And I'm sure he wouldn't have. Pt
a8 the situation became--it became obvious in the movement., We
knew that all of our objectives lay on the scuthern flank of

St. Come-du-Mont, The idea was to get to St. Ceme-du-Mont or
none of us were going to do a thing. And whatever high ground
was above 5t, Come-du-Mont, that was where I was going. And,

of eourse, he had--if he's geing te do anything, he's going to

go Inte this ares, too.

BlG: Right, T see. 5o it wouldn't make any difference,

HOFFMAN: So we're moving toward St. Come-du-Mont.

BURG : t me ask vou this, Did you ¢ome far enough ta the
east @ northeast to hit the Carentan-5te. Mere-Eglise highway?

Or did you turn south before you got there?

HOFFMAN: I believe we stayed off that thing and used it simply

as a marker for the flank.

BURG: A marker on your left flank.
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HOFFMAN: And moved down through this way, because [Laughter]
I can remember all the water and going through the irrigation

ditches.

BURG: I remember vou telling me about that., Aand our map, the
one that Colonel Hoffman and I are working with, shows very
roughly where the inundated areas were. And from his drop point
moving to the east or slightly northeast, there are drainage
ditches ghown on the map. And as they turn south to get down

to St. Come-du-Mont, they're golng to have to pass through
swampy, flooded areas; because there's very little room between
the road and the inundated areas west of the road., And I
remember you saying it seemed te you that a goad part of that

night,.you were chest daep in water. [Laughter]

HOFFMAM: Chest deep, yes, and no way to get across those irriga-

tion ditches, You just had to walk on through Chem.

BURG: Yes. Your rubber raft really wase not of any use in that

kind of thing.

HOFTMAMN: They were only——I don't kpow—-I think at the most,

the widest one would have been, mavybe, ten feet across, buat
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they were mostly four or five feet. BHut deep!
BURG: &nd you gave that raft the deep six near Houesville,

HOFFMAN: Just left it where I knew it'd get picked up later
on. Because the guartermaster people would have been along

later on. BSerounging, picking up, and —-
BURG: They, and the French farmers of the area. [Laughter]

HOFFMAN: The raft raally was to use on the river to come across
the Douve. Ard that is why, I believe, that probably one of
the drop zones was to be on this side. It wouldn't have been

near Carentan. Carentan's toe big a town.

BURG: ©Oh, yea. Right.

HOFFMAN: You know, this is one of the big mistakes that the
British made. You can't take Arnhem by putting an airborne
unit in. That's a big industrial city and you don't want to come

that eclose to it

BURG: Well, one of the things about that raft, If we look at

the area of the Douve, just to the north and 8lightly to the
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west of Carentan, you may recall that the air recennaissance
photos, and evervihing, showed that the Douve area was Flooded,
And you were to grab bridges on that Carentan-Ste, Mere-Eglise

road. Four of them, I think!

HOFFMAM: Yeas,

BURG: And that arswas flooded. So there might be the need
for a rubbaer life raft if the Germans had blown any of those

bridges. If they hadn't, vou would have grabbed them.

HOFFMaN: I have an idea that we're looking at drop zones that

would have beasn in thiz ares,

BURG: Owver to the west.

HOFFMAN: The overflight carried us here. Somewhers 1n Appeville,

maybe.

[Interruption]

But anyway 1 think, I think the area, Appeville, s=scwmewhere in
here, probably was one of the original drop #ones. But I den't

have any of those maps, you knaow.
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BURG: That was cancelled out, You maan?

HOFIMAR: Well, we may have overflown it. That may have been

where all of the tracers were.
BURG: T rather doubt that,

HOFFMAN: The area around here,
BURG: Let's take a break and take a look at the official mans.
HOFFMAN: Alright.

[Interruption]

BURG: Well, as we found out in looking at Cross-Channel Attack,

[U.S. Army in World War II: The Eurcpean Theater of Operations)
there were drop zones west of the Merderet, but none south of
the Douve near Appeville. These westemdrop zones were for the
B2nd Airborne DRivision, not for the 10lst. Well, we've got

you down here at Housville. What happened after that? You kapt
on heading down, paralleling the main highway, toward St. Come-

du-Ment. Did you pick up anymore men on the way?
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HOFFMAN = Oh, yas, Yes,

BURG: Did vou get into any action during that trip?

HOFFMAN: Sporadie type of--no real engagements that I ecan
remembar. Let's see. Yes, until--it zecoms to me we arrived=-
let's see--somewhere in the vicinity of Housville. There

was a farmhouse. It seam to me that this was a pretty good
gathering place. We began collecting people around that farm,
around that farmhouse. Probably arrived there an hour or so
befaora dawn. [Ed. note: first light in Normandy on & June

1944 came at approximately 5:30 a.m.]

BURG: What size force are we talking about, inecluding your

o T

HOFFMAN: We're talking maybhe 50-60 people. &And near as 1
can remember--the thing I remember well, we had sporadic fire
in and arpund that place, The thing I remember there--hy that
time, you're so hungry that--and it was farmhouse and a barn

and sa forth. And there was a milk can, vou know, one of these

metal milk cans.
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BUORG: Yas.

HOFFMAN: I put my canteen cup down in there and it was almost

pure cream. |[Laughter]
BURG: ©Oh, really?

-‘_.
HOFFMAN: 1 think I drank that whole canteen cup of pure cream.
It was gso--it was delicious! It was the best meal I had!

[Laughter] You know, you weren't, you hadn't thought about eating,

Pk ——

BURG: You held up there at that point, at that farm.

HOFFMAN: Trying to use this as a kind of collecting point.
Putting people out, bringing them back. And I'm just trying

to think of who was in there. But I think the movement then

Was across over here to where Johnson and the rest were skirting,

to the north of 5t. Come-du-Mont.

BURG: You crossed the main highway and then you crossed the

highway running northeast,

HBOFIMAN: Yes, I think so. We may have come straight across to
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Angoville-au-Flain and made the hook-up in this area somewhere,

BURG: How's that spelled?

HOFFMAN: A-n—-g-o-v=i=l-l-e'au Plain. Yas. a-u P-l-a-i-n.

BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: Probably assembling in this area.

BURG: &So you did not run into Ballard or Allen? x

HOFFMAN: Allen was over in here and so was Ballard. This,

yes, this is where the regiment started to get itself together.

BURG : Eut Johnson was not there. Johnson was further south.

Johnson seems to have collected people and headed for la Barguette,

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: BHecause one of the things he's angry about is that neither
Ballard or Allen, whe are engaging now to the southwest, at

les Drouweries, I think.

HOFFMAN: Yes,
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BURG: And 1 forget where Ballard was. Ballard was further
north than Allen. Allen is the one who finally does go ta join

Johneon.

HOFFMAN: Ballard was pretty well engaged. This is, you know--

we're now talking daytime.

BURG: Yez, Dawn has come,

HOFFMAN: Yes, we're talking daytime.

BURG: BSure. 3

HOFFMAN: And I think Ballard was pretty well engaged around --

[Interruption]

BURG: We had been talking about the fact that Ballard was pretty
heavily engaged up to the north and west. A&And yvou commented to
me that at leasat one of the histories indicates that Johnson had

communicated with Ballard, using an assistant 5-2. You,

HOFFMAM: On the radic.

BURG: On the radio. And you remarked that it hadn't happened
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that way. That Allen had actually sent you up personally to

talk to Ballard,

HOFFMAN: That's right. It was pretty ohvious, tryving to get to
him even, that he was so heavily engaged that he wasn't going

to be able to disengage from it and move down to help Johnson.

BURG: And wyou'd besen sent up there about mid-day on the &th

of June to mwalke contact.

HOFFMAN: Yes, and Ballard told me to remain with him and not

to return.

BURG: Had Allen tried to use your force, which in part =--

HOFFMAN: Oh, it was abscrbed immediately into the--

BURG: Yes. Just as regular infantry. No scouiing.

HOFFMAN: That's what you do at that peoint, EBverybody is part

of the force.

BURG: There was no point in trying to do any 5-2 work and so

your own command, the scouting and patrolling group, was now
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being used as basic riflemen by Allen.

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: But he did latch onto you and gave you the order to

personally go up and pass this message to Ballard.

HOFFMAN: Yez.

BURG: Your--Allen's foree was at that time engaged in a fire

fight at les Droueries.

HOFFMAN: Somewhere in that area. He was using that farmhouse
that I spoke of as a kind of a base. It had thick walls, and
he unsed that for his command post, and put the security out all

around 1t.

BURG: HNow on yeour trip up to Ballard, did you yourself come

under fire?

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: You had to make it as best you could. Did you encounter

any other paratrcopers who were trying to find--

HOFFMAN: No, by this time whatever foreces were, at that point,
in the area, were pretty well tied into either Allen's fight,

or Johnson's fight; or Ballard's fight.
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BURG: They'd gone to the sound of gunfire.

HOFFMAN: Yes. You knew something was happening, and vou'd
find somebody there that wonld be a part of some unit and then,

eventually,; voud make your way to yvour own unit.

BURG: Let me ask you, at that stage in your own development
as an infantryman, as well as an infantry officer, could you

pretty readily distinguish between the sounds of our own fire--
HOFFMAN: Absolutely.

BUORG: -— small arms fire,; and German small arms?
HOFFMAN: In fact, you learned that that night.

BUBG: Yes., Yios,

HOFFMAN: This is one ef the reasons why souvenir weapons you
know, that were picked up were not allowed to be fired in the
rear areas. Because you then would be confused as to whether
you had an attack on, or something else going. He was pretty
insistent on that. ©Oh, any commander was. ¥es, 1 think that

in the dark==-of course, you'd heard some of these sounds before,
recorded, and you'd heard them fired in training. But that
night you learned; I think you learned in order to at least

not be responsible for your own, either death or wounding.
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BURG: Yes. When vou reported to Ballard, did you have any

difficulty finding him in his perimeter?

HOFFMAN: Well, once you got to where any ©f his people were,

of course you, then you were directed to the commander.

BURG: Do you remember what you said to him?

HOFFMAN: I smiled! [Laughter] I knew--I knew what was, I
knew what was happening! [Laughter] I could hear what was
going on the radio before I left. And I knew why Allen had
sent me, and why he had 2ent an ocfficer. &And why he wouldn't

do it that way on the radio.

BURG: 8o, what was the message you passed to Ballard? K-

Ty

HOrrMay: That Colonel Johnson wanted him to break off his

engagement and bring his force to assist him at la Barguette.
BURG: Do you remember what Ballard said in responsea?

HOFFMAN: [Laughter] He's a very fine Ploridian! [Laughter]
And he had some things to say, and then he laughed and he said,
"I'll take care of this one." And, "That's not going to be

possible. "

EURG: His first words to you were in army speech?



Cel. Ray Hoffman, £5, 8-25-78 Page 243
HOFFMAN: Not really. A couple of one-syllable words and--
BURG: Did you keep your face straight?

HOFFMAN: --then he launghed. No, I was already smiling.
[Laughter] When 1 delivered the message, I was already smiling.
He knew. He knew when he saw me! To sse me crawl in there from--
and knowing that I had come from where I did. He knew what the

message was going to be.

BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: But T don't know where one of these histories got this
business about the junior ovfficer, assistant 5-2, giving this
mesgsage over the--one delivers a message to a commander. One
doesn't, you know, give any order or anything else. You just,

you tell him what the message is.

BURG: Yes. And one of the things you object to is that, some-
how, this account has been twisted arcund so that you're giving
him an order over a radio, when you actually delivered an oral

measage to him, in person.

HOFFMAN: When I made my way the distance that I had to go to
deliver that thing, as hot as it was, I felt that I had, in
the first place, made it in there to give the message, but I

alse felt that that would be one devil of a message for some
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junior officer to be giving to a battalion commander. And he

knew. He knew when I came. He's a very fine man.

BURG: 8o he laughed and told you that it wouldn't be possible

and then ordered you to stay with him and not to return.

HOFFMAN: Yes. ©Not to return. Later on there was a link-up
between he and Allen's foree and, after awhile, the whole thing

came down this way. Clear into--

BURG: Right. Aleong the Douve and Merderet.

HOFFMAN: 7Yes, so the bridges were secured and so forth.

LURG: What did he assign you to do, having asked you to stay
with him? Did he put you inteo his perimeter? How did he use

you, Ballard, while he had you?

HOFFMAN: I think he used me right thare among his--

[Interruption]

BURG: Yes, you were telling me how-—-—

HOFFMAN: Yes, I think he used me as one of his young staff
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officers at that point. He had a very fine 2, battalion 2.

Wish I hadn't said that: I've forgotten his name. So he had
no use for my services in place of his own 2. So I did what
I eculd. And then sometimes it was hard enough to where vou

were out on the perimeter, too! [Laughter]

BURG: Yez. So, in some sense, vou're carrying on whatever
useful work there would be for you. And that might include

bringing up ammunition, or direeting some-—-

HOFFMAN: No. Usually, vou would take some responsibility for
a portion of the perimeter, even if it were whare his radia
was, and so forth. Tt could even be checking the megsages,
checking the map, this kind of thing. Whatever, at that point,

was naodad,

BURG: Yes. You had occasion to use that carbine of yours during

thig = =

HOFFMAN: Oh, ves,

BURG: - = activity. Were you satisfied with it as a weapon?
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HOFFMAM: Oh, yes, I had no guarrel. I'@ heard a lot of things
about the carbine and sc forth, But seems to me if vou're in

a close, fire-~fight sSituation, it's a good weapon.

BURG: Tha German force that you were engaged with, were they
egquipped mainly with swmall arms of rifle and wachine-pistol
caliber, or were they using heavier weapons? Were they using
light or heavy machine guns against you? Were they using

mortars against you?

HOFFMAN: Oh, yes. They had some heavy mortars and they also
had plenty of machine guns. Both the--what do you call them,
light?=-=1I guess both light and heawvy. But they could lay down
a pretty good batch of fire. You know, vou'wve pinned what
essentially was a battalion, down in the hedgerows when you've

got that much fire going.

BURG: That's what they had or that's what you had?Y Approximately

a battalien?

HOFFMAN: I would say that's what Ballard had. It may have been

pieces and bits of everything else.
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BURG: Probably a weak battalion—-

HOFFMAN: Oh, wves.

BEURG: - - made up of portions of commands,

HOFFMAK: Whatever pieces a battalion commander could put
together the first day. You see, he was pretty fortunate in

having a great many of his people in this area on the drop.

BURG: Yes. TIs it your recollection that you made progress
against this German command? That you advanced against them?
Or was it a fairly statie kind of fire fight? Or did thay make

advances against you?

HOFFMAN: HNo. As I recollect, there was no possibility of making
any advance against them. It was a guestion of the fire being
neavy enough to be pinned down, not being able to withdraw,

That was the crux of the thing! The fire was so heawvy, they were
being pressed so hard that he could not withdraw, He'd withdraw

and get his force destroyed. But he wasn't going to do that.

BURG: He found it impossible to disengage.
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HOFFMAN: That's right, that's right.

BURG: And, on the other hand, I wondsr if maybe Lthe Germans
felt that they, too, eouldn't disengage? They're stuck in
against a force of Ballard's size: they may have been in the

same predicamant .,

HOFFMAN: They probably did,

BURG: They've got the flooded areas behing them, pretty much.

Well, how long did this thing go an?

HOFFMAN: Most of that day. I think the disengagement came
after dark. I think that was the first time that he was able

to get a force in the la Barguette area that satisfied him.

BURG: Yes. Sent them down there.

HOFFMAN: T hawve no idea what the historias say, but it saems

to me that that would have been the time when ¥ou enuld do it,

BURG: Did vou go down to la Barguette than?

HOFFHMAH: Yeag,
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HOFFMAN: Yeas,

BURG: Or, rather, for the first time, you joined Johnson.

HOFFMAN: And Allen did, too. Because Allen was his 3. I
helieva that that's the first day. Because all the bridges,
la Barguette, and le Port--1 think we had these all btied up

iy night of the first day.

BUREG: Ineluding those causeway bridges?

HOFFMAM: I think so.

BIMG:  Y¥You think yvou had them then? I'm not sure whaether thay
werg secured by that night, or whethar you were over looking
them by that night and investigated them early the morning of

the seventh.

HOFFMAN: Well, that could be. But it seems to me that patrols
were always out, and maybe we didn't have forces that could have
held those causeways if there was a serious attack against them.
But it seems to me we knew that at least elements have been LO

every one of them and knew, and were there, or in the wicinity.
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BURG: I think that's probably right. Let me ask you this
before I move onto something else I want to inguire about.
During your time with Ballard, does anything now stick out in
vour mind as being unuswal? Or funny? or touching, in that

period of time from roughly mid-day until dark?

HOFFMAN: Well, I think the man's understanding of the situation,
I think was--the way he handled it. A junior officer delivering
such a message to him, known even to the junior nfficer to be

absolutely impossible, bacause there was enough fire coming

from everywhere to put him in his-—and yet, Ballard was a man—-
a guite unflapable perscn, I felt. He just handled the thing

quite well, as he handled most everything.

[ Interruption]

BURG: This was your first time in combat,

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: And you've gotten over whatever fear or fright you might
have had making the drop. You survived that and you were only

threatened by a cow,. HNow you've been under fire; you've returned
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fire. What is your reccllection of your feelings -about that,

your first time in combat? Fear? How did it strike you?

HOFFMAN: Well, you of course have always have, I think, an
amount of fear. A man who doesn't have any is probably going

to be pretty dangercus. He won't know what He's doing. But

you were confident. You had been through socme very good training,
You tried to absorb everything you eould, so that it wouldn't

be some stupid thing that you did that would cause your death,

or your injury.

BURG: What would be a stupid thing, Ray?

HOFFMAN : Well, violating any of the principles that you'd been

taught. If you were on patrel, you knew how to patrol. If

the situaticon was such that it called for not exposing yourself

at all so that the enemy would not know that you were there,

and bring fire on you and the people with you, that you wouldn't

make that kind of wmistake,

BURG: Did you find yourself moving almost instinctively? That

is, moving low and kind of recognizing when it was safe to move



Col. Ray Hoffman, 45, 8-25-78 Page 252
low, and when you were going to have to crawl, and when you

were going to have to fall flat.

HOFFMAN: You got so that you could read incoming and outgoing
shells. You understocod the gound, the difference, bstween
ineceming fire, be it rifle or any other, and you understood

the sound that a bullet makes as it cracks over your head. You
hear that crack, yvou know it's gone and above you. Yes, you
pretty well knew whether you werg--I suppose it was instinct.
How to move, and not to take the short cut across the open
space when you can move along the hedgerow, and move along the

low ground, and this kind of thing.,

BURG: Do you now, looking back on it, remember thinking that,
whereas an awful lot of fire can be thrown in your direction, a
good bit of it is going wild, It's going high; it's going off
to the sides, and maybe vou're safer then you have any reason to

think wvou are,

HOFFMAN: Well, you know that they will use infantry fire and
tactics much the same as you are using yourself. A lot of fire

is laid down, not necessarily seeing anyone thera,

BURG: Yes, right, Firing into an area to make everyone keep
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their heads daown.

HOFFMAN: 8o this had been part of the training.

BURG: You must have seen wounded T,

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: Did it bother you?

HOFFMAN: The first man I saw was a major--graat, enormous,
strapping man, and I believe he had a French name--laying along
side a hedgerow. Someona had been there first, and he had bean
dead porhaps some hours, because someone had checked his (5Eatat
tags. 1 suppose that that's when the realism of the war opened
up. Here he was. And he was a big, magnificent body and, as

I remember, a very, wery jolly guy. But he was one of the
earliest, I think, of the field grade officers kKilled. 2and asg
1 say, somebody had opened his jacket, so that you could see
this broad expanse of his chest and his dog tags laying on top.

They must have checked his deog tags.

BURG: Yes, ves.
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HOFFMAN: The second, and perhaps the most difficult, was at

la Barguette, when an incoming--most of those farmhouses had
stone walls around them and, cof course, they were perfect

Places to be behind for your firing. But a mortar shell came

in and exploded along the wall and killed a young sergeant's
friend. Just laig the boy's head open, and that was Jjust too
much for his friend to take. He really went to pieces. That
was the, almost the, finzl Step in setting your mind to the
reality of this thing. From then on you were pretty well off
and running. But thera were, you koow, T saw other bodies thaere,
These were the people you knew. But ¥ou saw both Americans and
Germans along the hedgerows, and were rasponsible for some of
them. But I think those two incidents, the one of seeing the
major laying there, and then seeing the young sergeant g0 to
pieces. He had to be avacuated. There's nothing guite that

can match--you sometimes see it in in avtemobile aceident--but
there's nothing that ean guite match half a head, and especially
when these two boys wers friends. When pleces of that sprayed
all ocver the other fellow, and the other fellow was not injured

at all. Execept for psychically; psychically he was done., So
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1 think your training made you want to see--because you were
young; because yvou were committed to the war--but you wanted to
see Wwhether vou could match yourself out there, and whether you

were going to fight or run.

BURG: I understand, yes.

HOFFMAN: You hoped you wouldn't run. It seemed to me it was
no-—-even though you passed through these other things—-it was
ne guarantee that the gituation might not be so bad the next
time that you would get defeated. BPBut you always had vyour
training behind you and you always had the almost instinctive
things of how to handle yourself and how to run and how to walk

and when to fall. And how to read terrain and this kind of thing.

EURG: When you got back down with Johnsen's group after dark,

did you encounter Johnson, have any convarsation with him?

HOFFMAN: Well, no, you don't really, at my level, have any

real conversations with Jehnson.

EURG: I wondered if he had seen you, recognized you, said

hello, or--
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HOFFMAN: Oh, I would Bay, undoubtedly, he wust have said--he
always called me "Hoffman". Never, never "Lieutenant", or
anything else., It was always "Hoffman". Oh, sure, there would
have been that type of thing., EBEut Colonel Jehnson--and I have
nothing against him; in fact, I bhink he's been miscast in some
0f these things--he always--he never really spoke. He always
shouted! [Laughter] About everything. If it was, "Pass the

utter”, he dlways shouted, He was always intense! Everyvthing

was intensel 1In training, you know, line up the whole blesaed
ragiment, and now we do our PT or we run! And we run cross

country! And who's out front? He is! [Laughter] He is! And it
didn't go well with ¥ou if you couldn't make the run, you know,

this kind of thing. &nd that's the kind of man he was! What'd

they want? That's what they wanted. [Laughter]

ERG: Yeah. Yeah.

HOFFMAN: Yeah. Oh, boy! When he was on the radio, it was
just—-he it seemed to me he always shouted. He lived at that
intense pitch., I can remember in England he--I don't think

anybody really knows how many jumps he ever had--but very often the

planes would come back, and then one chute would come out of



Col. Ray Hoffman, #5, 8-25-78 Page 257

the plane and land behing the commander's tent. And that

was him.

BURG: Taking the short cut home .

HOFFMAN: Yes, [Laughter] But that's the kind of man he was.
Just intense. There were all kinds of legendary stories about
him. ©One of whieh was that he--now I'm not sure that this is
true--but that he had graduvated from Annapolis but was put out
of the Navy because he flew his Plane upside down underneath
a bridge. Even if this was not true ta faot, it was kind of
an illustration of the intensity and the wildrness of the way

he lived,

BURG: Yea, When you got there, when you rejoined him, he had
beaten off that attack by the German 6th Parachute [Regiment].

That was already over, He had finished them off.

HOFFMAN: 1 suppose I'd have to sit down with a, you know, with
a day by day, but it seamed to me there was always somathing

going on. If the locks weren't that important, somebody was

at least keeping some pressure on those blessed locks, T
FE
L
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BURG: Well, actuwally, pressure on Carentan.

HOFFMAMN: Yesn,

BURG: That would be the most obvious pressure on Carentan

itself, just across the Douve River and a kilometer or so south.




This is an interview with Colonel Raymond Hoffman being taped
on September the lst, 1878, at the Dwight D. Eisenhower Library.
Fresent for the interview are Colonel Hoffmen and Dr. Burg of
“he Eisenhower Library Staff,

DR. BURG: We start this morning with the morning of June the
8th, 1944. We traced your movements roughly on the 6th: on

the 7th, probably in the afternoon, you are sent to Ballard with
the message that he's going to have to come and join Johnsen.

He cannot and does not. You yourself-—probably that night on
the 7th, I would expect--went back down to la Barguette. And
on the morning of the &th, you're with that group that Jehnson

has assembled around la Bargquette., Do yvou remember what yvour

next general move was?

COL. HOFFMAN: Well, I think frem the time--la Barguette, the
bridges and so forth, and St, Come-du-MBnt, that whole ares—-
by the time that was rasonably secure, then everything hinged
upon taking Carentan and getting ready to take it. pang of
course if we were going to take it, you're going to have to
COmE across. the river. By this time, tanks are maving up from

the beachesg,

DR. BURG: Utah Beach. ¥Yes,
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HOFFMAN: And artillery and engineers. @Got to have Engineer
help. Got to have boats to come across that river. ang which
day it is, I don't know. But anyway, it was an awful good feeling

to have those tankers bringing those tanks in.

BURG: It would be all the difference between being very skinny

and suddenly becoming pleasingly plump. [Laughter]

BOFFMAN: You're layving in a ditch and you ean hear the motors,
and you can hear them come. And they're coming. But yeu——and
you've been through the training where ¥ou get in a foxhole,

vou know, and the People come ride a tank over ¥ou just to give
vou the sensation of being in a foxhole and having a tank ao
Over you. That you'wve already bLean through in your training,
but to have those babies come in when you know that they've

got al] kinds of mobility and all kinde of armor and all kinds
of fire-power! And I remember we were off the road, 1In 3 ditch,
anyway, and the tanks were moving up, and to realize how heawvy
one of those tanks was. He got over just a little bit too clase
to the edge and he began to crush down. The side of that road

with that wide track—-—
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BURG: ¥Yes.

HOFFMAN: -—-you could gee that thing just mash down. You moved

a little further back in the ditch! [Laughter]

BURG: Yes. HNow, one attack, which is mainly an infantry

attack to cross the Douve and get down towards Carentan, caomes
down the causeway. You have bridges One, Two, Three, and Four,
and that is the causeway on the main road from Carentan up to Ste.
Meres-Eglise and up towards Cherbourg, ultimately. That attack
along the causeway, seizing thaose bridges, was an infantry
attack, On the far side of the Douve the attack branched off a
bit to--actually, it would be to the south and west—-and invalved
itself in a fierce little fire fight down there. New, at la

Barquette you had = bridgehead, a small bridyehead--

HOFFMAN: Ves,

BURG: --and further out here to the east you had Captain Shettles—-

HOFFHMAN: Yes.

BURG: =-=-at le Port, and I think he had a little bridgehead towards
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Brevands. Wwhich way do you recollect going vourself? Where
were youa, once you crossed the Douve. Did You cross yourself

2t la Barguette?

BOFFMAN: Yes. I think we came across at la Barquette bem pse--

BURG: And then you pushed south towards Carentan?

HOFFMAN: Pushed south towards Cerentan, I'm pretty sure, 7J
remember the fight along here for the causeways but, I think

W& came across, la Barquette. Best T can do,

BURG: Now =zome units, as T recall, are drawn off taowards the

east to link up with the troops from Omaha Beach--

HOFFMAN: That's right.

BURG: --who are driving west towards cCarentan. And I wondered
whether you found yourself involved with that move, after
vou've crossed the Douve, over to the west to link up with
those troops. Because, obviously, one of the first things they
had to do as a primary task was get the Utah and Omaha Beaches

linked--
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HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: ==-so that that link couldn't be broken. That ie always
@ bad spot, the joint where twe forces touch one another. So
1 thought I'd ask you whether you can recall being in that

eeparate--

HOFFMAN: I remember seeing other troops, because you saw the
armor first, and you saw the combat enginesrs. I don't think
so. I think that would have been given to one of the battalions.
I'm guessing, but I would have guessed it might have been lst

Battalion.

BURG: Okay.

HOFFMAN: Bottomly [?]. But I just--I don't know,

BURG: All right. Let's take a brief break.

HOFFMAN: Okay.

[Interruption]

BURG: During the time that we were talking off the tape, we
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checked the Department of the Army Historiecal Division book,

Utah Beach to Cherbourg. And there was a map on page BE and

another on page 90 that shows the fall of Carentan on L2 June,
And the German counter-attack on the 13th of June would seem

to indicate that the 501st, after la Barquette and crossing

the Douve, swung around to the east and made its attaeck south-
west of Carentan. The city fell and then the Qerman counter-
attack come up from the southwest and at least struck parte

of the 50lst. Do you recall anything, any particular incidents,
out of that general pericd of time? Or does it now Just stand

out in your mind as combat?

BOFFMAN: T think one of the big attacks, Plus, I think the main

attack on Carentan, was done by Colonel [Robert ¥.] Sink's S06th.

EURG: Yes. Right. They came down that causeway.

HOFFMAN: The think I remember was--begideés the boats, engineers
crossing the river, this type of thing--seeing the artillery
fall for the Carenten attack. That was a sight to behold. 1
think that was probably one of the first times that smoke was

uzed,
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BURG: Yes. BPBut it was sort of a Preparatory bombardment--

HOFFMAN: ©h, yes. Yes.

BURG: --and that impressed you.

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: Of course, since your typiecal heavy piece of artillery was
@ rifle or a carbine, I suppose anything looked big to vou.

[Laughter]

HOFFMAN: Well we had, of course, we had some mortars, but then

they had what 75's they could find and put together, vou know.

BURZ: Yes. My recollection is they couldn't £ind very many

and they couldn't put very many together again. [Laughter]
HOFFMAN: &And a 37 millimeter anti-tank gun.

BURG: Yes. Yes, That would have stopped a very thin-skinned

vehicle. Armored with cardboard, for example. A 37 would take

care of it,
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HOFFMAN: Of course you had to hit it in the right place.
BURG: [Laughter] Like right between the driver's eyes?!

HOFTMAN: Right where the turret was turning. If you could put

an armor-piercing there, you could put his neck out of jeint and--
BURG: With a 3V millimeter?
BHOFFMAN: Yas.

BOURG: Well, after Carentan ig secured and that counter-attack
i3 beaten off--by the way, let me finish that question--what
happened to you then? Were all of you turned back morth to

Fight?

HOFFMAN: When?

BURG: Toward the end of June?

HOFFMAN: We ®tarted moving north te Cherbourg and out. I

think we were out of there, weren't we, by the 17th?

BURG: Somekbtime around the 20th, 22nd. Sometime in later June

they pulled you out of there,
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HOFFMAN: Probably by the 17th we started the move up to the
north. There was still some sniping, some pockets, but there
wasn't anything really going on. The Part was pretty well
secured and usable now. 0Of course that was the thing, to

get the--

BURG: Well did you ever get--it seems to me they pulled the
101st and B2nd out. Did you ever get anywhere ne2ar Cherbourg

itself?

HOFFMAN: We came out on LST's—-—

BURG: Interestirng.

BOFFMAN--auto.

BURG: From Cherbourg? :1“
HOFFMAN: I think from Cherbourq, yes.

BURG: Yes, I see. To go back to England,

HOFFMAN: Oh, gee, and the weather is still miserable. We're

not really--we haven't really gotten out of the rain., wWe got==-
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BURG: My recollection is that the storm that wrecked one of

those Mulberry harbors comes around the 19th of June.

HOFFMAN: It mey have--

BURG: That indicates how bad the weather WE S .

HOFFMAN: It was miserable! wWell, we got on board an LST. I think

it was an LST.

BURG: Yes, becausé I've seen photographs of the 101lst debarking

in England cut of LST's, Sure.

HOFFMAN: As many as ecould get under the geck, you know, down

belew, fine. HBot we had to put troops on the deck. &and I had

to have my people on the deck. That was the enly place left,

Okay. and we were wet and miserable. 2and I think the nicest man in
the world was a young ensign who came by and he said, "You guys

logk terrible." And T said, “Friend, you don't you really don't
know how terrible we feel." And he bangs on a wooden panel and

all of a sudden this thing shoots up and he's banging on the side

of the galley! And inside he has got his people with gallons of

hot coffee, and there is a man making homemade donuts. And he
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said, "Lieutenant," he says, "Line up wvour people, We're
going to have coffee and donuts before they have them down
below." BAnd I said, "Oh, frieng!n [Laughter] I don't know

that man's name: 71 wish I knew that man's name.
BURG: vYas=,

HOFFMAN: Withogt doubt, that was the best cup of coffee andg

those were the best donuts I have ever eaten in my whole life.
BURG: 0Oh sure. I can imagine,

HOFFMAN: And there this guy was, making homemade donuts just

25 fast as he could make them. [Laughter]

BURG: Yes, vYesg,

HOFFMAN: That was Just great. OFf course 1E toal, T suppose,
six, seven hours, maybe more, to make that Erip,. ¥ou didn't

make it rapidly.

BURG: Yes, I've made it on one of the Thorson Line ships

from Cherbourg to Southhampton and it took probably five to ‘



Col. Ray Hoffman, Interview #6, 9-1-78 Fage 270

six hours for us to make it and T think we made hetter time

then an LET—

HOFFMAN: I would say it took longer. If I remember, guite a

bit longer.

BURG: I was going to ask--

HOFFMAK: You may ke right on that storm because the weather,

it seems to me, sure wasn't very great,

BURG: Yes. They were delighted, I know, that they had gone

on the &6th of June, dicey as the weather was, because the next
Lime that the conditions all matched up--that is, conditions of
tide and moon and everything else--was roughly around the 19th.
And it would have been a catastrophe if they had launched that
invasion in the middle of that kind of weather that they had. Now
I was going bo ask you a couple things. Approximately when did
you have your own section back together? The 5-2 section. Many
of these men that jumped with you, I'm sure you don't see for

some period of time,

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, I think we had put that whole crew together, or
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most of them anyway, except those Johnson would take for his own
bodyguards or something else, Actually, I think we weuld

have had them together by the second day.

BURG: <¥You think sometime on that second day. When you're

geent up to Ballard--—

HOFFMAN: That's right.

BURG: =--with & message, you think most of them were back--

HOFFMAN: Yes, most of them.

BURG: -—-probably most of them with Allen do you think?

HOFFMAN: HNo.

BURG: Or with Johnson by then?

HOFFMAN: Just parts with Allen and parts with Johnson.

BURG: Yes. Were you able to function on your normal kind of
duty? That is, vou had special assignments that ewveryone hoped

eounld be earried out on the 6th or the 7th. But from the EBth
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through the 12th or 13th, when that counter-attack came, were

you back carrying cut patrelling and accounting dutlies?

HOFFMAN: ves. But now, vou see, the priscner of war interrcgation

section begins its work.

BURG: I see,

BOFFMAN: 2&nd the movement of prisoners, so that Meyer and

[Schwartz] P--Meyer was an officer and Schwartz was a tech corporal

I think, or sergeant. He was a corporal at the time, I think he

got promoted to sergeant. These were interpreters and interrogators.
And they were good, they were good. Meyer was a kraut [Laughter],

and they'd "good guy" and "bad guy" 'em and--

BURG: Oh yes. Would they--

HOFFMAN: -—-and it worked.

BURG: =-douhle team them?

HOFFMAK: Oh yes. Oh yes.

BURG: Just the old police routine.

HOFFMAN: Oh, ves. The whole thing! [Laughter] I said,
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“"Meyer," 1 said, "you sound like a kraut." He said, "I am a
krauti" [Lawghter] He was a kraut and Schwartz, I think,
was a young Jewish fellow from Broocklyn. Bat they knew their
job. They knew interrogation. And what we were after, of
course, was these messages. It was part of cur prime job, or

course, to Keep the situvation map posted. All the red marks

belong to me,

BUOEG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: Get this stuff up.

BURG: And here you're referring ta the averlays that wvou and

I have locked at that area part of our holdings.

HOFFMAN: Yes, but on the situation map that the headguarters
would have--that the old man would leck at whenever he wanted
to=--every contact and so forth was plotted. The -2 plotted his
in red and the =3 plotted his in blue. So you always had the

situation as currenkt as you cauld get it.

BURG: Yes, asg vou understood it,

—_—— -
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HOFFMEN: That was part of our job. Of course Ben West was

there. Wax. Wax. EBEen Wax, I'm sure of that.

BURG: MNow the interrogation, it would be difficult, bhecause
you're running a complete gamukb, You're interviewing everything

from 55 men, whe are exceedingly tough, toe Russian volunteesrs—-

HOFFMAN: But yvou know--

BURG: --from Georgia, for example.

HBOFFMAN: But the officers we had respected what could be gained
from prisoners of war when there were prisoners available. When
you could either capture them or get them on patrolling and so
forth, If, say, one of the battalions had them, as scon as it
was known that they were there, you'd either move Meyer to a
gpet where he could talk to them, or they'd get them on the road,

pass them on back. Pump them, and so forth.

BUBG: Yes. These guys are going to have to move something.

We'll breask for just a moment.

[Interruption]
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BURG: Yes, and I was mentioning the wide variety of pecple
that they had to cope with. The Russian volunteers probably
spoke enough German, or pigeon-German, so that Meyer or Schwarts

could cope with them, too.

HOFFMAN: VYes,

BURG: Now among the things I want to clear away before we go
back to England, some of the histories, some of these accounts——
Rappaport's a:énunt and others--suggest that Johnson was VEery
irritated, very angry with Ballard. &and éven when cooler heads
told him Ballard's situation, he remained angry with him. Now
caould you, from yvour association with Johnson—-what You saw

yourself--d4id that unhappy situation continue?

HOFFMAN: I believe it did. Given Colonel Johnson's perscnality,

I think it did eantinue.

BURG: Yes. And yet the men are going to have to econtinue to

work together.
BOFFMAN: Uh, that could go. They could do it.

BURG: They could?
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HOFFMAK: They could work with them. They'd been with him =3

long time, you know, They'd been with him since Camp Tecoa in

Georgia. They knew him. And they knew how excitable he was

and so forth., But I think he never believed, honestly, that

the situation was so bad that Ballard couldn't have disengaged.

and I

BUBG=

HOFFMAN: HNo, no.

BURG:

(==

can agsure you, he couldn't have disengaged.

Did Jshnson ever agk Yeou?

You're far enough down on the ladder, he wasn't going

HOFFMAN: He dealt, he dealt directly. He wasn't that kind

of a man. He dealt directly. He would be very excitable and

yell and scream, but he would deal with his commanders. Oh,

yes.

BURG =

Mo, he never went--

Am I correct in thinking that Ballard is the kind of

man who wouldn't lose sleep over that? He knew hHie own situation.

HOFFMAN: He would take it in stride. He knew what he was

doing.

him.

And Allen would continue to try to explain it to

And Julian E¥2ll would be entirely unruffled by the whole
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thing. I think he is probably the most unflappable man in

the world.

BURG: Ewell?

HOFFMAM: Ewell. Julian Ewell.

BURG: Probably those men--pllen and Ewell--would be, perhaps,
the major people who would be telling Johnson that Ballard was
stuck. There wasn't anything that Ballard ceuld do abaut it.
How let me ask you this. How about your own group of people?

Had vou—-=

HOFFMAN: The reason I don'k believe=m—

BURG: GSorry.

HOFFMAN: The reasen I don't believe the radio thing--you see,
the reason I wouldn't Believe it anyway~--was that the radio
communication was through Allen or through Ewell. aAnd the radio
communication at this point, I don't beliéve, was able to be
accomplished from regiment Lo 2nd Battalion, which was commanded

by Coleonel Ballard. I don't think he had that--he was going
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through Allen and messages were being relayed in these ways.

(5]

So that business aboukt "put somebeody on a radio,"” you know, I

think: that couldn't have come about anyway,.

BURG: Yes, yes. Had you in your section taken casualties?

HOFFMAN: HNo, none.

BURG: You were very fortunate them.

HOFFMAN = 1 BEeckicn took some. 3 gestion took come. It was at

that point where the mortar shell killed one of the sergeants and

his friend.

BURG: Oh, yes. I remember you telling me about that. Now let
me ask you this then. When did 5.L.A, Marshall's people

interview? Was that after you'd gotten back to England?

HOFFMLMN: Oh, no. No, no. Tt was on the ground. Angd I was

trying to put that together, and it EE;mE te me that after the
carentan thing was secure that this is the time that Slam Marshall's
young lieutenant  came in, and he came in himself. It seems to

me this is what was done. The map sheet was mounted on a board
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and on a kind of a makeshift triped so it ceuld stand up. And
then you lined up and used a grease pencil to give some indication

of where you thought you'd landed: and some indication of your roote.

BURG: Was it this map, do you happen to remember, Ray? What

ie this map, one to fifty thousand?

HOQFFMAN: This is a fifty thousand and T think we were using
twenty-five thousand, so hé would have had four sheets of one

to twenty-five thousand taped together and mounted.
BURG: With an overlay sheet on it.

HOFFMAN: We tried to use twenty-five thousand if we could; if
you could find them and you could have them, That was one of

the intelligence section jobs was to get maps and--—

EURG: Yes, hecause that map, that oene to twenty-five thousand,
gives you far more detail then the one that you and I have

in front of us right here. I notice that some towns, little
hamlets, are not marked on this map and vet they're referred

Lo continually. Seo, obviously, they would be on that other map.
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HOFFMA N - Yes, vyay try ta yse them ang Eo get put ta the,

Certainly, the Company Commanders, the one tg twenty—five

by ap Army historical team, »

BOFFMAN: qp ¥es. It wag Passed gg ¢ who he wWag, and gn forth,

about pra) Ristory, They have nNot ever gdonpe this, of Course,
They wondereg what woulg happens Woulg they be cleared g
tell thig s0rt of thing? ang I saidg, well, T wae dquite gpre

that they Certainly woulg be cleareg to tell then.
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HOFFMAN: You couldn't have come inte a commander's area if
that man—-—-in the first place, 1f the division hadn't allowed
you——and, of course, they had it all the way from headguartexrs
level that they were allowed to come in. Bat voo wouldn't
have come into Colonel Johnson's area. And you wouldn't have
come into any of the battalion areas without the clearance of

that commander.

BURG: Let me ask you, do you recollect now your own reaction,
or the general reaction of the men arocund vou,; that this was
going to he done? Was your reaction supportive, or were you--
gid you kind of view thi=z as, "0Qh, for heaven sakes, this is
another pain in the neck. We've got better things to da?"

What kind of reaction did vou have or did your men have?

HOFFMAN: Well, I thought it was & great wav to collect the
higtorical information. To do it on the ground. And to do

it that soon, surprised me.

BURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: That they were going teo do it, because-=-1 had a geood

attitude toward ik,
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BlLIRG - Otherg-—

BURG: ves, pig others seem tq have a Pretty good jiges abaout

HOFFPMa 1. Some dig, Some didnt't, Eome thnught Ty ¥ou know,
WaE 3 waste gf time. pg¢ I-=and 1 think the mep thought it yae

3 pretty good thing, They understoog that thege People were

BURG: Aboutr how many of TOU0 wWere in that formation that morning

to be intervieweds Do yag remembers

HOFFMA N - “TErea. But 1'g 88y thirty, farty People in our

Heneral area.,
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BURG: Headguarters people, basically?

HOFFMAN: All headguarters people. At that point,

BURG: Yes. And did they--

HOFFMAK: And I know he had been out with the battalions and

down with the line companies.

BURG: Right. Did they line you up in any particunlar order

or rank ar—--—

HOFFMAN: No. He just asked that everyone come by, Tock a
little time and you stood around, And after it was made known

who he was, Jjust what it was he was after——

BURGZ: You don't remember his name?

HOFFMAIN: Mo,

BURG: One man was doing thig?

HOFFMAN: There were two of them there. Seems to me that ©lam
had & lieutenant doing the instructions and then manning the

map. But it seems to me he did some of the talking himself,
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88 to why they were actually on the ground. That this was the first
time airkorre troops had been used; "we want to see if we can't

preserve this," and so forth.

BURG: Yes. When you stepped forward to take your turn, did you

give them your name and your rank?

HOFFMAN: Yes. T think they did it by roster, because they

had the morning report--

BURG: I see, so they toock yau off that,

BOFFMAN: --and they would have been able to make a checklizt
on that. Bub I'm sure that's what the vYoung lieautenant who
was beside the map was doing. He was checking names and rank

ang serial number,

{Interruption - Side 2]

HOFFMAN: Mo. Frobahly there were other verbal--or other
interviews going on. I'm sure there was no recordings or

anything else,

BURG: T don't believe so.
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Page 235
HOFFMag . Yes,

Ve gutv-prnhahly do--have sEome

But I know they

And it wagp't & hig

seemed g take Cime, Of course itk Wanglg

Brobably ar mayhe an
hour,

BURG: gq Your recollectigp now is that what they were looking
for Was, "Where do oy think yeay landegs» "What ropte did yvoy
folloywan "Where didvou wing up?" pig they agk You——

HOFFMA N .
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BURG: Yes, down south of Carentan—-—

HOFFMAN 2 In the Carentan area.

BURG: Bult they would have wanted to know what had happened,
particularly on the first and second days, I think. Highly
essential to know that. Did other men in that formation of
thirty or forty people--do you remember them correcting people?
You know, the zsort of thing. "Ho, no, John! You weren't there,

you were with me." Do you remember?

HOFFMAN: Na. Tt wasn't a real formation. It was wery—-it

wag an informal group.

BURG = Yos.

HOFFMAN: We weren't lined up or anything else. We just stood

around——

BURG: ©Oh, no, I didn'kt mean that,

HOFFMAN: ==yvou just stook around. And I <an remember no one
correcting anyone. 'They were after what you were going to put

an the map, and then unuseal ineidents that would have occurred=-=
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would have happened to you on the way. And I'm sgre that T
told the bossy-cow story to whoever was there. Bur it always
seemed to me that he wag te the right hang Bide of the map and

we approached kind of from the left front. ang then stood

with them for awhile. But I weuld--71 Suppose 5.L.A. Marshall

was doing that himself,

BURG: I think you're absolutely right about what they probably

took, because Marshall's own book, Night Drop, and some of the

other books that have been written since which relied UREon some
of these interviews, are full of the accounts of People whao
wound up in pastures ang found herds of horses thundering by

them, or found themselvas landing on cows——

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: —-in the field, and this kind of thing, 1 gather, toa,
that a number when interviewed were able to bass the names of
not all, but one or two or thres, sometimes, of those who grouped

up with them——
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HOFFMAN: Yes. Yes,

BURG: --in those pre-dawn hours on the 6th. In zome cases,
friends came down fairly close together and, therefore, they

gave them a little better picture.

HOFFMAN: 1In other cases, you know, vou really wouldn't have
had names; yvou would have had faces, if you were gplit off
from your usual element and you went in with seomeone else's
unit. But if you recognized someone you'd--I suppose that kind
of information——it wouldn't seem to me they would need date,
time, and tactical situation information, because they already

had that on the situation reports and the pverlays.

BURG: To whatever extent that was posszible on those first

two days. My impression is that almost none of that got done--

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BUURG: --in the early days. Tt was just too utterly ecenfusing
for anybody to be able to put it down. They may have done it

afterwards .,
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HOFFMAN: Yes. Well, I noticed--I'm sure that's somebody's
notebook over there, and I'm sure that things like that were
being kept. [Ed. note: The "notebook" refers to material

contained ih Eisenhower Library filez regarding the 10lst Air-
borne Division.]

BURG: Yes, but painfully brief, as you remember, Ray.

HOFFMEN: Yes., Yasg,

BUORG: Those were notations. We don't have—-as I remember

that netebook, there isn't much there for the 6th, the 7th.

There might be a notation at ten o'clock in the morning and there
might not be ancther notation--and both notationz would be

very small--until three o'clock in the afternoen. That's
probably one reason why the technigue that you're now describing
was highly essential., You couldn't imagine anything more fluid,
open--you could even use the word confused [laughter]-—-than the

Picture in the drop zones in the first forty-eight hours.

HOFFMAN: Yeo,

BURG: How let me ask you this then. When you get back to

England and you're unloaded from yvour LST's, were:you taken
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back up to the area from which you had implaned er hack to

your camp ¥

HOFFMAN: No. No. Right back to base camp. Base camp was
there; everything was there. You know, the supplies, the mess

hall, and the object is now to, of course, refit.

BURG: Fill in the gaps.

HOFFMAN: Turn in the junk, get new equipment, whatever was
necded, and then start training; start all over again for the

next, for the next drop.

BURG: Did you have an idea at that time~-7?

HOFFMAN: You knew something else was coming.

BURG:; Yes. In late June or early July, vou had no idea at

that time the pext one was going to be Holland, I would imagine.

HOFFMAN: Oh no. no. But you knew something was coming.

BURG: %Yes. Now let me ask you this, Ray. Here you are., All

of you are back now in England. Back in your, let us say,
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permanent camps there and you're in the process of refitting.

You replace equipment. Men evidently jomped with M-1 rifles

that were disassembled., I remember reading of one man who

managed te drop his trigger assembly inte water and had, therefore,

an M-1 rifle with everything except the trigger mechanism.

HOFFMAN: That's funny. Yes.

BUuRG:= There's a rtifle that's out of action.

HOFEFMAN: You know, my question now is why would a man do

that? He hag--

BURG: He jumped with it broken down: the M-1 was broken down.

HOFFMaN: Probkably thought he would save himself from getting

hork, bhut--—

BURG: ¥Yes, and another man jumpéd with a model 1903.

HOFFMAN: Y¥Yes, sniper's. Yes,

BURG: And he didn't have it broken down. He dlikerately. chose,
he said, a Sp:ingfielﬂ'ﬂE and it dislocated his left shoulder

when he struck the ground, The muzzle struck and the butt
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rammed in under his armpit and dislocated the shoulder.

HOFFMAN: You see, there again, you have a case for the thing;

you don't jump it raw, it's in a ecasze.

BORG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: And if you rig it wrong, you see, this is the thing
that should be looked at. It was snapped into a D-ring, or

should have been. But what happened was it got up underneath hisz—-

BURG: And it was just that much longer than your carbine, vou

sEEe, ——

HOFFMAN: Oh ves.

BURG: '——s0 that he hit just wrong with that thing, and there

he went. But evidently some men were jumping with disassembled
weapons. Bub in any event, all of that eguipment =—--whatever
equipment dropped into the water and was gone forever, or parts
of it fell off; in this man's case, losing that trigger mechanism.

All of that is replaced.

HOFFMAN: Well, he would have had that thing replaced, you know--
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BURG: Oh, yes. He would have picked somebody else's up, Sure.

HOFFMAN: --=he'd have had something very shortly.

BURG: But, is there a pericd of time where, for example, in the
50lst—-let's just stick to the S50lst--where Johnson or Allen or
Ballard--or any concerted effort is made--to it down your
headguarters detachment, or a battalion, or a company, and ask,
"What when wrong and what went right?" Because you know you're
going to do this again, and it seems to me that you've got to
find out what didn't go right. How can you correct the errors

of Normandy?

HOFFMAN: Well, I think what went wrong, if it went wrong,
was the evasiveness taken by some of the troop carriers. And
I don't think that was something that the infantry units could

correct,

BURG: Oh, I know they couldn't. That leaped right into your

mind, didn't it?

HOFFMAMN: Yes.
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BURG: Because I think we would both have ta agree that you

were dropping something like ten thousand men into thate--in the

two airborne divisions--into 3 fairly limited piece of ground,

with specified ocbjectives that everyone is to take care of. AnRd
what you get on the ground is thousands of men who get nowhere near
their objectives, The objectives are; by and large, fulfilled, but
usually not by the men who were supposed to do them, and usually

by a foree of very small size compared to the size of the group

told off to do it.

HOFFMAN: Much of the training was just geared for this very kind
of thing. ¥eou Xnow what the cbiectives are. Not one-=you know

what your own is--but you also know what the rest of them are,

BURG: Right, Exactlg.

HOFFMAN: And you make every effort. A lot of individual
training--a lot of the training, and the esprit de corps of
Ehe parachaotist, is to individual effort to get the mission
accomplished with whatever means are there, How many men, and

s0 forth.
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BURG: So, in effect, you've said in the last couple of minutes:
Ta the degree that things went wrong, it was beyond the control

of the airkorne troops.
HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: They were dropped off the drop zones, and sometimas, T

think--
HOFFMAN: That was fortgitous.

BURG: ==vou would agree, for reason.

HOFFMAN: That was fortuitous, ves,

BURG: Yes. Sometimes they were dropped, for reason, away

from the drop zone, It would have been terribly dangercus

to put them in, with the amount of Fire that was coming up. And
that this rcirecumstance, which 15 beyond the airborne soldier's
control, is corrected to large degree by the airhorne soldier's
training, even though dropped almost Ly himself. He begins to

O ==
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HOFFMAN: Right.

BURG: -—-in accordance with his training to carry out, if

not the missien assigned to him, he'll carry out any mission
that he can conceive of, starting with, "That wire looks like

it might carry a message. I'll puall it down." [Laughter]

And we know now, these years later--like Monday morning guarter-
backs, we know that although the jumps were terribly confused

and scattered, the Germans never could react to them because--—

HOFFMAN: That's right.

BURG: --they couldn't tell what was happening. Mainly, because
the first thing the airborne troops did was to destroy the
German communication network. Their radios still worked but

their ground network was oblitereted.

HOFFMAN: And I have seem somewhere the map, German high command
map, and the thing looks like measles, it's got so many red

spots on it.

BURG: And the red spots heing us.
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HOFFMAN: Their enemy, vou see,

BURG: Yes=, their enemy. Sure,

HOFFMAK: Same as ours=--they would ba red spots on our map.
BlURG: ¥Yes,

HOFFMAN: But their reg spots are all over the Cotentin

Feninsula. And they must have gone out of their minds.

B
BURG: Yes, and it's ocbviously been-- é;frq ﬁ

HOFFMAN: Because there may have only have been a few people,

maybe only a couple, but nevertheless, there they have a report
their communications have bLeen knocked out here. And I don't
know what their names were, but there were some men as far away

&s eight, eighty-five miles away, made their way south.

BURG: Yes,

HOFFMAK: Yoo know, it takes Some initiative to do that kind

of thing,
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BURG: Yes. Collected small bodies of men and fought by
themselves, evaded capture, or were captured and then escaped
from capture. Was there any kind of a eritigueing session in

the first weeks, then, in England? Do vou remember?

HOFFMAN: I think it was maybe a continuous eritigqueing. But
1 don't remember any--of course, undoubtedly the commanders
and the division commander would sit together and talk., BAnd

I think all the way down to battalion cemmanders, too.

BURG: Did headguarters section pick up——they probably wouldn't

need too many--reinforcements, replacements?

HOFFMAN: The =2-was changed. It seemed to me that this i=
the time when Ben Wax—-I don't know what happens to him: he

gets ill, transferred--and Huge Sims comes in as the -2.

BORG: S=i1-m-s57

BOFFMAN: m-=.

BURG: all right.
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HOFFMAN: He led the incredibhile Patrol in Hollarnd.

BURG: Sims then becomes Your boss, vour new boss,

HOFFMAN: ves, yes.,

BURG: Were ¥ou a first lieantenant by this time?

HOFFMAN: Promoted--this is one of the things, You get back
“0 England and you begin to get p leave, and this king of thing,

¥You knew, T forget when 1 was promoted. 1'11 have to lopk,

BURG: Was Sims 4l exXperienced man?

HOFFMAN: Sims wWas a company commander with Allen, 1 think,

BURG: I zee.

HOFFMAN: If I remember correctly. He wasg cOompany commander,
1 think, in that 1=+ Battalion. ang they brought him up to
be the -2. ana I don't know whether I was Promoted then ar

after Holland.,

BURG: Dkavy,
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HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: When you get this back to edit, vyvou can check that

out and bring it up to date.

HOFFMAN: I've got that date,

BURG: One thing that comes to mind is, at least in headguarters,
you haven't suffered heavy casualties, by and large. Certainly
your section didn't. So as you continue your training, step

up the training for the next operation, whatever it would he-—
and we kKnow it becomes Holland--everyone in the unit has

already done one big combat jump--

HEOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: =--so ecritigue would be, as you suggest, a continuing

thing. ¥ou all d4id it.

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: And you know what was wrong. And one can think of the
variocus things. For example, if those leg bags cause problems,

or assembling at night, in hours of darkpess, was difficult,
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those are things that vou can work out among yourselves., But
the leg bag doesn't work very well hecauze, in some instances,
the aircraft are going too fast. Nowwere you aware of any woark
being done with the troop carrier sguadrons to say, "Hey,
fellows. With the best will in the world, some of you dropped

us too high. You dropped us at too fast a speed. "

HOFFMAN: Yes. BAnd their commanders, of COULSe, were aware
af this and were told many times, but they're a law unto them-
selves, yvou know. They have to make the air, the aircraft

AECIES1l0NS=m—

BURG: Yes, they're in command of that aireraft, responsible,

HOFFMAN: ——for themselves. That's right., And for the most
pmrt, they're good, responsible guys. But I think the critigues
at our level were threats more than anything else! [Laughter]
You know, you don't always know why that man didn't throttle
dawn. Now, number one, he ceouldn't throttle down if the people
behind him were not throttled down. because what would happen
was that they would drop on top of his aircraft and that would
have bheen a mess. So they have--you know, there's so many

things in here.
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BURG: Because they're probably stair-stepped behind--

HOFFMAN: That's right,

BORG: —and a little higher altityde—=-—

HOFFMAN: That's right.

BURG: =~-and if he throttles down and they den't, then they'1l
overfly him a bit and drop their men right en tep of his

aircerafE.

HOFFMAN: &And if somebody takes evasive action in front of him,
well, he's in a spot., If these planes are flying--and they do

fly at different heights, but they fly in formation.

BURG: Yes, ‘in vee's,

HOFFMAN: COkay, well, what if the lead man moves over here and
now he drops and this fellow doesn't move; he's going to come
along and he's going to be dropping on top. So he may have heen

taking evasive action to get out of that. Get some—-

BURG: You're suggesting that the next two planes in the vee, and

maybe the next planes behind them, are pretty well gaing to have
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te conform to whatever evasive action the leader takes or
they've got problems Aropping their sticks. They're going teo

drop on top of ene another.

HOFFMAN: I think that's true. And, well, it was——the planes were
@ little fast, faster than we wanted them. You don't know why'.

Was it the wind? The--

BURG: --oxcitement in some cases, T think.

HOFFMAHN : [Laughter] oh aure!

BURG: KNervousness, excitement,

HOFFMAN: They were being shot at. They were in an aireraft.

They had to--

BURG: And no way to shoot back,

HOFFMAN: That's right.

BURG: And they can't relieve all of that tensicn by Jumping
and going down there to do something about it, as You men eould

doy 5o they—-
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HOFFMAN: They know they have to fly that plane back.

BURG: --had a difficult jok. Y¥Yes. Do you happen to remember
when it was that you were told that the next one was going to

ke in Halland? That's dats that we can——

HOFFMAEN: I can look, I can look=-=

EURG:z I can find that out.

HOFFMAN: It would seem to me that we're getting on up into--
we probably knew--of courseé, you know, you're always doing the
dry runs =soc that the Germans never know when. You're also--
the dry run is part of the training. You still have a lot of
other training to do. I am estimating, sinece we went in on
the 17th of September--it was a Sunday morning—-I woa 1d
estimate now that we're gonna back up five or six days from

that, when it'=s Aan absolute knowledge that we're going.

BURG: 0Okay.

HOFFMAN: 1I'd lock and see what I've got.

BURG: But you were trained before that. We could use the word
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"blind," just as you had been for Normandy., You were working
out: you were doing exercises that were training you for

Holland, but you didn't know yet that it would be Holland.

HOFFMAN: Yes, that's right. wWell, and in some cases, T think
there were other missions planned by the high command that

didn't come off.

BURG: Yes, that's right. It happened before Hplland, and

after,

MOFFMAN: &nd you would have tried those on. Then you began
to say, “"Hey. We've got a different terrain mock-up here that

we're going te lock at." And so something's different.

BURG: Yes. One final guestion this morning. You menticned
leave, in passing, a few minutes age and I know that you said
to me privately that one of the things you enjeyed doing

wag getting on the train and going someplace in England when
you did have scme leave. Was there leave for you between

Hprmandy and--

HOFFMAN: Dverybody.
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pURG: For everyone.

HOFFMAN = Everybody had a leave.

pUyRG: Was it of any length or wWas i¢ a week-end pass?

HOFFMAN: Ho, nDO. 1 think it was about a week. 1f 1 remember

correctly. Ahout SOVER days.-

pURG: Do you remember what ¥ou did?

HOFFMAN: Let's SEE. We are in England so 1 would hawve gone
off, prokably to gcotland. I forgel now whether I did this

then or at the | scunds 1ike] glove. I think I did it then.

pgRG: Do you remember any reaction to you from the pritish or
scottish public when you were on that leave? They would know

by now what you nad all done and where you had heen.

HOFFMAN: You knowW, the crazy Yank paratrocpers. Yes, it was
always good reaction, always & good reaction. But 1'11 have

ta look, I1'd have ta look that one up.

BURG: You C&h check that cut and wa'll start with that = week

from today.

HOFFMAN: Okay.



This interview is being taped with Colonel Raymond Hoffman
at the Dwight D. Eisenhower Library in Abilene, Kansas on
September the 8th, 1978, Present for the interview, Colonel
Hoffman and Dr. Maclyn Burg of the Eisenhower Library staff,
DR. BURG: Well, when we broke off last Friday, we were
discussing leave, and you thought that the ocne week leave

you got after Normandy and probably taken you up to Secotland,

and you locked arcund up there,

COLONEL HOFFMAN: To London first and then to Scotland.

DR. BURG: Yes. Rail traffic was still pesgible for yvou in

1944 |

COLONEL HOFFMAN: Everywhere., It was just so fantastic. Good

public transportation was averywhera,

DR. BURG: The trains were crowded, T Suppose.

COLONEL HOFFMAN: oOh, just packed. MNevertheless, they ran

and realtively on time.

DR. BURG: Now, I would assume that you went from London up
to Edinburgh. Or did you make it further than that, up into

tha Highlands?
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HOFFMAN: Glasgow.

BURG: You went to Glasgow?

HOPFMAN: Yes. I had relatives in Glasgow, =0 I went ko

look them up.

pOEG: Because I was going to ask you, under wartime conditions,

how could you be sure of some place to stay up in Scotland?

HOFFMAN: Well, you know, there were troops everywhere, but there
were still good English hotels that Americans, you Know, could
afford. But Red Cross pretty much ewverywhere, Especially im
the big cities. For the purposes of leave there were leave
hotels or arrangements. Many times--I think this is one of the
finest or nicest things that was @VED done: I'm not sure it
eould be done today. But the Red Cross would have lists of
places that would give ——either had rooms or a kind of @& home

hospitality.

BURG: 1In a private home.

HOFFMAN: And it was the nicest way to get to know the English

people.
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BURG: BSort of "bed and breakfagt® set=ups.

HCFFMAN: And sometime rather than take that, you'd take a hot
cup of tea or something, rather than have the food for bresk—

fast.

BURG: Well evidently, from what my travelling friends have
told me, and what Pat and I saw ourselves when we were there in
'73, that is still very commonly done the length and breadth
of Britain. BAnd many tourists prefer to do that; drive their
cars and do that kind of thing., 1If they're there for fourteen
days, they wind up meeting fourteen families in Scotland and

England. But relatives in Glasgow that vou had never seenqn,

1 assume.

HOFFMAN: Oh, never, never. I got a list of names, a few
gtreet addresses that were quite old, from cne of my aunks and
spent some time going around to Ffind them. But this was the

London, I think, of the buzz-bomh Eimes, too.

BURG: Yes. Y¥es, I think so. Right. So it was much better ta

be up in Scotland for a week's uninterrupted rest.
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HOFFMAN: T don't know long--how much Lime we spent. Of course,
we'd been to London before. It wasn't very many., you know, days.,
We didn't have very much time, really. It book time to

travel, but you'd go by train all the way up there and all the

way back. You're loocking at about two days of travelling —-

BURG: Exactly.

HOFFMAN: -—-by train.

BURG: Right. Right,

ROFFMAN: And yet it was certainly enjoyable. Of course, we
were—-I like to travel anyway soc what better way to do it than on

& Ltrain with a lot of people to talk to. They were friendly.

BURG: Were you able to stay with any of those relatives in

Glasgow? Stay in their homes or--7

HOFFMAN: Seems to me that we had eénough time, after we found

the bunch.

BURG: And you say "we, "

HOFFMAN: T had a friend with me. Yes.

EURG: Another officer from your regiment.
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HOFFMAN: Yes, a young-—-trying to think of--you know, I'd4
have te look that up. I just, I have a feeling that there

was another officer with me.

BURG: You're probably right.

HOFFMAN: Usually you went with somebody.

BUORG: Yes,.

BOFFMAN: Well, I must have=-

BURG: Let me ask you this, did you take food with you? That's

& heavily-raticned country in that year,

HOFFMAN: Y¥esa, We wounld take the kinds of things they wouldn't

get a hold of. Sugar, candy--

BUEG: Coffee, I would assume.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Mostly powdered bhut, nevertheless, ves, we
stuffed one of the bags. We would have plenty, becagse we just

didn't want to=--
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BURG: Oems, jellies, things of that sort would he in short

supply. Probably a little——

HOFFMAN: You just didn't want to take——and yet they were
almost hurt. I know they were saving their ration things, and

it almost hurt if you didn't eat their meal.

BURG: Yes, Well Pat was there two yeara later; the war was

over but the rationing was still on. She, too, went up into
Scotland to see relatives--and in the Midlands of England--and they
found it necessary--they tock their ration bocks. They also took
stuff in the packages that had been sent to them. They were in
school in London and they took those things with them and kind

of replenished the supply.

HOFFMAN: That's right. That's what you'd do. ¥You'd leave

these things. But while we were in England, I can remember--—

T don't know whether it was this trip or some of the others,
because any time I had an opportunity even for a day or a day and

a half, I'd go somewhere 4ust to see—-,
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BUREE: Yes.

HOFFMAN: I can remember one of these home hospitality things
in whiech a little, bitty English lady--zhe took me upstairs

and showed me where the room was ané showed me where the water
closet was, and so forth. And in the--I told her I had to be up
early, and I think maybe I had to; I timed it so that I had to
be up at 6:15 or scomething like that. There was a little tap
and the door opened wide enough for just & little, little hanc
to come through the door and it had = cup of strong tea with
milk. &And it laid this on the table heside the bed and then
that door just closed. She didn't do anymore than just--. You
know, I drank that tea. That was the best-tasting cup of tea
I've ever had in my life. I'm no great tea drinker but my
mother, being a Scotch lady, always drank her tea. And my
grandmother, of course, never had anything else but tea, She

wouldn't drink coffee.,

BUREG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: But that little, bitty hand coming through that deor,

vou know. I was sort of half awake and looking.
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BURG: BServing this big, barbarian, paratroop officer,.

[Laughter]

HOFFMAN: "Crazy Yank," yvou know. She was, yvou know, she
might have been all of five feet tall and a whisper of a

lady. She was very nice.

BURG: Well, after some of these opportunities to relax, as

you méntioned last Friday, the jump intoc Holland--I think the
divisional history that yvou've given to us indicated that there
had been times where you literslly were trying en your chutes by
the aircraft when operations were cancelled. And particularly

because Patton's Third Army had moved so fast—-

HOFFMAN: Well they changed their minds. They had other
cperations in mind and then they would discover that the Germans

had just moved troops in or something. Or it had become unnec-

essary because Patton was moving.

BURG: Right. 8o, ultimately it's going to be the Holland
operation, in which you jumped on the 17th of September of 1944.
And just in gquick summary, the story of the whole cperation pretty

well teld by Cornelius Ryan in that book, A Bridge Too Far.
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HOFFMAN: A Bridge Too Far.

BURG: It's the l0lst that makes the nearer jump. That is

it's jump area 18 closest to the Britist--I think it was the
British Second Army. Then the 82nd airborne jumps, let me say,
in the second area, which is now just beyond the 10lst. And

then the British lst Airborne Division jumps on Arnham itself.

HOFFMiN: Crazy.

BURG: The operation intending=--

HOFFMaN: . Absolutely crazy.

BURG: --then to open up a2 road and to seize those bridges,
particularly those bridges over the--it's the Rhine there, isn't

it?

BEOFFMAN: Well, up where they jumped to, it's the Neder Rijn,

Northern Rhine. But we also had to secure the canal, which is
the Prince William [Zuid Willems Canal]. You had to have that
canal. And that's what the glider troops did., And you had to

hawve the bridges that were all the way up through. And the
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bridges were secure. There's no question about that.

BURG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: [I Just wish You could--garbled an tape] because the
British troops, the British tankers, came up and sat on that

road. We cried.

BURG: Y¥You eried?

HOFFMAN: We ecried, They sat on that resd.

BURG: &Ah, ves,

HOFFMAN: We got hell beat cut of us and they sat on that

road,

BURG: And wouldn't mowve

HOFFMAN: Would not move, Montgemery wouldn't move.

BURG: Yes, because the gentlemen in command was not going to

take a chance.

HOFFMAN: Well, I alsc have sympathy for him, Lock at the men

that England lest. pang it wae the British strategy, if they
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could, to mass everything available before they mounted the

dttack. But it was hard to toake,

BURG: Yes. We'll get to that in a few minutes, You went
through the same kind of exercise, in effect, for this one that
you had done for Normandy. There were the sand tables, the
aerial photegraphs; the Jjump zones, the drep zones, were
thoroughly familiar to you. Do yvou recollect now any definite
change in procecure from the procedures that you were trained
for for Normandy, I think I asked you ‘before if there had been
critigues and if vou had changed technigues in response to your
Normandy experience: your answer, I guess, wasg, no, you really

didp!t.

HOFFMAN: No.

BRG: You're going to do things pretty much the same way. The

objectives now were a little different.

HOFTMAMN: Yes.

BURG: The ground on which you're Jumping is-=-and there's ne
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more bocage, no more hedge rows, but low, generally-featureless
land. Roads that are more like causeways. In a sense, it's
something like that situation that you had to cope with on the first
day or so in Normandy. The ground to the side was going to be

a little soft: not negotiable really by armor, not easily
negotiakble. The roadways are up, elevated a bit. The bridges

that you--the 501st had about four bridges to seize in Holland--
very reminiscent of the four bridges on the causeway inta Carentan,
But basically the training for Holland, the exercises in preparation

for it, are not radically different from Normandy.

HOFFMAN: No and somewhat expected to be easier, since we were
going to jump in the daytime. This is a daytime jump. It's a

Sunday morning jump.

BURG: HMNow, could I-—

HOFFMAN: We move in and cut of marshalling areas like swinging

doors, you know,

BURG: Thinking you're going to 9o, and then it's czlled ofsf.

Sc would you say, Ray, that as far as anxiety is concerned and




Col. Ray Hoffman, #7, 9-B-78 Page 319

tenslon, you personally might have felt less of that for the
September 17th jump? It is, after all, vour second big combat

Jump .

RBOFFMAN: GSome mysteries have been removed, but youm still have
your thoughts before the jumps, and your young man's knowledge
that you're going to test yourself against this sitwation. I
think anxiety may not have been of the anxious type, but the

tension of being up for it--

BURG: As you would be "up" for a game.

BOFFMAN: --the tension was there. ves. The tension wa=s there.

BURG: I like your use of the wards "some of the mysteries had heen
removed." At one and the same time, you also had learned how
exceedingly fragile a human being is. You'd seen some who were
rather badly broken in that thing in Normandy. What mysteries

particularly, come %9 your mind now?

HOFFMAN: Well you now know what it is to be fired upon, as well

as to fire,
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BURG: Yes, yes.

HOFFMAN: Yes, we'd been through combat, and we'd been through

hight combat,

BURG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: Now that's the cutting——

BURG: The worst kind,

ROFFMAN: --I really think if the professional wants to cut his
job inte two difficult halves, he cuts it with night fighting

and day fighting. To eontrol and to take cbjectives—--to control
men and te take objectives in night fighting is without a doubt

that most difficult.

BURG: TI'wve not read any of the preliminaries that I should
have at hand at this moment on Holland, but mavbe you know;
maybe they didn't tell you, maybe they did. Why a daytime
jump in Helland, rather then the night jump that was made in
Hormandy and at the other end of Omzha Beach where the British

dropped?
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HOFFMAN: Well, I think we--unless--I guess, we had contral
of the air for the Normandy thing, tee. I don't know, really,
at least at this peint. I could probably go and think about

it, or look at my letters, bhut--

BURG: As I think about it, I think I know exactly why. I should
have thought of it sconer. Your jumps, and those of the &th
British Airborne Division in Normandy, are prediected on geizing
either a river at the British end or seizing key bridges and cause-
ways away from the invasion. You had to be timed to coincide

with a seaborne invasion that is going to land at the best state

of the tide that it ean. BaAnd, therefore, the only way you can have

the causeways from Utah Beach locked up and the bridges-—-

HOFFMAN: I suppose that's right.

!

BURG: --locked up, you'wve got to be there before the seaborne
units hit at dawn. Therefore, you had to jump at night. In
Holland, there's no guestion of a seaborne invasion so the day-
time jump must refleet some other kind of thinking. HNow I realize,
as I remember, why you had to jump at night on the sixth of

June. But you wouldn't have to do that in Holland,
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HOFFMAN: I forget now whether to the south, down Ly the canal,
there might have been some units coming in after. They mavy

have come in at night, next day.

BURG: You're thinking of Holland?

Ii'.J

HOFFMAN: Yes. >

BURG: Yes. Well, from what I've just read in that one
particular gnit histery, 1l0lst airborne history, the column
of aircraft--those carryving parachutists, the two American
divisions, the British divisieon: those towing the gliders--was
a8 loeng, long column. 2And I think it's probably gquite likely
that some--if everyone was to jump sometime on that day, or
drop sometime on that day-—seme would have to go, perhaps,

before dawn breaks in order toc be on the ground.

HOFFMAN: Neo, I don't think so., I don't think anybody went
before we did. I think we were out Sunday morning, at the time
reople were coming back from church. But I'm thinking of to
the south. It may have been that night or mayhe it was the

next day.
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pURG: But scome did come down at night?

HOFFMAN: There were units-—I don't knew, I'd have to go and

look that up.

pURc: That's conceivable, because the polish airborne unit
doesn't come in as I remember, on that first day at all at
arnhem. It seems to me that it comes in on the second or the
third day. And so that kind of thing, 1in trying te pull it all
together, that kind of thing happened. Well, perhaps we can

take & break right now.

HOFFMAN: Okay.

[ Interruption]

BURG: Anything special about your loading up? Did that go
about as usual? Putting the stick into the aireraft? What
plane, for example, was headguarters in? Were you split up

again, the way you had been in Normandy?

HOFFMAN: HNormally, split up. I went in this time with whatewver

serials [Lt.] Colonel [Harry W. 0.] Kinnard [Jr.] at that time had.
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BURZ: K-i-n=n=-a-r-d?

BOFFMAN: R-d. Yes.

BURG: Was he a battalion commander in the 501st?

EOFFMAN: Battalion commander.

BUEG: Do vou remember the battalion?

HOFFMAN: Well, I'm inclined to say it was the lst but——

BURG: Yes. Klondike Red in that case.

HOFFMAN: I'm not sure, I saw something heres. It says 50lst,

less the lst Battalion, landed here up at Eerde.

BURG: How's that spelled?

HOFFMAN: Let me see. The First [Battalion]. Here we are. Yoo,

BURG: How do you spell Eerde?

HOFFMAN: E-e-r-d-e on this map.

BURG: 211 right. &And that's in Lecnard Rappaport's Rendezvous

With Destinv.
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HOFFMAN: But I helieve we went inteo DE A-2. 1lst Battalion,

50lst, landed here, and I think we went in with them.

EURG: So that drop zone again was——

HDF:ET'E:N: .!JE .Fl--z B

BURG: A=2. And you think that's where you landed? Now that

puts you west—-

HOFFMAN: North and west of Veghel.

BURG: Of Veghel, V-e-g-h-e-1l, [Ed. note: B&also spelled

Vechel]

HOFFMAN: Right. I believe that's the way we came down.

BURG: Were you in the same aircraft with Kinnard then?

HOFFMAM: Mo, I don't think so. However, I think I was in

the same vee, because I landed near him.

BURG: I see. You still had the same job, scouting and

patrolling.
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HOFFMAN: GScouting and patrolling until we linked up and
then continuation of that, and posting situation maps,
contacting of patrols, Dutch underground. Very, wvery fine

bunch of people. Did a lot of work for us.

BURG: And, unfortunately, were not believed by the high command
when they tried to tell the high command that the area was
rotten with Panzer units, including S8 PanZzer, and that the

Germans were no longer running.

HOFFMAN: I believe the 501st believed them, but we weren't

moving anything. But it was three days of loveliness. [Laughter]

BURG: Yes, that's my understanding. Well let's talk about
entering "loveliness.' When you went out of the aircraft, I
would figure that you're probably garbed about the same way, rigged
out in the say way. Did you now have the new guick-release

parachute harnesses?

BOFFMAN: Yes. GQuick release, Quarter torn and it would pop.
It was daytime; you could look arcund. You could see peaple.

Now they were coming from church.
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BURG: Yes. Did you have any unusual gecurances in the air-
craft leaving England and coming in over the coast? Were you

fired at on your way in?

HOFFMAN: There may have been some fire as we came across the

coast but it didn't seem to bother anything.

BURG: Fairly light flak.

HOFFMAN: Yes, It didn't seem to bother anything.

BURGE: OF course, the difference between that and Normendy is
that it isn't guite so obvione as it is at night, when you see
every iota of tracer coming up, and this kind of thing, A&As

far as your personal eguipment-—-—

HOFFMAN: And the weather was great.

BURG: =—-did you have a--and the weather was great. Did you

have a leqg bag on this time?

HOFFMAN: Mo, no extra stuff this time.

BURG: So were you still armed with a carbine?
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HOFFMAN: No. I think by this time I had enough experience
and I went in there with a Thompson sub-machine gun. In fact,

I know I did.

BIRG: And gpare clips for that in the pouches gp here in
front, &And as you think abeout it, no real change in your gear

except those that we have mentioned so far—
HOFFMA: Yes.

BURG: =-from what you had gone inte Normandy with. No problem

getting out the door?
HOFFMA N - o .

i
BURG: Your stick emptied out. N

HOFFMAN: Perfect daytime jump. The weather was--it was a

bright, sunny Sunday mMOrning.

BURG: The aircraft flying at the usual drop speed this time--

HOFFPMAN: I think =o.
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BURG: ~-—-very little evasive manuevering.,

HOFFMAN: No, none,

BURG: HNone.

HOFFMAN: MNone. They didn't have to.

BURG: How abont the height? Morxe like the three hundred

feet or four hundred feet?
HOFFMAN: No, I would say we probably went out at about nine,

kg
BURG: A% akout nine hundred feet. Efr_ﬂ-

HOFFMAN: 1 don't think it was necessary to come out. We

were encguntering no problem and-—-

BURG: HNo ground fire coming up:

HOFFMAK: ‘No ground fire coming up. There wasn't anybody

eround.

BURG: Your landing was perfectly satisfactory. You have any

problems coming in?
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The usual clobbering inte the

HOFFMRN: Yes. [Laughter]
ground.
BURG: I didn't want to ask you that! [Laugther)
HOFFMAK: My first jump was just fine. I didn't realize how
[Laughter]

bad it was until that second jump.

And every jump after that you managed to botch in one
Did you come down in open fields?

BURG:
way or another! [Laughter)
HOFFMAN: TYes. T
L] '.
3 o)
Wa oy
BURG: I know there were many around that area, Nemus
HOFFMAN: Alongside the road and in the fields. WwWe got on
the road for approach march.
BURG: It must have felt unuswal to you, in that nine hundred feet—-—
HOFFMAN: Absolutely.
BURG: ~--with no fire coming at you.
[sound of applause].

HOFFMAN: No fire, but pegple down below,
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BURG: hApplauding!

HOFFMAN: Applauding. [laughter]

BURG: PFor heaven sakes! In their Sunday-go-to-meeting

clothes.,

HOFFMAN: People in their Sunday clethes! They're coming back
from chureh and they're just cheering! And then they get
flowers and they begin te break out the flags! And they came
along--if you passed a farm, the house alongside the road with
@ fence and so forth, the mother gives to the children ilce
Lream and she brings ice cream out to the soldiers. And the
little children are given [Laughter] the American G.I., para-

Lrooper ice cream to eat! And it's hot, you know.

BURG: Yes. 2 totally different picture from that one a couple

of menthes earlier,

BOFFMAN: So different,

BURG: Well, in that field where vou landed, Ray, I assume that
all around you vou see your stick coming in right and left of

vou,
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HOFFMAN: You knew where everybody was.

BURG: &nd you linkéd up fast with the people you were to link
up with, B5So on that one, in Holland, you could start right
then to carry out your missions,; with virtually the full
persaonnel. Probably the full personnel, except for those

injured in the jump.

HEOFFMAN: We had the=-yes,

BURG: And were there many of those?

HOFFMAN: No, I don't-—you hear of some but nobody that I
remember having to be carried, Of course, you always get
knees and ankles, and there may have been a few broken bones

but I don't remember any.

BURG: Let me ask you this. As you bundle up your chute and
everything on the DZ, and you assemble with your men and the
rest of the men, did you hear so much as a shot being fired?

[Laughter]

BEOFFMAN: No, noc. There was no fire, There was no fire.that
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I can remember, And yvou didn't fool with the chutes at all.
You just left them. You weren't, you know--even though all of this

was going on, you weren't guite sure at that point.

BURG: Hawve I seen pictures, in fact, of 1l0lst personnel

coming along later on and stuffing those chutes--

HOFFMAN: The riggers.

BURG: =--into bags. The riggers?

HOFFMAN: Riggers would pick up. 0Oh, yves, that was their job.

Try to salvage as much as you could. Sure.

BURG: Yes. Something which probably wasn't done with any

great effect in Normandy.

HOFFMAN: Well, what they could find was--there were always
salvage parties. Either the G-4s, ES-4's who--guartermaster—-
control riggers--and, yes, they'd salvage what was available.
But a lot of those chutes were either hidden or claimed by the
natives., But that was night time, and a lot of them were in
the water, I suppose. But not 8o in Holland. It was all

there,




col. Ray Hoffman, #7, 9-8-78 Page 334

BURG: Yes. Now what was your own specific tasl, as =oon a5 you
got clear of that chute and your weapon unstrapped and ready
to go? What was the job that you and your section hag to

do?

HOFFMAN: The entire battalion formed up to make an approach

march down that road,.

BURG: Which road is that? The main road?

HOFFMAN: From--right down this road right here.

BURG: So you're showing a——

BOFFMAN: From the northwest into Veghel, on the north side of

the--whatever that canal is. Willems Vaart Canal.

[ Interruption — Side 2 of Tape]

BURG: What time did you hit the ground, approximately? Just

before noon, roughly noon?

HOFFMAN: Yes. It muast have been, maybe, & 1ittle after noon,

becaugse I figure this, their church gervice must have been

arcund eleven o'clock.
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BURG: I would expect they would he,

HOFFMAN: They were returning heme so it must have been =
little hit after noon, and as we formed up, I joined the Colenel
Kinnard. Of course the battalions have their own-2 secticns and
he had a fine one. But where my people could be used for

flankers or anything else, point--

BURG: And you, in effect--an actual fact——you simply walked

down te Veghel. The whole unit, without opposition,

EDFFMAN: Of course you had a point out, you had flanks, and

so forth, but the main body walked on down bath sides of that

road without any opposition whatseever.

1_1: ¥
x

': -
>

: E
BURG: About how big a town was Veghel, do you remember? unﬂ'

HOFFMAN: You know, I'm trying to think. It's a pretty geood
sized town. I would think, off the top of my head, perhaps
thirty theusand people, but it may not have been that kig.

[Ed. note: Veghel is shown to have approximately 6,000 people
in a 1952 gazetteer,]
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BURG: Yes., But that's the impression you have of it.

HOFFMAN: But I've been back there and--I don't think they

give any size of the thing.

BURG: Well we can find the size. I assume, from what T

can see on the map, that it was not a wvillage.

HOFFMAN: OCh, no. No, no. When I went back for their seventeenth
anniversary of their liberation, you had a chance, you Know,

to strell arcund and [there were] good sized buildings, good sized
churches. And Howard Johnson moved into a very beautiful stone
home that belonged to a doctor and made that his regimental

headguarters.

EURG: Yes.

HOFFMAN: So it was from there that we operated. They used

the dining room, I believe, for the war room.

BURG: BSo you, too, were at that house or near by.

HOFFMAN: ©Oh, ves. Yes.
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BURG: And operating with the regimental headguarters set-up
from the time yvou got to Veghel, As you went there, can 1
assume that the aircraft were still overflying you, taking the
B2nd further up to the northeast. Taking the British even

further up?

HOFFMAN: Seems to me that the aireraft kept coming in and
then, I suppose, later in the day or the next day, the

resupplies came in. Yes.

BURG: Dropping additional eguipment to all the unita. But

that first day and that second day, nothing.

HOFFMAN: Nope.

BURG: As far as you were concerned, the 10lst is in there

alimost scot free.

HOFEMAN: The orange flags broken out on almost every house
and building. But you know, as the underground talks to you
and as you begin to secure the area, that this is a wvery, very

strange thing. and, really, it ean't last. I ecouldn't see
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how it could last, These bridges were important. That highway

was important.

BURG: In effect, I suppose the 1l0lst has fanned out on either eide
of the highway and taken up defensive positicns to hold back
any kind of attempt to seize the highway again. &nd it has sent

out patrols up te the northeast te link up with the BiZnd.
HOFFMAN: You had to make vyour contacts.

BURG: You have parties placed to protect those bridges that
you've seized and I assume you've got to move out far enough

so that you can have half a chance of keeping German artillary
from coming in on those bridges. You would try to keep them,

at least their lighter pieces, from getting close encugh. I
suppose a heavy German field piece that can throw a shell seven,

ten miles, I would imagine you can't do anything about that.
HOFFMAN: HNoO.
BURG: But you can keep the lighter stuff away. E&

HOFFMAN: You don't have enough people at this point.
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BURG: Even though the entire division is down there on the
ground-- [Ed, note: The lDlst Airborne Division was not finally

assenbled until D + 6, when the final air drops and seaborne
lifts had been accomplished.]

HOFTMAN: Yan,

BURG: =--and this time not scattered all over creation. You're
all there; you're formed up. But there's a limit toc how much

vou can do, how far away you can Keep the Germans from apprcach=-
ing you. Now let me ask you this. Did the elements, any elements,
of the British Second Army, arrive in the 1l0lst area of the first

day?

HOFFMAN: Ho.

BURG: On the second day? [18 September|
BOFFMAM: No, I think they came on the third day. But maybe
they did come on the second day. [Ed. note: It appears that

the Guards Armored Division of British Semnd Army passed through
veghel on the third day [D + 2], 19 September, lo44.]

BURG: Okay. We'll look. We'll check that out.

HOFFMAN: Yes, you might check that.
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EURG: But right now your recollection is that they didn't
reach you until the third day, and yet you're the closest

airkorne division to them.

BOFFMAN: If I remember, they were delayed or something., And
I think they were delayed at that bigger ecanal [Wilbhelmina Canall]

to the scuth, where we put a let of the gliders,

BURG: OQkay, wa'll check it out.

HOFFMAMN: ¥Yes, You might check that.

BURG: Did you have any contact with any of the personnel of

the Second British Army yourself?

HOFFMAN: ©h, sure, But this came later on, you know. You
had the --I believe, part of those were Black Watch, I think,

From their tartan. It was a black and a green.

BURG: Without any white in it or any red in it,

HOFFMAN: I don't think either one of those things were in it.

I think it was just the black and the green. Almost a forest

green.
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BURG: Yes. No vellow.

HOFFMAN: HNo.

BURG: That sounds Black Watch.

HOFFMAN: I think that was the Black W=tch., and T kelieve
that as this thing progressed along, they were in on the night
attack at Eerde and this kind of thing. ©h, wyes, they were

great. But they weren't moving.

BURG: But for you, at least three days with no combat.

HOFFMAN: I think the first combat came on the third day. And
boy, just--the shells started to fall inta the city and the flags

——ffrrrt, ffrrt, ffrrt--the flags disappeared.

BURG: All the Dutch flags.

HOFFMAN: People into their houses and into their cellars. Yo,
it was pretty sad. And the commander kept saying, "This can't
hold," to the civilian contacts that he had, the docter and

the mayor and cther P;Dple. "Tell your people, be careful.™

Then I think on the third day it started., The-——I don't know
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what else to say,

BURG: In that pericd of time, in those first three days, as

agsistant §-2-——because I assume yvou still were--

HOFFMAN: Yas.

BURG: -——assistant S-2--did you start receiving reports about
what was happening at Arnhem, further north where the British

had attempted to seize the bridges?

HOFFMAN: Yes. Whatever reports came in, we posted on the
headquarters map. The -3 people would post all of the friendly
forces and the -2 people would post all the enemy things. And
any messages such as that would come in from either XVIIT Air-
borne Corps or the divisien. It would be, of course, immediately
posted. But I would say that the commanders, of course, knew

it before it ever came to the point where it was posted, unless

he happened to be out,

BURG: Yes. He'd be the first one to really get a look at

those messages.
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HOFFMAN: Well the message would come-—it might come directly

over the radio=--but it weould he written down.

BURG: Let me ask you this. Did you know in England, prior
to broading the aireraft, did you all know the extent of what
was heing attempted here? That is, did you understand, not
only what the 1l0lst was supposed to do, but what the B2nd

and the lst British Airborne were supposed to do? In =ome

eort of broad sense?

HOFFMAN: This is one of the great things about being in the
=4 section. You got to know more than other pecple would
know, because you had & chance to go to division to pick up
mape or to bring reports, or something else, and you had a

charnce te leok at their maps, and so forth,
BURG: Get the sgkinny, so to speak!

HOFFMAN: I always did that, see. [laughter] I would say that
the briefings were for the operational area and not for the
larger porticons of operation MARKET-GARDEN. Except for, of

course, the penior officers. But I couldn't help but pieck up
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the plan, either by reading the documents or locking at the
map. So I think I knew the extent of MARKET-GARDEN. But I
don't think anybody realized how bad it was going to be, except

maybe the British.

BURG: You, for example, even though you might have seen the
maps that showed where the drop Zones were going to be for all
three airborne divisions, you don't recpllect looking at the
British drop zZones and thinking to yvourself, "Why there? Why
not up at the objective?" Beecause I believe the British

r ﬂ‘
. B 1
dropped something like seven to eight miles from-—- E o

HOFFMAN: Yes, I estimated that it was five. But my real brain-
ticking was not so much that they were, say, five mils from ik,
but how come such a emall unit is going to tackle an industrial
city and think they can get away with it? Airborne units are

not set up to tackle cities that size,

BURG: %o that was the thing that struck you at the time,

HOFFMAN: What is Arnhem? Arnhem is something like eighty-five

or eighty-seven thousand—-
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BURG: I suspect you're right. [Ed. note: Shewn to be 97,350
in a 1952 garetteer,)

HOFFMAN: Big, you know, factories and=-there's no way.
BURG: 2And that was yvour thought at the time.
HOFFMAN: ves.

BURG: Not something that—— E

HOFFMAN: Not necessarily that they were--I estimated they
were five miles out. How come such a gmall--they really—

vou know.

BURG: You're saying that by cur sirborne doctrine, that was

an unusual decision.

HOFFMAN: Sure. Well, there's you know--they haven't got
heavy artillery. They haven't got heavy anti-tank stuff. They

den't have any armor, this kind cf thing.

BURG: Well, when it came right down to it, when they disembarked

on those landing grounds they alsc didn't have jeeps.
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HOFFMAN: That's right. You walk, We didn't. We didn't

have them,

BURG: They had te make that five to seven miles, to the

bridges that they were to seize, pretiy moch on foot.

HOFFMAN: Your jeeps, if they came in, were in the gliders.,
And if they made it in and out of the gliders, then the jeeps

wauld be for command units, because they had the radiocs and

so forth. ©Or they might be for medical usze, [

N
ST
g

BURG: As I remember, it was af the order--—and I can and will
correct it later if I'm wrong=--but as I remember, of the seven
jeeps that they're supposed to have for coup de main that could
reach those bridges rapidly, they might have had two. Certainly
not enough te transport a force strong enough to seize it while
the rest are walking the five to seven miles to get there,

[Ed. note: See Cornelius Ryan, A Bridge Too Far, Pg. 259, whare
the commanding officer of the coup de main attempt, Major Gough,
is quoted as saying that he had mere than enough jeeps,]

EOFFMAN: This is why the airborne always did the airberne trot.

[Laughter]
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BUEG: Y¥es, so fthat yvou could-—

HOFFMAN: You wouldn't move along that--but even at that, they
had to have what was behind if they were going te hold that

bridge, assuming they got to it.

BUURG: The reinforcements, the additional supplies, the added

ammunition.
HOFFMAN: ©Oh, that tank=-=that armor, they neseded that armor.

BURG: Yes. You're speaking now of the light tanks that could

be air-transported in?
HOFFMAN: HNo. The snes that were supposed to be on the road.

BURG: Oh, yes, The ones that were supposed to come in on the

road, yes. Right, The Seceond British Army.

HOFFMAN: After all you know, they can travel twenty, twenty-
five miles an hour, probably, even with the lopads they had on

them.

BURG: Let me ask you. Did others share your sense of, "I
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wonder why they're doing it that way?™ Do you remember if others
in your unit, regimental headguarters, were also a little

puzzled?

HOFFMAN: Well, my assumption was that they knew more sbout the

operation then I did.

BURG: You hadn't been in service long enough yet ta doubt

that. [Laughter]

HOFFMAN: Yes. Probably were privy to better documents than

I locked at. Bot I looked at the plan,

BURG: How about the pecple around you, and their general
feeling about their part of the operation? Was the general
feeling, "This is guite feasible., It is something we can do.

Looks good to us"?

HOFFMAN: I don't think ocur people had any problems with it.

BURG: MNobody had grave doubts.

HOFFMAN: And, of course, morale was way up. To get in and get
established before you were hit. This was a great bonus, you

kqow .
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BURG: %Yes. A follow-up guestion on that., You're saying that
our people were pretty well confident about what they're going
to be deing. You can't speak for the 82nd or for the lst

British because you weren't with them,

HOFFMAN: MNo. Just for the 501st. But I think the whole l0lst
felt that they had missicns that could be accomplished. and
getting in as easily as we did: almost gracefully, insofaras

the thing was like a big training excercise.

BURG: Yes, A textbook example of how to do 1t. When does
uneasiness, if I can use that term, or anxiety, bhegin to set

in?

HOFFMAN: I think we believed the Dutch pecple hecause thesy

had been at this. The regimental commander was using a

doctor's home., The doctor was one of the leaders, as everybody
would come there te share what infeormation [they had with him?].
The young members of the underground--and thses were really kids;
some of them are now lawyers in Apsterdam—-but they were some

of our best eyes and ears. They would take their hicycles,



Col. Ray Hoffman, #7, 09-g-78 Page 350

pack a lunch. A girl and a boy would go bicyeling inte a
place where they had an opportunity to ghserve activity and
then come back and show on the map what they had seen. And

vou're seeing and vou're hearing thingse,
BURG: They could probe out further then our uniformed men.

HOFFMAN: Sure. They could make believe that they were just

a couple of young tesnagers out, They took an awful chance.

:I-,,

1
. i
-

EI.mG: YES. il-"
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HOFFMAN: They had a map underneath tha cloth in which they
wrapped their lunch, inside the basket on the front handlebars
Gof the--on the handlebars of the bicycle. And then, of course,

our own patrols were moving and out and listening and watching.

BURG: Had you expected, or been led to expect, that elements
of the Second British army, and particularly, armored slements,
would be up with you sometime during the first day? Do vou

remember now?d

HOFFMAN: We thought that as soon as the bridges were secure that
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it would not be long before these guys would be going down

the read. Not stopped on the road.

BURG: Where had you jumped-—and that's something I haven't
had a chance to check. I'll look into it—-had wou jumped,
perhaps, tén miles ahead of the leading elements of the Second
British Axmy or the road, or fifteen milea? Do you happen to

remamber’?

HOFFMAN: Oh, easily that, I think. But that wouldn't take
S
= =]
%.‘r -,::""

HOFFMAN: On division history, you'wve got a map on page 261,

them that long.

BURG: MNo, it sure wouldn't.

BURG: This is Redezvous with Destiny.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Well let's see, Veghel. Use the old thumb nail.
All right. We're jumping, if we can believe this, twenty-five--
no ten, fifteen, that's twenty—-—okay, twenty-five to thirty miles,
1 think, in front of them. And yet there were other troops

down in the Eindhoven area, and so forth, which is south of us.
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I believe division--maybe 506, 508. But., anyway, division,
I believe, is down in that area. But, I think their big hold-
up was getting acress this, the bigger canal, And I don't know

what the name of that is.

BURG: But south of you and in the Eindhoven area.

HOFFMAN: Yas.

BUEG: EBExcuse me, let me bturn that off.

[Interruption) ffffﬂu
; %)
1l.j,‘ o/

HOFFMAM: Back about here, e

BURG: ©Oh. You were saying that what you were waiting for

wos the Guards hrmored Division.

HOFFMAN: Guards Armored Division. ¥es. To push through.
They were to be with us no later than forty-eight hours. And
we expected them on the first day. But according to this,
the division had a sixteen mile stretch of this road, but we

were dropping--Veghel's about twenty-five miles from the canal.
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And they've got to break through across this canal first. This
is what the British have to do. But from Eindhaoven to Veghel—
and that area given to the division was sixteen miles long,
Well, you know, a division with = sixteen mile road: the best

you can de is te do the strong points.

BURG: When you say do the strong points--

HOFFMAN: Fortify around to hold the bridges. You've got to
have the bridges. Because the tanks are bound to those roads,

They can't go off.

BURG: The ground is toco soft off the road, so-——

HOFFMAN: In order to corss they've got to be akle to cross
over those bridges, And sixteen miles of corridor was an

awful long way for a combat unit te hold. Our kind, anyway.

BURG: To held those bridges against—-—

HOFFMAN: No, to hold every piece of the road. 2and had they

wanted to cut, they could have cut,
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BURG: The Germans could have.

HOFFMAN: Yes. As they tried to do.

BURG: But, did they try--

HOFFMAN: You couldn’t put a main line of registance on both
gides of that road for sixteen miles. You didn't have encugh
troops to cover thirty-eight--uh, thirty-two--miles on both
sides of that road, so you fortified the strong points at the

bridges. ¥

Nt
BURG: Yes. And the country is so flat, with virtually no

relief features at all that you could use for defense. You
can't even hold the Germans cut of shaervation range of that

road. Observaticn in that flat country is like western Kansas.
HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: You can be fifteen miles away From the read and you still
see it guite plainly. All right. 8o that's the outfit that
you're waiting to come up and they do not coms up at guite the

speed that you thounght. &nd yex, obviously, this whole operation
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MARKET-GARDEN hangs on that British armor getting up to

Arnhem with all speed.
HOFFMAN: Yeas,

BUBG: &And the people in the 10lst and the 82nd are going to
have to hold a corrider until those heavy units can get up,.
Cnce they get up, once they hold the raoad up to Arnhem, then

they have the power to widen the corridor.
HOFFMAN: That's right,

[l &+
BURG: Which you do not have, l% g

BOFFMRN: The road is secure on the first day. That is, as

far as the bridges-—--
BURG: %Yes., Aall the way.

ROFFMAN: Everything i= secure, I was just trying to see
whether they tell when that Guards Armored came through. "First
light on D-Day the first German strength made an obvious——_"

b + 1 is when the Gearmans start in,
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BURG: 5o it isn't until the second day that they—-

HOFFMAN: Second day.

BURG: And that's when the shell fire comes into Veghel,

for example.

HOFFMAN: That's when it begins, I think.

BURG: And I don't remember but it seems to me that the 82nd
Airborne may have run into trouble s little earlier than that.
And, of course, the lst British airborne is in trouble right
from the minute they drop, virtually. They begin to get
resistance right away. All right. Then let's have it at
that point, where you're beginning to take German fire in

Veghel on the second day.

HOFFMAN: Yes. They talk about Rafferty here.

BURG: Who is Rafferty?

HOFFMAN: He's a platoon leader. Lieutenant Rafferty.

BURG: Someone in the S01st7
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HOFFMAN: Yes, that's when they being to get some German fire.
BURG: D + 17

HOFFMAN: D 4 1. TYes.

BIIRG: We'll start next week, then, at that point. Because
I think it's in the next days, perhaps as much as two months=--—

it seems to me that you're tied op there for seventy days—-

HOFFMAN: Established the longest, continuous contact with the

enemy that had been established up to that point in the war.

BURG: By an airborne=--. o
HOFFMAN: By any unit. \\,_4}'/

BURG: Oh, you mean even the outfits that had come in over

the beaches on D-Day hadn't been seventy days in continuous

contact?

HOFFMAN: Withdrew to the, you know--you take them out to give

them rest.
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BURG: OhH, ho. So the 10lst didn't get out guring those

seventy days?

HOFEFMAN: 0©h, no, constant contact with the enemy, just

pushing north, pushing north, ceme to the Neder Rijn, turn

to the west and fortify the line along the dikes on the Neder
Rijan. Across the [Suder Rhine,] get over, and then form that
line from Arnhem on the east, going west, and defend that line.
and I believe the Germans are sitting at eighty meters and

we are at minus twenty. And if you don't think that was a shecot-

ing gallery.

BURG: <You are below sea level and they are—-=

HOFFMAN: Yes, we're belaw and fortified the dike.

BURG: You are twenty meters below sea level and they are

eighty meters above sea level?

BEOFFMAN: On the other side of the river, On the other side

of the Neder Rijn.

prRG: Kind of locking down at you.
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BOFFMAN: Looking at us, [Laughter]

HURG: Okay, we'll start at that peint next week,




This is an interview being taped with Colonel Ray Hoffman on

September the 15th, 1978 at the Dwight D, Eisenhower Library.
Present for the interview are Colonel Hoffman and Dr. Burg of
the Pwight D. Eisenhower Library staff,

DR. BURG: I might just say that the map that we happen te %
,

have in front of us right now is a map of operaticn MARKET-

GARRDEN which shows the entire terrain cevered by that operation,
from the place where the l0lst came down, to Arnhem where the

st British came down, And the map we're using is contained

in the official army—u, 5. Army—--history volume, The Siegfried
Line Campaion. Now when we broke off Friday we'd been talking
about your activities around Veghel or Vechel., 1It's written Veghel

herea,
COLONEL HOFFMAN = Vaghel, ves.

DR, BURG: And I found in this same volume, which is the one
that covers MARKET-GARDEN, the interesting fact that [Lt. Col.
Harry W. 0,] Xinnard's lst Battalion of the 50lst, the battalian
with which you probably jumped, was the only battalion in the
division that missed its drop zone. You were dropped about

three miles northwagt,

COLONEL HOFFMAEN: Beyond Heeswiik.
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BURG: Yes. And they point out that, nevertheless, you
assembled correctly and quickly and marched into Veghel and
did your thing. Didn't slow you down a hit. And another
interesting thing is vour troop carrier squadrons, the units{i

that brought you in, encountered guite a bit of flak. The Rhtg

losaes for the operation were pretty heavy in the units bring-
ing in the 10lst. But it's & comment on how these things can

90. For you, your particular aireraft, and perhaps others in

your particulsr serial, no problem. You got thrmough without

noticing flak to any extent at all,

HOFFMAN: I don't think we had any flak in the ares but I think

probably units coming to the south may have had more.

BURG: Yes,

HOFFMAN: The first day, getting in, the losses were not wvery

great.

BURG: Well, that first day the lcsses for the entire show, I
think, were something like 2.8 percent, which was rhencmenally

Toww
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HOFFMAN: Well, you know, really, the only part of this which

refers to Americans, I think, is the MARKET part. Buot the--—

BURG: Well, the whole thing--I think the MARKET part was

the three airborne divisions: the GARDEN part is the ground,

HOFFMAN: Yes. The ground troops coming. On that first
day, you're leooking at bringing in asbont six thousand

parachutistg--

BURG: Seven thousand,

HOFFMAN: =—-to do this,

BURG: Just a little short of seven thousand,

HOFFMAN: We lost airerafe and we lost pecple, but——sixty-

seven hundred, plus, parachutists on that first day.
BURG: Right. That's right.

HOFFMAN: And as T check this out, we were in the Kasteel

area. There it is right there. ves.
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BURG: How's that spelled?

HOFFMAN: XE—-a=-s—t=g~p=1,

BIIRG: All right.

HOFFMAN: Kasteel area. That's where the lst Division——

BURG: The lst Battalion.

HOFFMAHN: ~—--I mean, 1lst Battalion., Scattered resistance. One
of the interesting things-—-I told you about coming down--was
the-=-it was after church, bkecause their church services would
have gone &leven to twelve, or mavbe even longer, 5So the

grop started at thirteen hundred.

BURG: Exactly, yes,

HOFFMAN: dne o'clock in the afternocon. 8o it was after
church. And then later on, as we moved on down here, cne aof

these Volkswagens that we now eall, or in those days locked like

what Volkswagen calls, the "Thing."

BURG: Yes. HKubelwagen, K=-u-b-e-=l-w-a-g-e-n.
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HOFFMAN: Kind of sgquare, with red crosses on it

BURG: Yes. The equivalent of a German jeep.

HOFFMAN: Yes, it was.the German jeep. But encleosed. Bat
with red crosses all over it, on the top, and so forth. Somehow
it appeared on a side road--so I must have been with a flank
patrol--and coming of all things from south to north., ang

he must have pulled out of a gide road, or something; anyway,
all of a sudden here he is: he's coming. And so we stood in
the road. [Laughter] So he whipped that thing over toward

a stone farmhouse or building. And three soldiers got out and
were runhing for this building. I told you I had the sub-
machine gun., I had no idea what they were going to de, but
what we wanted them to do was Stop. I put one burst down the
left-hand door frame. [Laughter] It even surprised me, Just
split thet door frame to bits, but it was probably ten, twelve
yards in front of them. And, needless to say, [Laughter] they
completely stopped right in their tracks., well I thought, well
that's funny that these guys now are going to run when they're

in a medical vehicle, until my pecple got to the vehicle,
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These guys were carrying weapons and ammunition, either for
their own use or for somebody else's but, nevertheless, it was
no more connected with the medical reguirements than a tank
would be. So that's why these guys were so intent on getting
out of the area. [Laughter] That was one of the minor things.
There were—-they really made no defense of the area at this
point. Just scattered kinds of resistance, but what they're

doing is getting out.,

BURG: Do you recall what were they wearing? Were they wearing

a field tunie?

HOFFMAN: Gray, that gray-——

BURG: With the pockets.

HOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: Now can you remember, Ray, the shoulder straps?

BEOFFMAN: I'm not sure,

BURG: If they were medical perscnnel those shoulder straps

were a dark blue.
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HOFFMAN: These were nat, They were-—-
BURG: That is, the piping on them would be dark klue,

HOFFMAN: Yes. I think this was an orange, but I'm not
sure. Either that or the panel was an orange and there wasg

rf;-..,
# piping around it. (?f-h*ﬁ
3 =

BURG: Hard te say what they might have been, Orange-—when
you're dealing with those German Piping colors, you have
problems with them——hut erange might be the recruiting service,

wnich is unlikely.
HOFFMAN: Yeag,

BURG: Field police, feld polizei, which might be possible in
that area. It could alse indicate cavalry of cne sort of
another, depending on the shade of it. But dark blue for

medieal personnel, and for Red Cross——

HOFFMAN: Well I say Red Cross because that's the medical

symbol
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BURG: Yes,

BOFFMAN: You know, the circle with the red cross. White

circele with the red cross,

BURG: BPBut if they were part of the German Red Cross, then
their celeor tabs would also, I bhelieve, have been blue, and

distinctively different from the eollar tabs that you would

have been used to seeing on military personnel,

HOFFMAN: Yes, yes, They were neither., They ware soldiers,

BURG: Yea., AaAnd they had--—

HOFFMAN: The result was we had a vehicle for transport [Laughter]

—at least until somebody decided it had to go back.

BURG: Yes, they had probably liberated the first thing on
wheels that showed a chance of running, and whatever their
real branch of service was--arm of service-—they ran into
trouble, Well the account in the official history indicates
that around Veghel, at the north end of the l0lst Airborne

Division effort--although there was desultory firing, the
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Germans usually never mounted any thing against you except

understrength, small approaches.

HOFFMAN: Either scattered resistance er minor probing

attacks.

BURG: Squad, platoon——I guess maybe an cccasional company

strength effort, but nothing really very much.

BOFFMAN: What I wrote down was "no defense, scattered
resistance of the whole area and we're beginning to move on
down that road toward Veghel." &And, of course, we closed that

night in and around the Veghel area and that is then secure.

BURG: By the end of D-Day-—-

HOFFMAN: ¥Yes, the first day. Yes.

BUORG: =—=the 50lst or let us say, the 50lst and, certainly,
your battalion—but I think, Johnson's whole regiment--had

every objective that it had been asked to get.

HOFTMAN: Truse,
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EURG: Owver the canals.

HOFFMAN: And no communication with division as vet. Now
this often happened. You didn't get communication until

next morning. We're talking about, now, the second day.

BURE: Right, D + 1.

HOFFMAN: I don't think--Do we show the canal at Fon?  Should
be way down here anyway. I see you've got the Guards there.

Ckay.

BURG: Yes, F-o-n,.

BOFFMAN: The British forces were on the seuth side of Zon——-the
canal. There's a big canal there. They have to get across but
the Germans have blown up the bridge, so they've got to build

@ bridge. Okay, that's—-they're there at-—their ang ineers——
find, first-rate, engineer boys--they begin to construct the
bridge over the canal so that the British forces can get up.

At night now, We're talkirg about twenty-one hundred. They're

doing it in the dark,
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BURG: On D-Day? or the next day, D + 17

HOFFMAN: Second day, D 4+ 1. The reason I went back and
tried to refresh and look at letters and other things, was

that we [were?] asked many times whether the read was Open,

and this kind of thing, and whether we saw them on the road,
British forces, and when we saw them, and sa forth. Well,

the--we're talking about D + 2 now. We're talking sbout the
third day, about six-fifteen in the morning. This is one of
these happy things that happens teo airborne troops [Laughter].

They're coemingl

BURG: "Weight" comes.

HOFFMAN: Here they come. The Household Cavalry and the
Guards Armored have begun their crossing. And forty-five
minutes later they start through Veghel. So we got them in
Veghel on the third day. They passed through half an hour
later. Six-forty-five. =and by this time, of course, we

were beginning to stretch the regiment ocut to Dinther.
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BURG: How is that spelled? D—-

HOFFMAN: D=-i-n-t-h-e-r,

BURG: Which lies up te the northeast.

HOFFMAK: And then Eerde and then the rest of the regiment

is in Veghel,

BURG: The rest of the regiment is there? The 50lst?

HOFFMAN: The 50lst, minus. Which would be 2nd Battalion,
supporting elemente, so forth, in and around Vaghel. And

now we being to feel the pressure. There'a an attack.

BURG: In effect, you're trying to hold a corridor—-

HOFFMAN: Ngw this is the third day and we begin to feel now
the attack. And it's a night attack. And they knew that

the German parachutists were in there. It’s a night attack by
German parachutists. and of course battalion would put one
company out on an outpost, say two hundred yards forward of

the line. Echo Company, probably under a fellew, whao is now
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4 colonel, by the name of Gregg, G=r-e-g-g; redheaded, tall

fellow. I believe he had Echo.
BURG: Why was it designated Echo instead of Eagy?

HOFFMAN: In those days it was——the alphabet was Echo.

BURG: It was, ay?

HOFFMAN: Yes. There have been a lat of changes because of
HATO and the foreign troops, and some words cannot be proncunced

2asily by other nationalities.

BIIRG: Now the Guards Armored, for example, was already on its

way past Veghel, up the highway towards Nijmegen.

HOFIMMAN: On the third day, D + 2~=

BURG: You had seen them early in the morning. I assume 3

steady column of them is coming down that road.

HOFFMAN: Right. Now there's transports on the highway,

always——
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BURG: Yes. Right.

HOFFMAN: -—-you see. The early elements of the point would
be on ahead of them but their transport would be on the

highway.

BURG:; The infantry and everything else. Ray, can I assume

that as the Guards Armored and the whole British XX Corps comes
up that road—which you people called "Hell's Highway"--that
those elements of the 10lst Airborne hetween Eindhoven and

your positions in Veghel can't come up that road. They can't
come up to help vou. They're under attack seuth of vou,

trying to keep the road open., And you people yvou can't move

up with the Guard Armored on your way to Nijmegen, because

you're trying to hold Veghel.

HOFFMAN: A little later, when the pressure gets bad, they

take a battalion, or two battalions, from one of the division
units that's not so badly pressed at the time and move those in
to protect Veghel. Now on D 4+ 3--now this ie the fourth day.

We've had the night attack by the parachutists and so the lst



Col. Ray Hoffman, #8, 9-15-78 Page 374

Battalion attacks in order to reestablish the line and gets
four hundred and twenty priscners. 2nd Battalion stays in
defense of Veghel and the 3rd Battz=lion is at Eerde to the

southwest.,

BURE: I zee,

HOFFMAN: We've got to s ecure this thing, because we've got
te hold theose bridges and we've got to hold that cerridor

cpen, and so forth.

BURG: In other words, Ray, the actions are going to tend to
group up around the points on the road where there are
bridges cover rivers or canals. But it isn't apt to be quite
20 heavy on straight stretches of causeway, because that's
going to be hard for the Germans to grab and hold or do
anything with. But you don't dare let them get those bridges,
because if they blow those, then they've cut off the Guards

Armored.

HOFFMAN: I think one of the earliest things that the airborne

engineers did when they got into Veghel was to begin constructing
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a second bridge, sc that they could have two-way traffie. And

bridges were pretty narrow, vou know.
BEURG: ©h, yes, sure,

HOFFMAN: While the space wasn't very long—that is, they were

not long bridges--they weren't very wide,

BURG: I remember reading in the nfficial history that [Lt.
Gen., Brian] Horracks had given crders to the Guards Armored
that they were to come down that causeway two abreast. Two
tanks abreast. There was to he no southbound traffic as they
made their initial thrust, Then, ,of course, they'd have to

single down to cross ever those bridges, I'm sure,
HOFFMAN: That's the enly way they could get acrose, \ =

BURG: Yes. And the weight factor, too, of ceurse, would be

& problem,

HOFFMAN: Then on the fourth day the--you always try to keep
pushing them back and get area--I'm dooking for Heeswijk. oh,

it's up here. We ga over the canal, which is~--I think that's a
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canal. Anyway--both sides, in order, to clear it up as far

as Heeswijk.

BURG: BActually, if you had to retract your steps, vou're

working in yeour drop zones.

HOFFMAN: [Identify "he"? Maxwell Taylor?] He keeps pushing.
He keeps pushing them out. Keep them out away so that [they?]
can't bring fire or get in close enough to cut the road. That's
what he's trying to do. and then that night, in a place called
Schijndel--it's got to be--right there! Pratty gocd size.

Right here.
BURG: Yes, and that's S-c-h-i-j=-n-- N, i
HOFFMAN: d-e-l,

BURG: And again, that one is pretty much duse west, isn't .

of Veghel?

HOTFFMAN: Yea. Now you notice that's fairly--it's sbout half
as large a town as Veghel., But there's siuch a concentration

in there that they take just about a guarter of the town at that
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point. 1It's dark, yvou know. It's about twenty-two hundred hours.
He still kept a battalion in Veghel and some gupport, and =o
forth. And then--5t. Oedenrode-Schijndel road right here. The
railroad--no, that's not a railroad. But there's a railroad in

here,

BURG: It may not show on the map. You notiee there's a rajl-

road=—-

HOFFMAN: Yes. There it is, right here! There it is coming

right across there, [Ed. note: This railroad runs diagonally
from southwest te northeast across the 5+t Cedenrode-Schijndel
road, |

BURG: Oh, ywes. I sea,

HOFFMAN: Okay. The 3rd Battalion, this probably was—-

BURG: It wasn't [Col. Johm H.] Michaelis [502nd Parachute

Infantry?) was it?

HOFFMAN: ©No, Michaelis comes later on. He's going to come up.
Revertheless, 3rd Battalion [Lt. Col. Patrick F. Cassidy?] moves

at about seventeen forty-five, so again we're getting in-——we're
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getting 2 late night. We're learning an awful lot about
fighting at night and darkness. But move up in that area to

the railroad station.

BURB: The 3rd Battalion did that?

HOFFMRN: Yes. Pretty geod fire fights now begin to take

place around that railroad station.

BURG: But you were still with the lst Battalion.

HOFFMAN: No, I'm back now with the regiment and moving--of
course when the prisoners came then, of course, you have to get
pretiy bush. You know, to maintain unit integrity they have
their own sections and they're going te do their own patrolling.

Their companies as well ag their own sections--

BURG: Their battalion 8-2's, for example.,

BEOFFMRN: Sure, sure. But the coordination hetween them, the
movement of the prisoners and, yvou know. Nobody believes the
amount of paperwerk that's involved in combat, Just inceredible,

Situation reports--and they're all being created, even when it's=--
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BURG: When it's going on.

HOFFMAN: -—-it's & mess. That's right. Use these gelatin
pads. Some of them are as big as this desk and they would roll
up. This is how these things were printed, initially. On
gelatin pads. BAnd the draftsman will put it in with the pencil
that will make that sink into the gelatin and then you run a
piece of paper over it. When you peel it off, you've got it,
in bold color! [Laughter] These things go on even during the

battle. [Laughter]

BURG: Okay, let's break at this point.

[ Interraption]

BURG: T did want to get on the tape the fact that the German
parachutists that you mentien as being part of the attacks on
the 10lst Division included the 6th Parachute Regiment. You
had tangled with them in Noxrmandy. These men did not Jump

into Holland, as you did, but had been put there by [Colonel]
General Xurt Student--and not only the &th, but other German

parachute units--but they were simply marched inte the area and
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put into battle. WVery tough troops, as I understand it.

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: Very tough. As we got ready to break, yvou mentioned

that akout the fourth day, or so=--
HOFFMAN: Sixth. D + five.
BURG: You're still at Weghel when the German panzer's—

HOFFMAK: All of this takes place in the Veghel area, and the
107th Panzer Brigade gees to Erp--where is it? Erp, E-r-p.

Right there, Here we are. (}
\
BURG: I see, Ltogme

HOFFMAN: West of Veghel. and you can see what's happening.

He's building the thing up.

BURG: Group up, Walther, that's ecalled. [Kampfgruppe Walther]

W=a=-l-t=h=g-r,

HOFFMAN: That's what the map says. I den't know, Anyway-—-
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BURG: My recollection is that the conditions are so unusual

for the Germans--this whole thing is, ¥You Know, bheyond beliefe—
that they had to put together special groups which often had

the name assigned to it of the officer who commanded them, So
Walther was an officer, German cfficer. [A colonel. First name

nat known.]

HOFFMAN: That morning, probably late that morning, they
launched the attack to try and seize Veghel. This i= the time
now that division has put together a relieving foree under
[Brigadier] General [Anthony €.] MchAuliffe, He's the assistant
division commander. And Mchuliffe is moving up to bring some

relief-—

BURG: From the Einhoven Area .,

HOFFMAN: Yes. To the 501st. By noon the 2nd Battalion is
trying to hold them off on this road between Veghel and Exp.
The road runs right out here:; it's cut by the [map] symbol hut

there's 2 road that runs here,

BURG: I see,
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BOFFMAN: And they--by early afternoon, arcund two o'cleock,

they cut the highway-—-

BURG: The Germans 4dig?

HOFFMAN: They cut it to the northwest. They're coming in
from both sides. They cut it up here, beyond--up in the north-

west, so it must have been up in this area.

BURG: Northwest of yeghel.

HOFFMAN: But we still have Veghel and we still have the
bridges but they've cut the highway. BAnd, you know, they could

do this. After all, we couldn't occupy every hunk of the

highway. iy
;" ;
T /

BURG: Yes, e

HOFFMAN: But here again--you zmee, there's encugh British in
this area. The British artillery helps to repulse this attack
that's coming in from BErp against the 2nd Battalion. Sa the
British artillery's in there. The attack is repulsed. But
coming this way from the northwest, now, we get this coming

from the--what?--southeasst——
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BURG: Southeast, roughly.

HOFFMAN: Ceoming down from the northwest iz infantry tanks.
They're astride the--this is a ecanal in here-—they're astride
both sides of the canal; they're beginning to mzke a seriocus
effort toe take this thing. And this is also repulsed., Sc we
stop both of these attacks short on the--the one up to the
northwest is just short of that railroad station, the railreoad

bridge, that we talked about earlier.

BURG: Yes. And you're very fortunate that British artillery

was handy.

HOFFMAK: Yes, but by this time the 44th Royal Tank Regiment's

1=t Sguadron arrives with General Mcauliffe.

£

EURG: From the south. -
- U

.

b

! o
-

- :
EE

HOFFMAN: From the south. They've come up. and so the veghel
area is again held all the way out to Schijndel, out here, and
go forth, so [we are?] pretty well beginning to hold onto this

thing. Now the seventh day, D + &, more attacks coming in. 1It's
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really getting hot now. They're knocking the dickens aut of

the town ang everything elge.
[Interruptiﬂn ~ Bide 2]

BURG: Tkay, when the tape ran out you were saying that you

usually expected the attacks to come at dawn.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Dawn, more attacks against Veghel, Those are
held off, But the Pressure is getting pretty bad now. And the
Yeéeason I tried tp get specifics from Yy own notes, and so forth,
i8 that we talked about, "Were the British on the raadsg>" . and
s0 forth. A plan was drawn to--let's See, a plan was drawn that
called for bringing the British [32ng Guards) ? Armorad Brigade

from Nijmegen-—-

BURG: Which is up hera.,

HOFIFMAN: ~=hack down, See? wWith some. 506--well, S50--mayhe
304, I see 504 here. Anyway, bringing the British [32nd
Guards] Armored Brigade from Hijmegen to advance toward Veghel,
Uh, no, they're coming from Uden, U=d-e-n. They had come out

of here, down through, and they were going to come down through
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Uden to clear the road so that the flow of traffiec could

continue, Now there has been a flow of traffie, And you got

transport on the rcads.

BURG: But now you're talking about one big retrograde movement,
when you consider what thev have to do, which ig up here
bevond Mijmegen! You're telling me that they had to leave

Nijmegen, come back to Uden—-

HOFFMAN: That was the plan. fr”TTQH

BURG: That was what they had planned to do. Nlrs

HOFFMAN They want to clear the read. They want to get the
traffic--and then they elect to swing south, Uden; come down
here, put pressure on here. The plan was to swing south to

Erp, come in, clear the road, swing south to Erp, and try to

make & flank on these attacking Germans.
BURG: On this Group Walther.

HOFFMAN: Yes. And the encireling--because of bad communicat-

tons——the encircling thing didn't work cut, but the presaure
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from the British armor coming down, that did save the town.

And by seventeen hundred that night the British were in veghel,
in centact. The enemy is gone and the defense of Veghel
continues. Yes, they had to bring back some of their armor.
Still have transport at various places. & lot of it is burning

and knocked cut and messed up,

BURG: Sitting up there in the reoads like targets. The tough
thing is though that that strength was diverted frem trying to

get up there to Arnhem to help the lst British airborne hold

what they'we gotten.

HOFFMAN: Well, they'we got others out ahead of them. They

only took pieces,

BURG: Yes. But it's still a diversion of your strength that
you really need up here hevyaond Nijmegen if the whole thing's

gaing to work

HOFFMAN: Yes. But if you lost Veghel then vou've lost—-—

BURG: It isn't going to work anyway,
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EOFFMAN: the middle of the--, By the eighth day, or D + 7,
the enemy is to the southeast, this Walther's group. That's
clear--so clear in this area—-that the division moves its

headquarters to Veghel. They take the same building as the

Sllst is using for their heasdguarters.

BURG: I see.

BOFFMAN: Probing attacks continue. This time £rom the
Schijndel-Koevering area, Schijndel is directly to the west
an Koevering is a small town to the southwest, These prebing
attacks continue to come in from that direction, from those

troops that are over there,

BURG: Yes, to the west,

HOFFMAN: Here's Kovering. Here's Schijndel. The proving attack
coming in from Koevering succeeds, again, to cut the highway
northwest of Koevering before dark, beécause we've got troops

out as far as Koevering. And then during the night they're begin-
ning to build up with infantry units and tanks and self-propelled

artillery. Interestingly enough, they find a sorridor in
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between the 50lst and the 502nd. As they're repulsing these
other attacks and moving out, somehow or other there is a

corridor between them and the Germans slide in ketwean that

thing. This is going to give us fite, The ninth day, which
is D + 8, about nine o'‘clock in the morning the 44th Royal
Tank Regiment and the 506 now--zee, we're now beginning to
bring in--in fact, there are z lot of division inits, the
gliders, and the glider-borme artillery, and so forth. But

anyway, [they] begin an attack toward Kaevering to the \

southwesat, which goes beautifully for about twe thousand yards
and then all this stuff that was built up during the night in
that corridor between the two units, hits, pins them down.

The 50th British Division, with its armor, is new beginning ta
come up in foree from the seuth. And se 501, 502 and the

506, all become fire bases to supply fire as the British begin
Lo move up on the romd, since we're not on a--we begin to

give them the base of fire that they need. 8¢ the area is
cleared again by dark. You don't know what's going to happen
at night. And we begin then the defense at Eerde, which is

right there. Right there. They made =a dandy, dandy penetraticn.
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From then on, small attacks, defended against, and that was the
end of it, Those ten days were the worst, and actually of
those, nine days saw the complete clearing of the area. And
from then on it was just "Swisgh, Swish_*® They began. They

were moving. But it's too late.

BURG: You were hanging on by yvour fingernails, roughly from
the third day through the ninth day, and especially the

eighth and ninth day.

HOFFMAN: D + 2 on, which would have heen the third day., to

about the ninth. And then--ar through the eighth, but--

BURG: The timing was just right. Enough British strength in

armer and artillery was coming up the road to take up the

r’rﬁﬁ\

)

slack just when it was needed. Ls £
¥ -:Ij.:yl

HOFFMAN: Of course, you know, by this time we have our

division artillery, we have glider troops, we have a lot of
things to help curselves, but in those first days they could
have, I think, stopped this thing. But all during this time

transport at--unless the road is completely cut, there
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are things on the rcad. Some type of transport or some type
of armor or something else. &and a lot of it——af course,
when the attescks some, then any transporit that's caught on

the road very often gets itself destroyed.

BUORG: Yeas.

HOFFMAN: Then we begin the move on to the north,
BURG: You're going to link up with the 82nd.

HOFFMAN: Well, wvou knew, I suppose so, but they were at Nijmegen
and we went to the Neder Rijn, the [lower] northern Rhine and

established defensive positions along the dike on the [ lower]

northern Rhine. _
.4‘_
/\ﬁ\'
¥ =
| = =
| B -
I.. -

BURG: What side of the Rhine were vou on? i

HOFFMAN: Sowth. South side of it. And the high ground was
on the other side, [Laughter] &And that's a whole sther thing,

I think., What have you got on this map? MNo, you don't have

it.
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BURG: Yes, I doubt that that map will show that situation,

HOFFMAN: FProbably not, Neder Rijn. MN-e-d-e-r R-i-j-n. And

I believe that's Northern Rhine, i=sn't it?
BURG: Or Lower Rhine.

HOFFMAN: Well I think the Waal is the Lower Rhine. Mayhbe

nat,

BURG: W=-a-a—-1 is the Dutch name for the scouthern branch of

the Rhine as it runs through their country.

HOFFMAN: Okay. Okay, then the Maas is below it and the
Waal is in between, and the Neder Rijn is north of the Waal,
Anyway, we take the position on the RKeder Rijn, and this now

is going to take us through Thanksgiving. _{3’73#

BURG: From the 17th of September through Thanksgiving in

November ,
HOFFMAN: Miserahle rain and mud.

BURG: TIt's there that you lose Colonel [Howard R.] Johnson.
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HOFFMAN: Yes, T forget now, I believe we'pre talking in

terms of October when we lost Johnson because--let's see. pa
jumped on the seventeenth: ten days we're still at Veghel, =o
that's the twenty-seventh, sg we're talking, I think, in the
middle or maybe even early part [of October])--I'd have ta loak

it up-=-when we lost Johnson.

BURG: But it was along the Neder Rijn?

HOFFMAN: veg. Whatever churches, whatever windmills were

still standing, were excellent observation FPosts,

BURG: 1In that kind of country.

HOFFMAN: vYes, And, of course, the Germans knew it, so the
armor piercing--if they hig straight, why they'a break through:
if they didn't they'd ricochet off, But vou use them as
observation pasts in the daytime and listening posts at night.

And I don't know how far ¥ou want to go,

BURG: Was there anychange in the kind of duties that you
were having to carry out, under slightly different geographical
conditions, over that which vou had done in Normandy? ©Or is

it pretty much the same?
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HOFFMAN: HNo. You had your section work to do. You had
prisoners to interrogate. You had cbeservation posts and
listening posts to man, B&And, of course, ay headguarters

people are alse part of the security for the headguarters

area. HNo, probably on the Neder Rijn we had good opportunities
to use the high buildings, churches, and so forth, for

cbaservation posts,

..Ill-'l =
ol b

BURG: At some riek, since the Germans knew they had to be

used that way.

HOFFMAN: I'll tell you, we had a great one--somewhere I
probably have some pictures of churches--and got up in the
belfry. That was great. If yvou were seen, or you were
suspected, they would use armor piercing against it. BAnd if
you have ever been in a belfry, with a church bell that might
weigh twenty tona, and that armor piercing shell hits that
thing. [Laughter] It is worth the inside of your brain to

hear that bell!

BURG: So you had that kind of an experience?
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HOFFMAN: Oh, yes, ves,

BURG: Having vour bell rung. [Laughter]

HOFFMRN: O©Oh it was rung! Tt was rung: Then, of course,

the dikes were back from the edge of the river and the outpost
lines, and se¢ forth--the main line was on the dike--but you
would patrol or man strong points down along the river. And
naw and then, bring in the bodies of the British and polish

paratrocpers that were floating down the river,

BURG: From Arnhem. What a sad task that would be.

HOFFMAN: It all melded inte the whole thing.

BURG: You remarked to me that within Your division there was
considerable gkepticism about the German 6th Parachute Regiment,
because you thought vou had eleaned them up in Kormandy, and

here they were again.

HOFFMAN: Decimated in ¥ormandy. We decimated them in Heolla nd,
and la and behold, we're going to meet them in other places.

We couldn't believe it, Everytime you turned around, ¥You had



Col. Ray Hoffman, $#8, 89-15-78 Page 395

6th German Parachute Regiment, all reconstituted and refitted

arnd=—-—

BURG: You said that you had the opinion that they just brought
up massez of men, changed their tabs, and sent them in &8 the

&6th German Parachute, [Laughter]

HOFFMAN: I don't know whether that's true, bhut that's the

way it felt. Everytime vau turned around, you had these people.

BURG: Now let me ask You this, Ray. In part, although vou
certainly had to deal with the 6th Parachute and other infantry
formations in France and Normandy, some of the troops that veu
had to cope with there were Fastern ireops, Russian troops,

for example. What would ¥ou say about the guality of the

German soldier that you met in Holland compared with the

quality of the Germans that ¥ou met in Normandy?

HOFFMAN: Well, I thought those attacks they launched against
Veghel were launched with some pretty darn good troops. One
of the cutting lines waould ke, if you can Fight at night, you're

3 pretby good unit. And those night attacks were no. botched
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affairs; they knew what they were doing. Gee, to compare them--
I thirk what probably worried us, what bethered us more than
anything was why, when we were there, didn't these eastern troops
quit. [Laughter] There were already liberated! Wwhy didn't
they lay down and--here we were, the liberators come to get them.
Why didn't they just guit? well, I suppose, yvou know, you

take big batches—--and we took big batches of prisonere in
Hormandy——and I suppose part of that was what--but when they

shat back at you, that was bad news.

EURG: Yes. Do you remember any of the interrcgations of

those men? Many of them Russians, loads of Russians,
HOFFMAN: Poles—- f’\\

{\‘L 5/
BURG: Poles, toao?

HOFFMAN: -—were impressed soldiers. I remewber Meyer deoing

interviews on, and so forth,.

BURG: Did they offer any suggestions as to why they continued

to fight?
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HOFFMAK: They would maintain that they were forced to serve
in the German army. Well, of course they were. Of course

they were. They would tell--
BURG: Or maybe they wolunteered for it. {

HOFFMAN: Yes, sure, bhecause of course this gets you better
treatment. But once captured, some of these guys would spill
out almost everything they knew. But the trouble is, you
know, they don't really know very much but units and——it's
nice to know what you're up ag;inst. Meyer was able to get a

lot of that.
BURG: When did they pull you off that Neder Rijn line?

HOFFMAN: My feeling is that it was after Thanksgiving, because
the real Thanksgiving, I think, was held until we returned to
a base camp which is now established in Mourmelon la Petit in

France. There's la grande and retit.
BRG: Yes, right.

HOFFMAN: But the real hero of the -2 section-—you see, my

section had its intelligence work te de, and inside the head-
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quarters, on the OF's. And to also supply to Colonel Johnson
some of his beodyguards, Half, at least, of his bodyguard
contingent were members of the secticn., But the real hero
here turns out to be young [Lt.] Hugo [sSheridan] Sims, [Jr.],
who has taken Ben Wax's place as the -2. We set up on that
Neder Rijn so badly, not knowing what's in front of us or
what they're doing, and the pétrmlling is bad news. The
battalions and the companies—-you know, units always have
trouble with patrolling. So Sims—-

BURG: S=i=m=m-- [This name is spelled "Sims" in the cfficial
histery.]

BOFFMAN: =--s, He's going to run for representative from

Orangeburg, South Carolina when he get out,

—

r

&

BURG: That's what he told you? {'1 y
-'-'Iilul'l".

HOFFMAN: That's what he does. [Sims served as a Reprasentative
in the 8lst Congress (1949-51); unsuccesaful in attempt to be
Te=nominated; served as a captain in the 82nd Airborne Div., 1951:
I2aumed law practice.] But he concocted the "incredible patrol,”

which was written up in Life and so forth, but he used the -2

section to deo it. The idea was to cross the Neder Rijn and to
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move into that northern territory, north of the river, and

to bring back prisconers.

BURG: Sounds like something ocut of 211 Quiet on the Western

Front.

HOFFMAN: It was incredibly well-planned, imaginative. He

had to do something to break the resistance against patrolling
in order to bring back prisoners. He had to show that there
was a way to get them and you just had to go and get them.

And every unit I've been with, dnce the active, hard fighting
stops, it's pretty difficult to get men out on patrel, To
patrol agressively. So he concooted moving inland about--1'd
have to locok it up on the map how far. Five miles? Setting
up a kase--doing this at night--setting up a base alongside a
highway, in a farmhouse, observing what traffie is moving along
that highway, and returning the next night. To do this, he's
got to go through some towns. He's got to go first through the
German lines. And he's got to take these youngsters, that he
hadn't worked with as long as I had, but he had to take these

kids with him. Sc while everything else is going on, we begin
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the training for this type of operation, the orientation., He

gets permission to do it, =o forth.

BURG: What is he, by the way?

HOFFMAN: He's a captain, [Official history gives his rank as
lieptenant at the time of the patrol. sims iz Fromoted to
captain in Novemher 1944 .]

BURG: 1In one of the companies?

HOFFMRN: Mo, he's an 5=2. He is the 5=2. He took aver from

Ben=—

BIIRG: From Wax, Weg—x?

HOFFMAN: T believe it's Wax.

BURG: Yes, we'll check it,

HOFFMAN: Either Wax or West,

BURG: Yes. We've got a note to chesk ik

HBOFFMAN: That's terrible, I think it's Wax. He has to have

a way of keeping his direction and knowing his time. &and he
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works this whole plan cut. &t specific intervals at a eross
road--when we get a decent map, we can-—at & crossreoad, one
artillery ehell will fall. He will net only kpow his direction
in the dark, but he'll know what time it is. It's a good sEection,
goed section. And they never get a chance to do this kind of -
wild, herc thing. &nd I'm erying, because I have to stay with

the radic! [Laughter] I ean't go.
BURG: That's your assignment.

BOFFMAN: ©h, I have to stay bLehind,

BURG: To stay in communieation with this patrol.

HOFFMAN: Oh ves, But, by golly, he goes; they get in thera,
They have to watch the reaple in the house, of course; they
don't hert them. cCan't take a chance on anybody spilling

that they‘'re there.

BURG: Although these people zre Duteh,

HOFFMAN: Yes. So there's a way. Yoo got te--it's better 5 ride

than walk, so they captured a truck--stake bady--get a few
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prisoners, put them in the back of the truck, and now they

start home.

BURG: How many men went on the patrol, by the way?

HOFFMAN: T den't think he took the whole-=I think ten or

eleven. [Six, according to the U.S5. Army official history.]

BURG: I would just have guessed that figure.

ROFFMAN: I have to go and read the account, or go and look
1 U,

) < B
e T

BURG: I will too. I'm wondering if we may not have something

on it here with cur after action reéports. 7I'll look for it.

HOFFMAN: But Simz is the hero. They get to the edge of the
town, and by this time they've got some way to get through
this town. And you're not going to get through just driving a
German truck. So you form the prisoners and you march down
the street in formation. Get to the river bed. But you 've

got pecple in fox holes,

BUEG: Germans that is,
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AOFFMAN: Germans. 2As you come along, peel my voung
section men off and go on and just pick up some more
pPrisoners right out of those Fox holes. Clear out that area

s0 that you can--

BURG: Get acrpss without being shot at,

HOFFMAN: Get on back and bring them. And, lo and behold,
as luck would have it, why he has got himself an S5
Colonel [Laughter] and, I think, fifty-two or fifty-four

priseners. [Thirty-twe accerding to the official history.]

BURG: He may have been the one wearing the recruiting

tabs by the time he got Lack! [Laughter]

HOFFMAN: Made it all woerthwhile.

BURG: Yes. How'd they eross the river?
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HOFFMAN: Set up the signals and then put the rukbber boats
over, and of course there's a——to enter through one of the
company unit areas. But you know what he's doing when he's—-
from the communicaticns that are going back and forth. Tt was

pretty exciting kind of thing.

BURG: Yes, [Laughter] Darn exciting.

HOFFMAN: And the kind of thing that he put together, wWhat
I told him was that what he had were some darn good kids with

him. They knew their business,

BURG: Yes, must have.

HOFFMAN: Talk about a comando operation.

BURG: Well next week--it'll give me a chance to logk over that,
and alsc to see if that patrol route-—if anything on it==may

be in the after action reports. We're very light--have almost
nothing, I'm afraid, on the operations around Veghel. They
just didn't get here with the 50lst material, They may be

in 101st Division Headguarters materisl, but at the battalion
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level, we don't have it. But it seems to me that our 501lst

after action material really begins in October.

BOFFMA&N: That was our longest pericd, yes. Up along the--

up 2long here, the northern Rhine.

BURG: Things were so bad, I suspect, in the first ten days
that not a heck of a lot got written down, at least at

battalion level.

HOFFMAN: You just don't have it. Because every single day,
even if it had to bé done on a--if it was typewritten, it was
done with ohe &f those little tiny Coronas, or it was done by
hand. But situation reports and overlay maps, those were

always there and were prepared and they exist somewhere.

.-__.-‘

9

BURG: Okay, fine., We just don't have them. 1“
[

HOFFMAN: Then division after action reports exist out the
gazoo, but they're all prepared from the information sent in,
otherwise they couldn't be prepared if they weren't fed any.

But they were prepared from what the unita fed themn.
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BURG: All right. When we embark on this next Friday, let

us look then at your experiences at Bastogne, because I think

that's the next move we make.

HOFFMAN: I would think that's where we're going to have to

0. There's just so much that--—
9 3




This interview im being taped with Colonel Ravmeond Hoffman

in the Dwight D. Eisenhower Library on September the 22nd,
1978 in Abilene, Kansas., Present for the interview Colonel
Hoffman and Dr. Burg of the Eisenhower Library Staff.

COLONEL HOFFMAN: I thought he was a captain. He got promoted

after that and got the Silver Star.

DR. BURG: You're talking now about Sims,

COLONEL HOFFMAN: &And the "incredible patrol."”

DE. BURG: And you mention the fact that he took sikx men with

him,

COLONEL ROFFMAN: Yes. S8ix of the intelligence section, He
was the 5-2. He became S-2 in August, after Normandy, and

before Holland.

DR. BURG: So he had replaced Wax.

COLOHEL BOFFMARM: ‘As @ first lieutenant. Eight.
DR. BURG: And he putranked vou.

COLCHNEL RBOFFMAN: He was a first lieutenant. That's right.

But they were men from ocur section, and they did a fabulous job.
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BURG: HNow let me ask you, because I want to get it on the
particular record. Did that patrel occur before or after

Howard Johnson was killed?

HCFFMARN: After.

BURG: Now, you might mention, just for this taped record, what
you told me in private. Johnson, during the Hormandy jump,

bhad suffered a partial hearing loss in one ear,

HOFFMAN: Yes. I helieve an explosion or a concussion grenade
punctured--and I think it's his left ear. Or at least a
hearing less in that ear., I'm saying "left", and I'm not

sure now. But anyway, one ear, And when we went north from
veghel, up along the highway and to the Neder Rijn—and it's
N=g=d=e=r Rijn. I think the German werd for that means "lower"
Rhine and not upper or northern Rhine. We took positions up on
the dike, and so forth. But to get from where he was head-
guartered up to his battalions and then up to the line, the
last cover you had were apple orchards, or orchards, that were

spread, BAnd then a wide open space before you got to the dike,
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But you were under constant pbservation from the Germans

who were across the river. And their elevation was about

eighty meters or ninety meters and our was about minus

eighteen or something, however they built the dike up and
[considering] ? where we were., And he came up inte that--I
believe it wds an apple orchard. And I think he had Allen,

and I know he had his commanders, some of his commanders, with
him, &And in the course=—=the battslion commanders—they were
talking and the people argund him, staff and commanders, heard
the mortars open up: and with the intensity of what they were
talking abkbout, apparently forgot that he was standing with his
bad ear in that direction, 3and I forget whe it was knocked him
down, or tried to knock him down, just as the explosion happened.
Shrapnel came through and cut him—I think lower back and upper--—
in the neck area of the spine. But that happened, I believe,

after wa had gotten up above,

BURG: That kill him instantly?

HOFFMAN: No, but he didn't live a leong time. In the first
place, it was difficult to get him out of there. But it was

severe damage by the shrapnel fragments.
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BURG: He was the only one hit?

HOFFMAN: Az I remember he was the only one gut of that crew,
Yoo know, it's almost auvtomatic when you hear that "wwhhsshh",
that you go down. And when they realize it, they hit toward
him, He either just started te go down or was on the way down
when the thing exploded and got him. I think probably somebody

wrote that up in--

BURG: Yea, they may have.

HOFFMAEN: ==1in Rendezvous-—--—.,

BURG: MNow let me ask vou, was [Lt. Col.] Julian [J.] Ewell

then given the 50l1st? Because T know he had it at Bastogne.

HOFIMAK: ¥ee., Because Ewell was senlor battalion commander,

I'm syre,

BURG: How long did you-——or put another way-——when did you

mave off that line on the Neder Rijn?

BFOFFMAN: As far as I remeémber, it was a few daya after Thanks-—

giving. If I remember correctly, we had our real Thanksgiving
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dinner back in the base camp that was established in France

at Mourmelon-la-Petit.

BURG: And I think we got that name on the tape last week.

HOFPFMAN: Yes. 5So we stayed until after Thanksgiving,

whichever Thanksgiving that was in 1944, [Laugther)

BURG: I don't remember it either. But we can find that

easily encugh.

BEOFFMAN: Gome Thursday. [Laughter] Anyway, that is my
recollection, that we really didn't have--and he wanted to make 1t
a good on&, because it'd besen constant rain, constant contact,
constant on the line, and it was no place for--if you could delay
it a few days-—it was no place for serving s Thanksgiving dinner.
We may have had some parts of it or some better meal, a hot

meal, or something. But I think we had the real Thanksgiving

meal Back in the new base Camp.

BURG: When you left that base camp, where did you go and how?

HOFFMAN: We went to France. Now, how we got there—-—
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BURG: Well, vou were in France at the base camp. But from

the base camp, where did you go next and when?

BOFFMAN: Cch. MNow we're into November, and then on the
seventeenth of December cameé the alert to load up. aAnd again,
here we are. We're going to swap--refit the unit. The tubes

on the artillery pieces have been——

BIfRG: Because the hores are shot out. Yes.

HOFFMAN: --have been worn, and so forth., We don't yet have
winter underwear. This kind of thing. 5S¢ we have a very short
time. Little after November—-after Thanksgiving--we got there:

on the seventeenth of Decembher, it's a go.

BURG: Roughly, we're figuring a pericd of three weeks in

which you're supposed to refit, aksorb replacements-—-

HOFFMAN: Of course, nobody knows this, yvou know, at the time.

BURG: When you go back there to the base camp,

HOFFMAN: I didn't know it, anyway. Yes.
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BURG: Yes, nobody knows that the Ardennes offensive is

going to pull you back out in a hurry. But, in actual point

of fact, you have roughly three weeks=-though you don’'t know
it--to try and absorb replacements, re-eguip. You spent that
time in Holland, up until, roughly, Thanksgiving, still wearing

the clothing that you would have worn in June in France.

EQFI'MAN: Yeog,

BURG: So you're wearing those jump jackets, the baggy pants,
the short G.I. underwear--T-shirts, in effect. When they
get you back to that basze camp and you do refit, what does

that put on your back, for example, in the way of clothing, now?

HOFFMAN: [Laughter] It depends. [Laughter] I had jockey
shorts on, if you can believe it. You'd put an overcoat——and
that was it. Later, later, much later, we got enough winter
underwear, and so forth. We were, you know, halfway into the
middle of being refitted and getting new supplies, and so forth.
But I did have an overcoat. I had that rolled in my bedroll,

I think.
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BURG: Well, was it one of the G.I., brass=buttoned, wool

2.0, jobg=—

AOFFMAN: Mo. no.

BURG: —or was it an officer’'e——

HOFFMAN: It was an afficer's coat, Has a--well, like @
raincoat on the outside. Like the green one today, except it

was an 0.D. color. Forget what they called it. What a hood.

BURG: Well, do vou mean to say that the cutfit went up to

Bastogne dressed like that?

HOFFMAN: Many-did not have winter underwear.

BURG: Were you wearing your jump boots?

HOFFMAN: Oh yes, ch yes. HNever take thosze off.

BURG: <You didn't have winter pacs, shoe pacs, or anything like

that?

HOFFMAN: HNo, no. Those came later.
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BUORG: Your little feet must have been like jce. [Laughter)

HOFFMAN: Oh, I'll tell you! Today, I can tell you when the
temperature's going to change because the big toes hegin to
chatter! [Laughter] ©Ch ves, we had a lot of--and shoe pacs,
too, were--you had to be careful of thoze. You had to have
dry socCks, you know.

’-ﬁ
BURG: Yes, yes. ﬂr- i

“.\‘ ——
HOFFMAN: The supplies like that, for the most part, came

in later., We went pretty much in--not very well eguipped for

winter .

BURG: Shades of the German Army in front of Mcoscow! Still

wearing the light summer wear.

BOFFMAN: BSome of the refitting was going on. Some avershoes
were still available, but they'd had a lot of hard hard use in
the mud and the rain, and so forth, in Holland, T can't say how
much winter gear had been distributed. I would say not very

much. Whith units had it, and so forth, I don't ¥now. But it
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wasn't very much., We went with what we had because it was
pretty gquick. BSo far as we were concerned, it was pretty guick.
But if you loocked at the map, it was certainly something that

was going to happen. I'm sure somebody expected it to happen.

BURG: MNow, really, what you could expect when you went back
te France to do this refitting around Thanksgiving is that
your next employment would be on another air drop. You could
expect that you were going to be used as you've already heen
used in Normandy and used in Helland; that you'd be back there
refitting, training, and jumping again, probably intc Germany,
But my recollectien of the timing is that when the ardennes—-
the German Ardennes offensive--hit in mid-December, you are
desperately needed. They've got to have trained infantry,

combat infantry, and lord knows that the 10lst—-— (4 B

HOFFMAN: We're also near. We weren't tactical reserve--they
called it stratigic reserve--but we were near encugh to get

there,

BURG: Yes. So what was the process then. Take me from that
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base camp. Tell me what happens when the ordera come in,

AOFFMAN: Well, my reccllection is, you look at the map and
you know something's happening. I saw a division map and you
knew something was happening. You saw inereased fighter
activity, but the weather's getting miserable, I think it
was in the night--no, early morning of the seventeanth. Yes,
early morning of seventeenth, or late night of the sixteenth;
anyway, I hopped in the jeep and went and drew the maps that
supposedly they would be uszed., They were great. Most of

them were road maps, you know. [Lauaghter]
BURG: Michelin maps. %f .J

HOFFMEN: But, nevertheless, they were maps. B2nd when you
draw the maps, you know you're about to start, Barly en

the seventeenth--miserable weather. Weather starts to close
in. It begins to snew, fog. The trucks-—--stake-body, open
trucke--begin to pull in. Of course, by this time the orders
have been issued. the briefings—-as much as vou could ot ite-
were given and then we start on the way, Most people are in

the big--what are those?--twenty-ton stake-body ttrucks,
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BURG: Bigger than the six by six,

HOFFMARN: O©Oh yes. Oh yes. But they're in any kind of
transportation they can get, We start out on the road and
start moving in, It is just as miserable as it c¢an be. Snow

and rain and fog,

BUOEG: Canvas over the trucks?

HOFFMAM: HNo, no canvas over the trucks,

BURG: WNo canvas. You're in the open.

HOFFMANM: Gome may have had it, but most that I saw--there
was no time. There wasn't any canvas. It's dark. They're
supposed to travel with their cat eyes on, you know. The glit

lights,

BURG: ¥Yes, the bhlackout slit ever the light.

HOFFMAN: And I think finally the old man or some commander
decided this is ridiculous., We're going to lose the entire

convoy traveling at this speesd and trying to make this thing.
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And in this fog, who's going to see us anyway? Butb anyway--—
or maybe it was individual initiative [Lauwghter]--but a great
many lights were turne@ on. But as luck would hawve it, we

came down the read that the Germans did not. And you had

to have Bastogne because--what? There are eight major arteries
or more that meet in Bastogne. It's the major road and rail

center in the srea,

BURG: Right.

HOFFMAN: We go down the read, and they're on the two roads

beside us. For some reason they didn't take that road.

BURG: MNow this probsably is the Fifth Panzer.

HOFFMAK: We went right on into——

BURG: And they're running on two roads, cne on either
gide of you--parallel to you, in effect—--and you're coming

in=-—

BEOFFMAN: I don't know whether they're parallel, because I

forget—-we're coming in, I think, from the south.
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BURG: This map indicates—--well it's a little--

HOFFMAN: It's too far,

BURG: Yes, I don't think that's going to do it.

HOFFMREN: No, this is a little-—-

EBURG: Yes, 1t depends on what--the earlier maps

you see, they're cued to various German units as

Page 420

are here bhut,

they penetrate.

So they just don't quite do the job. I might say that we're

now logking at maps in the Army official history,.

called The Ardennes: The Battle of the Bulga,

HOFFMRN: Why don't you get that Rendezwous book?

[ Interruption]

HOFFMAN: ©Oh wait, wailt.

the wolume

T T,
g 2
'.: _'i‘-

'\.Il":r .I'J

BURG: We're now using two maps. We have a slightly larger

cne from Rendezvous with Destiny, the Rappart and Northwaood

baoclk.
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HOFFMAN: I was just trying to get back—-

BURG: There are only two maps in there. There's that one
and there's the one that showes Bastogne itself, Well, as you

say, the essential thing is you slipped in there.

BOFFMAK: Moved from Mourmelon la Petit--met some units
coming from la Grande, you know: there’s all kinds of Mourmelon's
by truck and took the road inte Bastogne that was the one

that they didmn't u=e as they came through to cut it.

BURG: Yes, yes. Sa you got in there, You were-—all of

your section was traveling in the same truck?

HOFPFMAN: T think so, think so.

BURG: Was Sims with you?

HOFFMAN: HNo, Sims was traveling with--Sims may have had the
jeep, or had & jeep at the time. But again, some of my people

were with Johnson as hie beodyguards.

BURG: Only now they're with Ewell.
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HOFFMAN: They're with Ewell. I think mostly we're on the

back of a truck, headed on in.

BUEG: Now as I understand it, yaur regiment, the S501st, is

the first one there. And I think it's McAuliffe who turns
things over to Lwell and tells him--shews him a rowugh map which
indicates where the blue [i.2., American] forces are, out here,
evidently to the esast of the town,

HOFFMAR: What's left of them. ;- }

BORG: Yea, what's left of them. And he indicated that

he hopes that Ewell ecan get cut there and set up and join

those people before they disappear or are run over. And I think
the official history makes the remark that Ewell was even more
interested by the_ggg marks [i.e., the Cerman forees] out there,
aince they were hetween Bastogne and the blue marks! [Laughter]
Se the 501st then, I suppose, detrucks-—if I can uge that
expreszion—--in Bastogne. Has Bastogne taken much artillery

fire at that point, or is it still an intact town?

HOFFMAN: Oh, it's guite intact, Quite intact. wo fighting
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over it at all. There wasn't anybody there te fight,

BURG: HNow did you drop off--

HOFFMAN: ¥You know, it's so miserable foggy, and sc forth,

that you couldn't see Bnyway .

BURG: 8o Germans hadn't entered the town and left it or
anything. They haven't reached the town. Did you drop

aff——

BOFFMAN: What I seem to remember is that what they did was
to come on through it, their advanced elements, and take

these roads out, because they all lead in and out.

BURG: Yas,

FOFFMAN: 2nd 1f you sit on this, you sit on the center of
communication that has to be used if they're going teo move

anything in a large offensiwve,

BURG: Well, did you get off in the town or did the truckg—-
the 501st, the whole outfit--keep going on out of the town to

Lthe sast?
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HOFFMAN: MNo, I think he dropped his headguarters out and--
@f course, the battalions and companies, I think some of them
would have kept on going until they got inte a place where
they could detruck and then meve into their positiona. They
picked a convent for the regimental headguarters. It was a

big stone convent and they could use it as their headguarters.

BURG: Let me show you a photograph, an air shot—lew angle
air shot--in the offieial history [see page 446-47, The
Ardennes: Bazttle of the Bulge] which shows division headguarters

vp here towards the north end of town.

HOFFMAK: Yes, that'd be the warehouse complex, yes. HNo, we

were in a=—-this would be it. Wouldn't it be a--

BURG: I note, for example, this read is the road to Bizory.

So we're locking down into the town this way, with the 10lst
Division command post way up in that northern extension of the
town in what, as you say, is a warehouse complex. And vou have

picked out-——
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HOFFMAN: I thought these big buildings here were, but it—

BURG: ‘They locok like multiple story=--maybe five-, six-, story

buildings.
HOFFMAN: Ye=. Yes, that's what-=-but then, I can't be sure.

BURG: That pute yvou in the northern half of the town, if
that's trune. 2And, in fact, it puts you on the Bizory Road as
it comes inte Bastogne., Does that kind of mateh what you

recollect?

HOFFMAN: Well, T see two big buildings there and it didn't
scem to me that there were==that could he it, There's another

big building. Anyway, it'e a convent with Belgian-French nuns,

and that's what is used.

BURG: They are =still there?

HOFFMAN: Oh yes. ©h ves.

BURG = In the convent,
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BOFFMAN: Hiding in various places. 1In the c¢ellar, Oh yes,

they're still there.

BURG: Did you have any contact with them when vou got there?
I mean, what was their attitude? I Presume you all stomped

on into the building and there they are,

ROFFMAN: The attitude is always, "Hurray! Here you are!

We're glad you're here," 0Oh ves [Laughter] they were--
BURG: Did you try to persuade them to leave?

HOFFMAN: HNo place to go, really. The Mother [Superior]? tocok
over a portion of the cellar, I think, and that's where thay
spent their time. Seoemetimes they'd bring candles or scmething
when they theught we needed more light. I just forget wherea

the building is. It seems to me it's towards the center, more
towards the center of town. There was & sguare, it =eems to

me, EBEut that could have been the building, because when the
fighting got real rough then tha regimental surgeon, Carroll--
Major Carrell, I believe--turned their chapel into a combination

|
"
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hosgpital ward and operating room. Used the sanctuary—-
chancel area, rather--in front of the altar as the operating
area, And of course this was--we were in there, zll right,

but here were fragments of other units.  So it was pick-up-
sticks, gralk everybody you could--Red Ball Express boys—

anyone else to help.

BURG: And pecople from the infantry divisions that had bheen

routed ecut of their pogitions and driven baek.

HOFFMAM: Anybody. Quartermaster. Any units at all. Anybody.
And they were put into Kind of mobile forces that would be
crganized to move into various places as the pressure hegan

to inorease .,

BURG: ¥es, I might ask you, when did you arrive there? That
we can pick off from the official history, too. Would it have

been the aineteenth?

HOFFMAN: ©h no} The morning, early morning, of the seventeenth.

BURG: ©On the seventeenth.
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HOFFMAN: I'm gquite sure. Hell, the trueks went as fast

as they could go over those roads. And darkness. And I
think it was the morning of the seventeenth that they started
to push along the road; almost immediately detrucked and—-—

oh yes, didn't take us that long.

BURG: What was the first thing that vou and Sims did, once

you got off the trueck there at the convent?

HOFFMAN: I suppose you try to get as many reports on enemy
situations as you ean. 1In order to get those, he always
carried a map that he could use that was on a board and could

ke stuck behind a seat or something. Plot as many as you could,

BURG: Let's take a bkreak and when we come back, let's talk
a little bit about where, under those conditions, yvou'd ever

get reports——

[Interruption - Side 2 of tape]

HOFFMAR: —-pretty well-known and documented,
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BURG: Now let me just return to the guestion that I was
about te ask. When you step off that truck and you get in

that convent on the seventeenth=-—

HOFFMAN: I'm not sure we go directly to the convent on the

seventeenth, but that ultimately is where--

BURG: That's where the 50lst headguarters is.

HOFFMAN: Where the headgquarters is.

BURG: Obviously, for your section the problem is, where is
everybody? Where are the Germans? Wheres are the American
forces out to the sast? 8So, the first thing that you have to
do- then is to start trying to find cut. Even as the S50lst
goes out there to take up positions, you're trying to set

up a situation map that mesans something.

HOFFMEN: Yes. Trying to filter the reports. furmel as much
information, receive as much information as we can. And you
see, building up, you see what's happening as contact is made,

But you also know that you were mighty lucky to get in there,
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and for the division to get in there in force the way it

did. Now the guestion comes down; can they heold it?

EURG: Now when they moved yvou in there, vou go in with the
eguipment of an airborne divisicn, which means your artillery,

I assume, is the 75-mm pack guns.

HOFFMAN: Yes. The parachute artillery and, of course now,
the 327 [t Glider Infantry] is--the division is on the ground
and in--on the trucks and in the area with as much equipment

as it has,

BURG: As it would jump with.

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: But it's been trucked in.

HOFFMAN: Also picked up whatever was in there and on the
roads, and whatever pieces of units were still available. Red

Ball Expresses with .50 calibers,

BURG: Trucks with fifties mounted eon them.



Colonel Ray Hoffman, 9-22-78, Interview #9 Page 431

HOFFMAM:= Trucks with .50 calibers, And all of these became

malded into a mobile combat force that would move to the strong

points as a reserve and back-up.

BURG: Had any armor retreated in frent of the Germans and
established itself in the Bastogne perimeter? Or any armor

you had, 1 guess, had to come in.

HOFFMAN: The only armor, I think, that ever came around was

what came in. I don't think there was any armor in here.

BEURG: Yes. fj

HOFFMAN: Those were just green kids, untried diwvisions,

geitting in front of that.

BURG: As far as the pmerican forces were concerned.

BOFFMAN: No, I don't think we had any armor inside, if I
remenker. The commanders worked with what they did have

and it was just, you know, it was fantastic--and the cooperation
of men who had been separated from other wunits. And the use

made of them. Make them into meobkile combat forces that could
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move to whatever peoint was being hit. And for some reason
the Germans never hit the perimeter in great force all at
once. They kept hitting into one area and then we'd move the
forcee intec that area; stop them. Then they'd hit some other

place on the perimeter.

BURG: Piecemeal attacksg.

HOFFMAN: But never hard attacks, say from the east and the

west at the same time, which would split everything.

BURG: Yes, yes, Now let me ask you this. Do vou remember
any particular incident, from that pericd cf time while you

were surrcunded, that now sticks in vour mind?

HOFFMAN: Oh there are many. Major Carroll and his operating
room in the chapel and his hospital, And, of course, the
tension as the thing gets surrounded. Let's see, by this
time, I think Kinnard is now the G-3 of the division, Colonel
[Harry W. O.] Kinnard, who had First [Battalicn]? End, of
¢ourse, now we're getting up toward Christmas, so we get the

division sitvation map, all surrounded with the red marks, the
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enemy marks. Okay. And then the blue marks, and so forth,
And written across the inside of the doughnut was, "Merry

Chriastmas."

BURG: On your situation map for Christmas!

HOFFMAN: On the situation map.: For Christmas. [Laughter]
I thought that was great! That was a great touch. B&aAnd the

kind of thing that he would do, eor allow to be done.

BURG: After Mchuliffe was aszsked to surrender the town--

HOFFMAM: Pantastic.

BURG: —-I would imagine you probably knew what his answer

was within minutes of it being given.

HOFFMAN: You know, the town was in pretty good shape when

we got there, But when the artillery barrage started--and,

of course, there imsn't any aircraft. Nothing. The ceiling

is schmaltz. It's just hanging up there., The weather is just
so miserable. The snow. There are no planes, There is ne

ajireraft, No cover.
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BURG: No tactical fighter bombers to help protect you. No

supply drops.

HOFFMAN: Nothing gets through, if I remember, at this point.
Anyway, they start the bombardment of the city. Going to

bomb [us]? into submission. And of course that won't do it.
He [who]? isn't about to give up this ground. This is 3 major
communications center, You can't swap those for cats, for
anything. Otherwise they could just pour through there,

including that railroad,

BUORG: VYes,

HOFFMAN: And that makes a mes: out of that city. Of course

the convent is all windows; I think a2ll the windows were

broken. There was an incident with—how, why, ammuniticn

trucks came into the CP area, I don't know. But there were one or
two, two-and-a-half ton trucks completely loaded with ammuinition
and they were parked oputside the CP area, unbeknownst to the
commanders. And once it was known, the order was immediately

given to get thoae things out of there. [Slam} and they went

ap .
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BUEG: Both of them.

HOFFMAN: One or two. RAnyway, complete. Well that was as

bad as a, you know, a direct hit. Why they came in there--1

guess, maybe, scmebody was asking directicns, or something else.

But, anyvway, they were ammunition trucks., WwWhether it was a

direct hit--must have heen. They exploded. One or two

ammunition trucks parked out in the--sort of a=-maybe it was a kind |
of a courtvard, or maybe it wzs =z parking arez on the outside

of the building. But it was one of the biggest concussions, I

think anybedy felt for a long time. [Laughter] .
BURG: Yes. A
i

HOFFMAN: Of course, there were incidents of armored attacks.
hfter all, what else is out there but panzers? [Laughter)
They're going te prove they can do it. Of course the armor is
building up, building up, building up, because there isn't any
air. We doen't have any air, so they can bring what they want.
And I don't know whether it's--vou ecan look it up——maybe

twenty-seventh, twenty-eighth, something like that, and the
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weather starts to clear. A little opening comes in the

clouds, and I tell you, the fighter pilots must have heen up
there looking for a hole. And they just came down through

the hole in those clouds. It hasn't really eleared yet, but
they've got an open space and they poured down through those and
started to attack the armor and whatever transport is on the
roads. That was the high point of the thing, to see those
P-3B's, Lightnings--maybe even some British Spitfires, I don't
know. Anyway, they just poured down through whatever hole was

in the clouds and started in to take on that armor.
BORG: That was it, then, as far as the Germans were concerned,

HOFFMAN: People always say that we were, yvou know, we were
rescued by Patton's tanks and so forth. We always felt we just
held it until they got to it. [I mean they weren't going to

take kids, (Fot entirely clear.) |

BURG: The 10lst Division didn't need to be rescued!

HOFFMAN: Right: Right! We held it; you guys finally got

there, [Laughter] ¥You know, great morale, I think it's the
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first unit in the Army. From them—-of course, there are a lot of
battles and so forth, but then comes the fight through the

Haguenau Forest.

EURG: Haguenau or Hurtgen?

BOFFMAN: Haguenau. The railroad overpass and some of the

other battles that went on.

BURG: BSo they kept yvou in a ground role?

HOFFMAN: ©Oh sure. Sure.

EURG: After Bastogne, yeon simply went with the advancing
armies. Now, they mounted another airborne drop on the far
gside of the Rhine. WARSITY, I think it was called, But they

didn't use the 10lst in £hat.

HG PFI'!P.IN: Nﬂ‘ = No -

BURG: You stayed in as ground troops to the end of the war.

HOFFMAN: That's correct. But they didn't use the division,
did they, for that one on the other side? Didn't they use just

the 5087
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BURG: I'm not sure who took part in it, but I don't think

that the lolet—-

HOFPFMAN: 0Oh no.

BURG: -—-made that jump.

HOFFMAL = . Hone of ours. HNone aof

ours.

BURG: They may have used the 17th, which was fairly new in

Europe at that time. [Ed. note: Operation VARSITY was carried
out by the American 17th Airborne Division and by the British
6th Airborne Division.]

HOFFMAN: And from then on--let's see, scmewhere along the line
I get-—in the Forest, I guess, at that time. Casualties are
pretty goed and I finally get to be a platoon leader of a

rifle platoon.

BURG: They take you out of being assistant 5-2.

HOFFMAN: Yes. Yes, I get to bhe a pletoon leader,

BURG: In the 50lst?
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HOFFMAN: Yes. And I got-—-it wouldn't bhe called Montezuma's
Revenge there——but I got the GI's. And I think my platcon
sergeant's name was Jones. We were, seems to me, in the wooded
area with a main line on the military crest of the hill. The

military erest is beyond the top hill.

BUBG: Yas,

HOFFMAN: BSo, if you wanted to peacefully use the facilities—-

[Laughter]

BEURG: You had to cross that crest.

HOFFMAN: You went on back and took vour little showel with

you if at all possible, We really had--not really fox holes,

but primarily slit trenches. And I would run back, and just as
goon as I ran back, the OP--the German OP--would pick it up and
you could hear the mortars cough. Takes them a while, btttt.

And Jones is laying in that--he's laying in that slit tranch and
he is just breaking his sides laughing, to see whether I can make
it, do it, and get back in time. and I am yelling at him, "Jones,
if we ever get ont of this thing, I hope that Louisiana sinks

into the seal!" [Laughter] He was a kid. I came out of there
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locking like death warmed over. My cheek bones were

sticking out. [Laughter] I don't know how many pounds=-=I
would imagine that I lost thirty, forty pounds. Anyway,

cold. Miserable. Feet, Toes, really--because vou don't

say, "I can't do it any longer." You Keep it going. EBut the
toes didn't blacken or anything else, They froze, but working
them--but even today, I ecan tell when the weather's going to
change. They start to tingle., Then the movement was on,

and somewhere or other, relief. Travel by train across Germany
in a--ch, freight cars--and see mile after mile after mile of
destruction. Railroad track, just like somebody tied or
twisted it in great locops. Most Tantastic thing. All the way
down into--of course the Haguenau Forest thing lasted, I don't
know how long-~but whenever it was over, we moved con down into
southern Babaria,

[Ed. Note: The 50lst was withdrawn from the Haguenau ares,

Alace, on Feb. 28, 1945, and moved by train--straw filled 40
and B hoxcars-=back to Mourmelon.]

BURG: The war was over, 4

HOFFMAN: Or pretty close to it. When was the war over: In

May?
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BURG: Yes, eighth or nineth was VE Davy.

HOFFMAN: January, February--I think we were down there before
it was over, but we may not have been. [Ed. note: The 50lst
was held at Mourmelon in case it was needed to jump into Nari
priscner-of-war camps. When this was cancelled, the 501st
joined the rest of the 10lst--whose missions had also been
ﬂanc&lled——after'vE-Day in Berchtesgaden.] Might have to go
check some of the letters and see where I was. But we ended

up in southern Bavaria. I think probably it's one of the most

beautiful spots on the face of the earth.

BURG: Yes, (

HOFFMAN: Those mountains.

BURG: Well, they were afraid that a redoubt had been
established down there, which is why they directed so many
troops into Bavaria. &nd, of course, there was nothing, but

that was what they feared,

HOFFMAN: They tock over the Eagle's Nest and Hitler's you

know, hide out.

BURG: BRBerchtesgaden.
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HOFFMAN: Berchtesgaden.

BURG: You were g first lispgtenant when the war ended?

HOFFMAR: Mo, I was a Ca-=-=uh, when the war ended?

BURG: Yea.

HOFFMAN: I was a first lieutenant., They broke up the 50lst:
first unit to be disgbanded, So boath jumpers and glider men
were mixed in the glider units. Some went to the 325 of the
82nd; some went to the 327 of the 10lst. When the 10lst was
disbanded-—uh, no., When we got ready to come home<-because the
101lst is ‘going to stay-—-when we get ready to come home, we went
over to the 325 of the 82nd. And the wvictory parade, we made

the wvictory parade with the B82nd.

BURG: ©h did wyou?

HOFFMAN: Yes,

BURG: Wearing their patch?

HOFFMAN: Wearing their patch.
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BURG: How embarrassing for you. [Laughter]

HOFFMAN: The only way your pride survives is that you 've

come home. [Laughter]

BURG: Yes, yes. Now did you step out of the Army at that

point, once you got back here in the States?

HOFFMAN: Not until March of '46. Married in June and started
to finish my college; geo en to seminary. I knew I was headed

for the ministry.

BURG: Yes. Where did you do your college, the finishing off

of your college?

HOFFMAN: Trinity College, Hartford, Coennecticut.

BURG: Yes. So youw did that and then theclogical seminary.

And where was that?

HOFFMAN: 1In Virginia. Theological seminary in Virginia,

Protestant Episcopal Theplegical Seminary in Alexandria, Virginia.
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BURG: Y¥es. How long was that training?

HOFF¥MAN: Three more years. Graduated. For which yeu did nat
get & Master's or anything else. You got & B.D, They have
since changed that so that now yvou at least are able to earn

the Master's,

BUBG: Yo,

HOFFMAN: Three solid years of seminary. I don't know why

we're putting this on the tape.

BURG: I want to just put this on this record, DIid you do

any parish work after you finished the seminary?

HOFFMAN: Oh yes.

BURG: How long was that, approximately?

HOFFMAN: I did some--seven years, and that was the last year
I had waiver of age against previous serviece, If yvou wanted to
come back as & chaplain, you could use your previous service to

waive the age reguirement. That's the only blessed thing that
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can't be waived otherwise. B&nd that was my last yvear of
waiver of age against--you're supposed to be thirty—three or

something. Then I rejoined the 327 at Fort Campbell.

BUEG: B&As a—

HOFFMAN: As a chaplain.

BURG: As a chaplain with the rank of captain?

HOFFMAN: Yes, captain. Yes. Had I been promoted to field
grade, I would not have come hack on active duty. I could have

gone reserve, but I couldn't come back on active duty.

BORG: If you had made it as far as major.

HOFFMAN: And that's why I was | ? ] chief, Yes at

that point.

BURG: So after guite a number of vears, roughly ten years,
you come back and you come inte the 327th Regiment, which had been

a glider regiment, and you're with the—

HOFFMRN: It's now a brigade.
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BURG: With the l0lst——

BOFFMAN: Yes.

BURG: -—-Airborne Division again.

HOFFMAN: It's a jump brigade. And one of the—well, several
of the officers--but Colonel Jones was conmander there and he
had been with the unit during the war. In about six weeks he
was on his way to another assignment. We had a new coemmander.
But it was interesting to return. These guys rotate out of
and back into airborne assigmments throughout most of their

caresrs.

BURG: So at about that time you're a chaplain with the
division with which wou had fought. You're a chaplain who
has a right to wear jump wings and-—what was it? Three battle

stars?
€. J
BOFFMAN: Two. T

BURG: Two battle stars. Combat infantry badge. The buropean

Theater ribbon. & little unusual for a chaplain, but——
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HOFFMAN: Well they make the pastoral work an awful lot

easier,

BIfRG: Yes.

BOFFMAN: You can move easier.

BURG: Yes, that's been my thought, too.
HOFFMAN: Bronze Star, and--

BURG: You had that, too?

HOFFMAN: =-Presidential [Unit] Citation., Of course, the
Presidential citation was given to | 7 ], and all the

ropes.

BURG: Yes the fburragéres.

HOFFEAN: Orange [ ] and the Belgi®nand French

fourrageres.

BURG: The 1l0lst could wear all three?
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HOFFMAN: All of them, &And if yvou were with them, vou wore

them [sounds like "pretty way"] .

BURG: Permanently. Yes.

HOFFMAN: Much to the chagrin, sometimes, of people,

BURG: Well, that's marvelous, Ray. Thank vou so much for

all of these sessicns. We appreciate it,

HOFFMAN: HNow there are——vou sav, yvou're going to put this

together in a manuseript form?

BURG: ¥Yes, that's right.

HOFFMAN: There are tons of things that are, you: knhow, other

incidents, but--znd I will see it?

BURG: 0Oh, indeed., Yes.




	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 001
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 002
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 003
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 004
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 006
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 005
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 007
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 008
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 009
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 010
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 011
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 012
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 013
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 014
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 015
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 016
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 017
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 018
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 019
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 020
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 021
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 022
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 023
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 024
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 025
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 026
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 027
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 028
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 029
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 030
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 031
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 032
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 033
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 034
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 035
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 036
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 037
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 038
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 039
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 040
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 041
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 042
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 043
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 044
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 045
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 046
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 047
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 048
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 049
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 050
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 051
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 052
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 053
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 054
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 055
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 056
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 057
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 058
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 059
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 060
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 061
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 062
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 063
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 064
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 065
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 066
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 067
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 068
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 069
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 070
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 071
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 072
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 073
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 074
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 075
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 076
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 077
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 078
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 079
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 080
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 081
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 082
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 083
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 084
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 085
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 086
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 087
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 088
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 089
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 090
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 091
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 092
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 093
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 094
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 095
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 096
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 097
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 098
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 099
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 100
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 101
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 102
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 103
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 104
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 105
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 106
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 107
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 108
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 109
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 110
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 111
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 112
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 113
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 114
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 115
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 116
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 117
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 118
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 119
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 120
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 121
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 122
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 123
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 124
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 125
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 126
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 127
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 128
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 129
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 130
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 131
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 132
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 133
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 134
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 135
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 136
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 137
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 138
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 139
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 140
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 141
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 142
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 143
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 144
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 145
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 146
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 147
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 148
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 149
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 150
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 151
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 152
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 153
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 154
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 155
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 156
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 157
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 158
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 159
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 160
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 161
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 162
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 163
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 164
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 165
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 166
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 167
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 168
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 169
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 170
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 171
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 172
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 173
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 174
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 175
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 176
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 177
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 178
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 179
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 180
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 181
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 182
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 183
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 184
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 185
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 186
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 187
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 188
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 189
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 190
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 191
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 192
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 193
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 194
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 195
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 196
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 197
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 198
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 199
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 200
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 201
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 202
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 203
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 204
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 205
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 206
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 207
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 208
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 209
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 210
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 211
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 212
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 213
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 214
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 215
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 216
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 217
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 218
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 219
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 220
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 221
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 222
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 223
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 224
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 225
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 226
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 227
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 228
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 229
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 230
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 231
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 232
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 233
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 234
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 235
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 236
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 237
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 238
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 239
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 240
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 241
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 242
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 243
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 244
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 245
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 246
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 247
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 248
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 249
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 250
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 251
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 252
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 253
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 254
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 255
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 256
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 257
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 258
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 259
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 260
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 261
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 262
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 263
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 264
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 265
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 266
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 267
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 268
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 269
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 270
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 271
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 272
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 273
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 274
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 275
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 276
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 277
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 278
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 279
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 280
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 281
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 282
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 283
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 284
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 285
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 286
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 287
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 288
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 289
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 290
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 291
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 292
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 293
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 294
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 295
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 296
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 297
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 298
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 299
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 300
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 301
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 302
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 303
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 304
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 305
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 306
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 307
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 308
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 309
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 310
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 311
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 312
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 313
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 314
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 315
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 316
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 317
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 318
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 319
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 320
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 321
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 322
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 323
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 324
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 325
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 326
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 327
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 328
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 329
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 330
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 331
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 332
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 333
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 334
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 335
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 336
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 337
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 338
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 339
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 340
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 341
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 342
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 343
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 344
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 345
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 346
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 347
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 348
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 349
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 350
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 351
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 352
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 353
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 354
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 355
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 356
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 357
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 358
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 359
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 360
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 361
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 362
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 363
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 364
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 365
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 366
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 367
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 368
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 369
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 370
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 371
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 372
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 373
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 374
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 375
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 376
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 377
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 378
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 379
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 380
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 381
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 382
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 383
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 384
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 385
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 386
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 387
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 388
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 389
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 390
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 391
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 392
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 393
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 394
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 395
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 396
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 397
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 398
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 399
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 400
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 401
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 402
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 403
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 404
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 405
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 406
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 407
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 408
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 409
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 410
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 411
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 412
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 413
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 414
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 415
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 416
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 417
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 418
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 419
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 420
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 421
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 422
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 423
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 424
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 425
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 426
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 427
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 428
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 429
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 430
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 431
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 432
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 433
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 434
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 435
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 436
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 437
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 438
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 439
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 440
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 441
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 442
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 443
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 444
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 445
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 446
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 447
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 448
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 449
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 450
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 451
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 452
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 453
	Hoffman_Raymond_P_481 454

